Public Document Pack

" monmouthshire
W sir fynwy
Neuadd y Sir
Y Rhadyr
Brynbuga
NP15 1GA

Dydd lau, 30 Mehefin 2016

Hysbysiad o gyfarfod

Pwyllgor Trwyddedu a Rheleiddio

Dydd Gwener, 8fed Gorffennaf, 2016 at 10.00 am
Neuadd Y Sir, Y Rhadyr, Brynbuga, NP15 1GA

AGENDA

Eitem Eitem Tudalennau
ddim

1. Ymddiheuriadau am absenoldeb

2. Datganiadau o Fuddiant

3. GORCHYMYN ADDASU MAP DIFFINIOL, Cleddon SAETHU, 1-276

Llandogo, TRELLECH (41 Mod)
4. Cadarnhau dyddiad ac amser y cyfarfod nesaf

Paul Matthews

Prif Weithredwr




CYNGOR SIR FYNWY
MAE CYFANSODDIAD Y PWYLLGOR FEL SY'N DILYN:

Cynghorwyr Sir: R. Chapman
R. Edwards
D. Evans
L. Guppy

J. Higginson

J. Marshall

J. Prosser

B. Strong

F. Taylor

P. Watts

A. Webb

M. Hickman

Gwybodaeth Gyhoeddus

Mynediad i gopiau papur o agendau ac adroddiadau

Gellir darparu copi o'r agenda hwn ac adroddiadau perthnasol i aelodau'r cyhoedd sy'n
mynychu cyfarfod drwy ofyn am gopi gan Gwasanaethau Democrataidd ar 01633 644219.
Dylid nodi fod yn rhaid i ni dderbyn 24 awr o hysbysiad cyn y cyfarfod er mwyn darparu
copi caled o'r agenda hwn i chi.

Edrych ar y cyfarfod ar-lein

Gellir gweld y cyfarfod ar-lein yn fyw neu'n diyn y cyfarfod drwy fynd i
www.monmouthshire.gov.uk neu drwy ymweld &'n tudalen Youtube drwy chwilio am
MonmouthshireCC. Drwy fynd i mewn i'r ystafell gyfarfod, fel aelod o'r cyhoedd neu i
gymryd rhan yn y cyfarfod, rydych yn caniatau i gael eich ffilmio ac i ddefnydd posibl y
delweddau a'r recordiadau sain hynny gan y Cyngor.

Y Gymraeg

Mae'r Cyngor yn croesawu cyfraniadau gan aelodau'r cyhoedd drwy gyfrwng y Gymraeg
neu'r Saesneg. Gofynnwn gyda dyledus barch i chi roi 5 diwrnod o hysbysiad cyn y
cyfarfod os dymunwch siarad yn Gymraeg fel y gallwn ddarparu ar gyfer eich anghenion.


http://www.monmouthshire.gov.uk/

Nodau a Gwerthoedd Cyngor Sir Fynwy

Cymunedau Cynaliadwy a Chryf

Canlyniadau y gweithiwn i'w cyflawni

Neb yn cael ei adael ar 6l

e Gall pobl hyn fyw bywyd da
o Pobl & mynediad i dai addas a fforddiadwy

o Pobl & mynediad a symudedd da

Pobl yn hyderus, galluog ac yn cymryd rhan

¢ Camddefnyddio alcohol a chyffuriau ddim yn effeithio ar fywydau pobl
e Teuluoedd yn cael eu cefnogi

e Pobl yn teimlo'n ddiogel

Ein sir yn ffynnu

e Busnes a menter
e Pobl & mynediad i ddysgu ymarferol a hyblyg
e Pobl yn diogelu ac yn cyfoethogi'r amgylchedd

Ein blaenoriaethau

e Ysgolion
e Diogelu pobl agored i niwed
e Cefnogi busnes a chreu swyddi

e Cynnal gwasanaethau sy’n hygyrch yn lleol

Ein gwerthoedd

e Bod yn agored: anelwn fod yn agored ac onest i ddatblygu perthnasoedd ymddiriedus

e Tegwch: anelwn ddarparu dewis teg, cyfleoedd a phrofiadau a dod yn sefydliad a
adeiladwyd ar barch un at y llall.

¢ Hyblygrwydd: anelwn fod yn hyblyg yn ein syniadau a'n gweithredoedd i ddod yn sefydliad
effeithlon ac effeithiol.

e Gwaith tim: anelwn gydweithio i rannu ein llwyddiannau a'n methiannau drwy adeiladu ar
ein cryfderau a chefnogi ein gilydd i gyflawni ein nodau.



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 3
1 monmouthshire
N, |

sir fynwy

SUBJECT: DEFINITIVE MAP MODIFICATION ORDERS, CLEDDON SHOOTS,

LLANDOGO, TRELLECH

DIRECTORATE: ENTERPRISE
MEETING: LICENSING AND REGULATORY COMMITTEE - RIGHTS OF WAY

ADVISORY PANEL

DATE: 8th July 2016
DIVISION/WARDS AFFECTED: TRELLECH

1.1.

1.2.

3.2.

PURPOSE:

To consider, under Section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, if the
route A-C shown on the consultation plan (Appendix 1), in the community of Trellech,
Llandogo (location plan Appendix 2), recorded on the Definitive Map & Statement as one
type of way should in fact be recorded as a different type of way.

The Authority is acting in a quasi-judicial capacity and must reach a decision based on the
evidence presented. We are not required to resolve conflicts in the evidence and there
may well be evidence on both sides of the issue. We must weigh up the evidence using
the test of the ‘balance of probabilities’, and, if on this balance, it is reasonable to conclude
that the evidence shows that change should be made, we must do so. Although officers
have considered the evidence, and made a recommendation based on their appraisal,
members must themselves consider the evidence and reach their own conclusions. If a
modification order is made anyone has a right to object. The matter would then be
determined by the Planning Inspectorate for Wales.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

. That the Rights of Way Advisory Panel (RWAP) advise the Cabinet Member for

Community Developement to make a Modification Order (under Section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981) to classify the cart road bridleways 20, 21, 22 and 23
and restricted byway 24 as footpaths and to confirm or seek confirmation of the Order.
The details of the case are included in the Reports (Appendix 3) as part of the background
papers.

KEY ISSUES:

. Ms S. Harris and Mr A. Dance submitted an application to change the status of public cart

road bridleways 20 to 23 Trellech, on 13" April 2004. It should be noted that restricted
byway 24 has also being investigated for reasons detailed in the Reports (Appendix 3).

The application includes 13 historical documents, 5 witness statements and 6 evidence
forms and was submitted under section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981 (WCA). The applicant seeks to upgrade existing routes to byways open to all traffic
(BOAT).

Page 1



3.3.

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

4.2.

5.2.

Since the application was received two public consultations have been carried out and
evidence investigated. Detailed reports have now been prepared (Appendix 3) and a
decision has to be made on what the status of the various routes should be in light of this
evidence.

Out of the 37 consultations there is, under relevant historical reasons, 1 objector to the
route in question being registered as a byway open to all traffic (BOAT).

If the route in question is to be registered as a public footpath there are 2 objections, one
from the Open Spaces Society and the other from the British Horse Society. The basis of
objection from the two Societies is historical documentation and reporting of the general
area which cannot be attributed to a single route. While 5 objections are based on a
desire for future maintenance to a vehicular standard of the route in question and are
irrelevant in regards to proving the status of the route.

The Definitive Map records the southern part of the route (A to B) as a cart road bridleway
and the rest of the route (B to C) a restricted byway. The Definitive Map and Statement
went through extensive legal procedures and scrutiny during development and therefore
substantial evidence is required to change the status of these routes.

The committee should also note that private vehicular rights will not be altered by any
changes to the status of the rights of way. Current maintenance of the route, suitability or
privacy are not matters which can be considered under WCA legislation. These are things
which can be considered once the status of the route is resolved.

REASONS:

. There are a number of historical documents along with user evidence that when taken

together argues that, on the balance of probabilities, there are no public vehicular, horse
drawn cart or equestrian rights over the route in question. Such use appears to be private.

There is also very little evidence to support equestrian use and based on the totality of the
evidence, Officers believe the routes to be only footpaths and not byways open to all traffic

(BOAT) as submitted by the applicants.

RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS:

. The County Council is under a duty to investigate applications. The consideration of the

application by officers falls within existing budgets.

The decision is one that must be taken on strict legal tests:

 If the application is not determined in accordance with the tests this could lead to a
successful legal challenge by way of Judicial Review.

* In the event that an order is made and there are objections the Planning Inspectorate
for Wales would consider the matter by way of written representations, hearing or public
inquiry. The decision taken by the investigating officer and the Rights of Way Advisory
Panel is a decision based on legal tests and the above costs cannot be a consideration
in the determination of the application.

Page 2



6.1.

8.1.
8.2.

8.3.
8.4.
8.5.
8.6.

8.7.

10.

WELLBEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS IMPLICATIONS (INCORPORATING
EQUALITIES, SUSTAINABILITY, SAFEGUARDING AND CORPORATE PARENTING):
The Order if made will neither positively nor negatively impact on the well-being goals or
the sustainable development principals. (Appendix 4).

CONSULTEES:

Corporate Management Team

All-Select Committee Chairmen

Head of Legal Services

Head of Finance

Head of Highways

Licensing and Regulatory Committee Members

BACKGROUND PAPERS:
Consultation plan (Appendix 1)
Location plan (Appendix 2)

Report 1: Section A to B (20 to 23)

Report 2: Section B to C (24) (Appendix 3)
Glossary

Appendixes bundle

Future Generation Evaluation (Appendix 4)
AUTHOR: Ruth Rourke Principal Countryside Access Officer

CONTACT DETAILS:

Tel: 01633 644860
E-mail: ruthrourke@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Page 3


mailto:ruthrourke@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Appendix 1. Consultation Plan

Path

The Freedom

{uin) wed

S
CPe

A%}\ Ve 7

)

7 LLANDOGO '

L 43.0m

- Trough » |8
BM 43.74m

el w® » \ l

J ae
—— ,' 48.1m
f

3 ,’ ] lLl |
l [

{
\ 3 48.8m [}
) T
'I’Ml',hn,,' "‘, '.:- l'.1

- 0 o f
¥ BM 43.12m

&1

of’ N l ss\l.s&x

TO BARGAIN WOOD &
CATBROOK

COMNTY COLYTIL
T ol \

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
Section 53
Definitive Map Modification Order

Route to be reclassified; e————
Other Public Rights of Way: s s s

Repfoduoéd from the Ordnance j )
Survey Mapping w th the permssion  Community of Trellech United AR i
of Her Majesty's Statinery Office  (CRB's 20 to 23 & CRF 24 2
@ Crow n Copyright Unauthorised ( ) MAP REF:SO5203NW
reproduction infringes Crown
Copyright and may lead to

D A

rage 4

Appendix 1: Consultation Plan




Appendix 2: Location Plan

\ /i \ P o :
:?\\\ i \5‘ AN 7- 7K/ 3

e - 4‘? B I TH.UE:”').' »‘ TN » w
N S AV 6

o T 2 “Hh=o 2R "43 A2
1y . 7 % y &
) J: 4 > Z ' : (v %
<
i/ A
AT 3 -
M R voa
ddon & " Na
WA W ¢\ Knoll,.o
& \\ R

5 b W\ “\ 3 N
) ARSI B B A
% “ﬁz@j BN '&O At
AN a = s

A

~Bargain &
Wood\ |\

Appendix 2: Location Plan




9 obed

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation

W)~ monmouthshire

Qo sir fynwy

Name of the Officer Please give a brief description of the aims of the proposal
Mandy Mussell — Definitive Map Officer Countryside Access To determine whether or not to register the route in question as a
Phone no: 01633-644183 public footpath on the Definitive Map and Statement.

E-mail: mandymussell@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Name of Service Countryside Access Date Future Generations Evaluation 4" May 2016

NB. Key strategies and documents that may help you identify your contribution to the wellbeing goals and sustainable
development principles include: Single Integrated Plan, Continuance Agreement, Improvement Plan, Local Development Plan,
People Strategy, Asset Management Plan, Green Infrastructure SPG, Welsh Language Standards, etc

1. Does your proposal deliver any of the well-being goals below? Please explain the impact (positive and negative) you expect,
together with suggestions of how to mitigate negative impacts or better contribute to the goal.

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to
Describe the positive and negative impacts. mitigate any negative impacts or better

Well Being Goal . e
contribute to positive impacts?

The Order if made will not change route’s N/A
Efficient use of resources, skilled. availability which Wlll continue to be a resource
educated people, generates wealth, for. locals and tourists to walk for the use and
provides jobs enjoyment of the area.

A prosperous Wales

A resilient Wales The Order if made will not change the N/A
Maintain and enhance biodiversity and | environment in which this route extends.
ecosystems that support resilience
and can adapt to change (e.g. climate
change)

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 1




) abed

Well Being Goal

Does the proposal contribute to this goal? What actions have been/will be taken to
Describe the positive and negative impacts. mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

A healthier Wales

People’s physical and mental
wellbeing is maximized and health
impacts are understood

The Order if made will not reduce people’s N/A
ability to walk in the area.

A Wales of cohesive communities
Communities are attractive, viable,
safe and well connected

The Order if made does not impact on the N/A
community.

A globally responsible Wales
Taking account of impact on global
well-being when considering local
social, economic and environmental
wellbeing

N/A N/A

A Wales of vibrant culture and
thriving Welsh language

Culture, heritage and Welsh language
are promoted and protected. People
are encouraged to do sport, art and
recreation

The Order if made will not change route’s N/A
availability which will continue to be a resource
for locals and tourists to walk for the use and
enjoyment of the area.

A more equal Wales

People can fulfil their potential no
matter what their background or
circumstances

N/A N/A

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 2




g abed

2. How has your proposal embedded and prioritised the sustainable governance principles in its development?

Sustainable
Development Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better

why. contribute to positive impacts?
Balancing The long term result if this Order is made will be that N/A
short term the route is recorded correctly on the Definitive Map
& need with and Statement. The status of the route will be clarified
long term for future reference.
and
long Term  planning for
the future
Working N/A N/A
together
N‘ with other
partners to
deliver
Collaboration objectives
Involving All the adjacent property owners have been consulted | N/A
those with | and all their concerns have been included within the
an interest | body of the reports.
w v and
seeking
Involvement their views

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 3




6 obed

Sustainable
Development Principle

Does your proposal demonstrate you have met
this principle? If yes, describe how. If not explain
why.

Are there any additional actions to be taken to
mitigate any negative impacts or better
contribute to positive impacts?

Putting
resources
into
preventing
problems
; occurring
Prevention or getting

worse

The Order if made will clarify the status of the route
and prevent confusion of responsibilities in the future.

N/A

Integration
Considering impact on all

wellbeing goals together
and on other bodies

N/A

N/A

3. Areyour proposals going to affect any people or groups of people with protected characteristics? Please explain the impact,
the evidence you have used and any action you are taking below. For more detailed information on the protected characteristics, the
Equality Act 2010 and the Welsh Language Standards that apply to Monmouthshire Council please follow this

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 4




0T obed

link:http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/Allltems.aspx or contact Alan Burkitt on 01633 644010 or

alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

Protected
Characteristics

Describe any positive impacts your

proposal has on the protected
characteristic

Describe any negative impacts

your proposal has on the
protected characteristic

What has been/will be done
to mitigate any negative
Impacts or better contribute

to positive impacts?

Age N/A N/A N/A
Disability N/A N/A N/A
Gender N/A N/A N/A
reassignment

Marriage or civil N/A N/A N/A
partnership

Pregnancy or N/A N/A N/A
maternity

Race N/A N/A N/A
Religion or Belief N/A N/A N/A
Sex N/A N/A N/A
Sexual Orientation N/A N/A N/A
Welsh Language N/A N/A N/A

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 5



http://hub/corporatedocs/Equalities/Forms/AllItems.aspx
mailto:alanburkitt@monmouthshire.gov.uk

4. Council has agreed the need to consider the impact its decisions has on important responsibilities of Corporate Parenting and
safeguarding. Are your proposals going to affect either of these responsibilities? For more information please see the guidance
http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeqguarding%20Guidance.docx and for more on Monmouthshire’s Corporate
Parenting Strategy see http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

Describe any positive impacts your Describe any negative impacts What will you do/ have you
proposal has on safeguarding and your proposal has on safeguarding | done to mitigate any negative
corporate parenting and corporate parenting impacts or better contribute

to positive impacts?

Safeguarding N/A N/A

Corporate Parenting | N/A

5. What evidence and data has informed the development of your proposal?

TT obed

The Definitive Map Modification Order, Cleddon Shoots, Llandogo, Trellech (41Mod) Report and two background reports along with all
relevant appendixes consists of all the evidence and data that has informed the development of this proposal.

The evidence consists of the applicant’s submissions of 13 historical documents, 5 withess statements and 6 evidence forms. The
Authority has investigated these and along with this evidence has included within the reports all the available historical maps; 2 pre-order
consultations with all the adjacent landowners, various public rights of way user Associations and Societies and Ultility providers. Along
with all this evidence other case law and legislation such as the 1981 Wildlife and Countryside Act and the 2006 Natural Environment and
Rural Communities Act has been applied and discussed in these reports.

6. SUMMARY: As aresult of completing this form, what are the main positive and negative impacts of your proposal, how have
they informed/changed the development of the proposal so far and what will you be doing in future?

The Order if made will neither positively nor negatively impact on the well-being goals or the sustainable development principals.

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 6



http://hub/corporatedocs/Democratic%20Services/Safeguarding%20Guidance.docx
http://hub/corporatedocs/SitePages/Corporate%20Parenting%20Strategy.aspx

2T obed

7. ACTIONS: As aresult of completing this form are there any further actions you will be undertaking? Please detail them below,
if applicable.

What are you going to do When are you going to do it? Who is responsible Progress

N/A

N/A

N/A

8. MONITORING: The impacts of this proposal will need to be monitored and reviewed. Please specify the date at which you will
evaluate the impact, and where you will report the results of the review.

The impacts of this proposal will be evaluated on: Three years after the Order has been confirmed.

9. VERSION CONTROL: The Future Generations Evaluation should be used at the earliest stages of decision making, and then
honed and refined throughout the decision making process. Itis important to keep a record of this process so that we can
demonstrate how we have considered and built in sustainable development wherever possible.

Version | Decision making stage Date considered Brief description of any amendments made
No. following consideration
1 The Rights of Way Advisory Panel (RWAP) | gth July 2016 N/A

in assessing the evidence and assisting
the Community Services Cabinet Portfolio
Member to determine whether or not to
make a Definitive Map Modification Order.

Appendix 4: Future Generation Evaluation - Page 7







Monmouthshire County Council
Countryside Access

Licence and Regulatory Committee Report
Definitive Map Modification Order

Cleddon Shoots, Llandogo, Trellech
REPORT 1: SECTION A to B (20 to 23)

File Ref: 41Mod _Llandogo CRB23
Page 14

“

8" July 2016



Index

Lo INETOTUCTION ... 1-2
2. LBOAI TS ..ttt ettt 3
3. Statutory BaCKgrOUNG ...........ouuiiiiiiiii e e e e e e e e e e e e 4-8
4. Applicants’ EVIAENCE REPOIT........uuuuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiib b 9-22
5. 1952 Conveyance Of Land ...........cooiiiiiiiiiiiii it 23-25
6. Historical Planning ApplICatiONS ..........uuuiiiiiiei e 26 - 30
7. WILNESS SEAEMIENTS .....eeiiieiiiiiiiiiiteieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeeeeseeseeeeees bbb seeseeeeeseeseennnnnennes 31-33
8. EVIOENCE FOIMIS ..ottt e e e eeeas 34 - 44
9.  Pre-Order CONSUIALIONS ..........uuuiiiiieiiiiiiiiitiiiieeeeeeeaeeeeeesseeneeseeeseesneseseeeseeseeeneenennes 45 - 50
10. Land Registry Documents (official copies requested in 2015).............ccceeeeeeeeennn. 51-54
11. Historical Map EVIAENCE .......cooooiiiiiiii e e e eaaees 55-76
12. The Definitive Map and Statement...........ooooerieeieeeeeee 77 -87
13. The Highways RECOIS.......ccciiiiiiicii e e e e e aaanes 88 - 89
14. Aerial PhotOgraphs ........uiii i e e eaanes 90 - 92
15. Site Photograpis ......ccooo oo 93-94
16. Natural Environment and Rural Communities ACt 2006 .............cocoviiiiiiiieeeeennnnnns 95 - 96
17. Section At0 B - REVIEW ... 97 -103
18, CONCIUSION ... 104
19. RECOMMENUALION. .....cei it 105

Page 15



1. Introduction: Definitive Map Modification Order

Background to the case
1.1. This Report is one of two reports by Monmouthshire County Council that deal with

an application by two members of the public to upgrade the status of a certain
route in the community of Trellech near the village of Llandogo (Appendix 1). The

guestion to be addressed is whether or not the route has public vehicular rights.

1.2.  Any discussion by applicants on aspects of need, nuisance or suitability for a route
in use, which are relevant to them as private individuals, must be excluded from

Council investigations on its status.

1.3. The matter to be considered in these two Reports, therefore, is what type of public
rights actually exist in respect of the route in question.

1.4. The routes in question are recorded on the 1952 Definitive Map and Statement
(Fig. 12.6) as Cart Road Bridleways CRB20, CRB21, CRB22 and CRB23. If, in
the process of addressing the dispute a requirement for changes to the status of
these routes arises, legislative action will need to be considered to amend their
existing classification as recorded on the Definitive Map. These are discussed in
Chapter 12 of this Report.

1.5. The status of these routes has a history going back to 2001 when legal
proceedings were issued against the Authority with regard to the maintenance of
these routes given that no vehicular rights existed over them. This disagreement
related to the extent of any existing public rights and the amount of maintenance
that the Authority should undertake. In order to resolve the matter rather than
refer it to the Magistrates Court, the Authority surfaced CRBs 20, 21, 22 and FP18,
as a “one off’, on the basis that there was no acknowledgement on the part of the
Council that public vehicular rights exist over the routes. The reason for this was
because the level of public status for the routes had not been resolved at the time
as legislative investigation was required. In addition, whatever decision was made
regarding the status of the routes, the Council were not responsible for maintaining

the same to a standard suitable for public vehicular use.

1.6. In 2004 the Authority received a Planning Application (M/2367) for building a
house on a piece of land alongside one of these routes. When the Authority dealt
with the claim it sought to draw to the attention of the two Applicants the fact that
public vehicular rights might not exist over the tracks leading to the plot which left it

being accessible only via a CRB. Planning permission was granted subject to the

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 1
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.g Llandogi%to B 8th July 2016.doc



Applicants making a submission to Countryside under Section 53 of the Wildlife

and Countryside Act (WCA) 1981 to ascertain the status of these routes.

1.7. A Definitive Map Modification (DMMO) application dated 13" April 2004 seeking to
upgrade the status of public cart road bridleways (CRB) 20, 21, 22 and 23 to a
byway open to all traffic (BOAT) was submitted by Ms S Harris and Mr A Dance.
(See section A to B shown on the Consultation Plan (Fig 1.1)). In reviewing the
Application, the Authority considered it necessary to consult all available historical
documents in investigating the whole route, i.e. not only A to B, but also B to C.

1.8. This Report only deals with section A to B. Section B to C is covered in the second
Report.

\am Past B,.
b D TR
b= %\‘9’ b
T Fresdom 2 S e
7 0 RooLE.
' ot
Pax Goves L‘/ %30‘4@@’
‘ LLANDOGO
. Trewvgn in
/l--.‘,' Mm
#
?9'\9,/ | [Re——
s
ﬂ L P
'... /9;'3 __L"l“/ ik
i :._. --.. 5 $P\'1-
1 =\ =
yoULg =k \§ |
S =N\ /
’."-‘; L P 5. e \ 1 "v'
g 7O BARGAIN WOOD &
\ Sl - CATEROOK
3 Wildiife & Countryside Act 1981
ineranouthehne Section 53
el M A Definitive Map Modification Order  Route to be reclassified
Wwornduced from the Ordnance Other Pubiic Riahts of WAV e e
Fig. 1.1: Consultation plan MCC
2 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016

MonmouthsE CountyeCoTr_?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



2. Legal Tests

2.1. The legal tests for the route in question are under the 1981 Wildlife and
Countryside Act (WCA) section 53(3)(c)(ii) that concerns itself with a highway that
has been recorded at a particular status on the Definitive Map and Statement
(DM&S) and should instead be recorded with a different status. Section 53(3)(c) of
the 1981 WCA is distinct from other sections of the WCA as, in these types of
claims, historical evidence is uncovered in support for amendment or otherwise of

a path prior to the 1% January 2026.

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 s53:
2.2. The Section 53(2) of 1981 Act places two duties on the Authority:

(2) As regards every definitive map and statement, the surveying authority shall-
(a) as soon as reasonably practicable after the commencement date, by
order make such modifications to the map and statement as appear to
them to be requisite in consequence of the occurrence, before that date,
of any of the events specified in subsection (3); and
(b) as from that date, keep the map and statement under continuous review
and as soon as reasonably practicable after the occurrence on or after
that date, of any of those events, by order make such modifications to
the map and statement as appear to them to be requisite in

consequence of the occurrence of that event.
2.3.  Together these duties are known as the continuous review of the DM&S.

2.4. Events fall into two categories “legal events” and “evidential events”. The basis of

this Application falls within the evidential event of section 53 (3)(c)(ii).

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 s53:

(3) The events referred to in subsection (2) above are as follows:
(c) the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered
with all other relevant evidence available to them) shows —
(i) that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway
of a particular description ought to be there shown as a highway

of a different description;

2.5.  Further to the above the standard of proof for both the making and confirmation of

a Definitive Map Modification Order is “on the balance of probabilities”.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 3
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogi@to B 8th July 2016.doc



3. Statutory Background

How public rights of way came about

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The law has always acknowledged that the public right to use a highway lies in
dedication by the owner and that public use alone does not create a highway. The
law is clear that if there has been a public uninterrupted user of a road for such a
length of time as to satisfy a jury that the owner of the soil, whoever he might be,
intended to dedicate it to the public, this is sufficient to prove the existence of a
highway, even though it cannot be ascertained who the owner of it has been
during the time the road has been used by the public.

The types of highway recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement (relevant date
1 July 1952) are footpaths, bridleways, restricted byways and byways open to all

traffic.

A footpath only allows walkers; a bridleway allows walkers, horse riders (including
people leading a horse) and possibly the right to drive cattle; a restricted byway
allows all the above descriptions including non-mechanically propelled vehicles like
a horse drawn cart; and a byway open to all traffic allows all types of traffic as

listed above including motorised vehicles.

Common Law

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

Common law originally specified three types of highway, those being footpaths,
bridleways and carriageways. Common law is the basis on which statutory rights
have been built on. Therefore the type and level of user for these ways is in some
respects similar. Over the years legislation has extended the rights where for
example carriageways have been subdivided into other types of routes, some

being byways open to all traffic while others are now referred to as restricted

byways.

DMMO applications, where a way has become public from long usage, are now
generally made under a statutory provision where the common law principles of:

“without force”, “without secrecy” and “without permission” are clearly preserved by

law.

Common Law uses a term “as of right”, to explain the principle of long usage that
gives rise to a presumption of dedication where the use had to be without force,
without secrecy and without permission. Case law has enhanced the term “as of

right” to include “in the honest belief in a legal right to use”.

Provisions of section 31 of the 1980 Highways Act (HA) do not supersede the

principles of implied dedication that existed at common law before 1932. That

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoT§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



means where a claim is made in respect of a way that is not obstructed or where

use is for a period shorter than 20 years a claim may be made at common law.

3.8.  However, where a claim is based only on common law, the requirement with
regard to capacity to dedicate still applies. Therefore, without a specific owner, as
in this case, there is no ability to offer public vehicular rights.

3.9.  Furthermore, the tests under the 1980 Highways Act section 31 are not relevant to
this case as it is already understood some public rights, although ambiguous, are
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement.

Restrictions imposed by statute:-
3.10. The Applicants submitted a DMMO claim under section 53 of the 1981 Wildlife and

Countryside Act as the Authority had not processed the duty to reclassify under
section 54 of the 1981 WCA. This section of the 1981 Act has now been revoked
by the 2000 Countryside and Rights of Way Act and is no longer available for use.

3.11. The 1980 Highways Act, section 31 does not apply as the route is already
registered as a public right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement as “Cart
Road Bridleways” (CRB) which is essentially a road used as a public path (RUPP).
In this case the route is regarded as a public bridleway which allows walkers and
horse riders. This is discussed in detail in Chapter 12 of this report.

3.12. The 2000 Countryside and Rights of Way Act (CROW) Section 47 came into force
on the 11" May 2006 and re-designated roads used as public paths (RUPPs) to
restricted byways (RB).

3.12.1. The Welsh Statutory Instruments (2006 No0.1279(V.124)(C.42) provided
that nothing in section 47 or 48 of the 2000 CROW Act affects the
operation of the relevant sections and schedules of the 1981 WCA if
either an order or an application for a relevant order was made before the
19™ May 2005.

3.12.2. The section A to B of the route in question is investigated in keeping with

the submission plan (Appendix 4).

3.13. Section 67(3) of the 2006 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act
exempts this claim being affected by the Act as the application was submitted in
2004 prior to the cut-off date stipulated. Chapter 16 and Appendixes 59 to 64

provide detailed explanation.

3.14. The tests under the 1981 Wildlife and Countryside Act are applied to determine
whether or not public vehicular rights already exist over section A to B of the route

in question.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 5
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogébto B 8th July 2016.doc



THE LEGAL TESTS

Discovery of Evidence

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

Planning Inspectorate guidance summarises the position on discovery of evidence

that has evolved through Case Law:-
‘In Mayhew it was argued that in order to be discovered, evidence had to
previously have been unavailable to the authority. This argument was
rejected. The judge, Potts J, adopted parts of the judgment in R v Secretary of
State for the Environment ex parte Simms and Burrows where it was said that:
‘the word ‘discovery’ suggests the finding of some information which was
previously unknown, and which may result in a previously mistaken decision

being corrected”.

In addition, Potts J adopted the following passage from Simms and Burrows:-
“In particular | am satisfied that section 53(3)(c), with its use of the word
“discovery”, embraces the situation where a mistaken decision has been made
and its correction becomes possible because of the discovery of information

which may or may not have existed at the time of the definitive map”.

In the Court’s view the meaning of “to discover” is to find out or become aware.
The phrase implies a mental process of the discoverer applying their mind to

something previously unknown to them.

In terms of discovery of evidence in the current case, it is noted that discovery
need not exclude documents held in the archives at the time of drafting the
definitive map from 1952 to 1967. The 1910 Finance Act Records only became
available for public inspection from 1979 onwards.

This should, however, be considered in conjunction with the clarification offered in
later case law where the court noted that:
“It is plain that the section [563(3)(c)] intends that a definitive map can be

corrected, but the correction... is dependent on the ‘discovery of evidence'.”

In order to qualify as a discovery for the purposes of this case then, evidence that
existed at the time is able to qualify, though it must be new in the context of
evidence previously considered and the submission of evidence cannot be illegal
use of an existing way. Also, evidence already considered in a hearing or

otherwise at an earlier stage is precluded from forming the basis of a discovery.

Standard & Existence of Evidence

3.21. Planning Inspectorate guidance outlines that:-
“When considering whether a right of way already shown on definitive map
and statement should be deleted, or shown as a right of way of a different
description, the Inspector is not there to adjudicate on whether procedural
6 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016

MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOQCiReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



defects occurred at the time the right of way was added to the definitive map
and statement (for example notice was incorrectly served). Unless evidence
of a procedural defect is relevant to establishing the correct status of the right
of way concerned (for example a key piece of documentary evidence
indicating a different status was ignored), there can be no reason to consider
it. There must be presumption that the way is as shown on the definitive map
and statement, even if the procedures were defective, unless there is
evidence to establish that the way should be shown as being of a different

status, or not shown at all.”

3.22. Where there is no indication that the proper procedures were significantly departed
from, the standard of evidence that needs to be produced is that of actual positive
evidence, of some substance, showing a contrary position to the one included on

the Definitive Map and Statement.

DMMO Process
3.23. It should be noted that the DMMO process seeks to ensure rights are correctly

recorded as they exist and is an exercise in modifying the definitive map to reflect
such a position. It is not within the remit of the DMMO process to give
consideration to matters such as privacy; the current or future necessity; or
usefulness of a route (though such factors may assist where they constitute

evidence of past use).

LEGAL TESTS - Discovery of Evidence
3.24. In this case the Council received the Application in 2004 along with a report

consisting of 13 pieces of evidence and 6 user evidence forms to upgrade section

A to B an existing cart road bridleway to a byway open to all traffic.

3.25. The Applicants’ submissions and their content and weight meet the tests of

‘discovery of evidence’ which is considered in greater detail in this Report.

3.26. It is not possible to show that the historical records were referred to in the process
of the compilation of the Definitive Map and Statement. While recognising that this
lack of surviving evidence does not prove that no consideration was given, it is
proposed that the submission of the historical documents at least, should be

considered sufficient for a discovery under s53(3)(c)(ii).

3.27. Furthermore, when the definitive map was compiled, roads used as public paths
(RUPPs) were shown as either cart road bridleways (CRBs) or cart road footpaths
(CRFs). These terms have no legal significance and the category of RUPP proved

to be unsatisfactory.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 7
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedog??to B 8th July 2016.doc



3.28.

A number of legislative attempts were enacted to reclassify the RUPPs and finally
as stipulated by the tests set out under section 67 of the Natural Environment and
Rural Communities Act 2006, it remains for the Applicant’s claim to be decided
under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 section 53(3)(c)(ii).

LEGAL TESTS - Standard of Evidence

3.29.

3.30.

3.31.

3.32.

While the historical evidence referred to must be demonstrated to be sufficient to
rebut the presumption of the existence of that already recorded on the Definitive
Map and Statement the ambiguity of symbols for cart road bridleways; cart road
footpaths; roads use as public paths and also due to section 56(1) of the WCA
1981 Act where the depiction of a way as a RUPP on the definitive map was
conclusive evidence of the existence of bridleway rights it proved difficult to

properly reclassify such a route to a footpath under section 54 of the WCA1981.

Therefore, if evidence existed that a way shown as a RUPP should have been
shown as a footpath, or indeed should not have been shown at all, it should be
tested by way of a modification order under section 53(3)(c) of the 1981 Act, which
requires all the relevant evidence to be taken into account thereby meeting the

requirement for the ‘discovery of evidence’ as set out under that Act.

The full extent of the public status of the route began to be questioned in about
2001. Then on the 13" April 2004 the Applicants, wishing to verify vehicular
access to their property (section A to B), submitted the claim to change the existing
cart road bridleway (CRB) to a byway open to all traffic (BOAT) and are using
Wildlife & Countryside Act (WCA) 1981 section 53(3)(c)(i). The calling into
guestion of the route, for the purposes of this claim is 13" April 2004.

Under section 67(3)(a) of the 2006 Natural Environment and Rural Communities
Act (NERC) it is stated that if a DMMO application for a byway open to all traffic
was made before the 19" May 2005 then section 67(1) does not apply. This
means that the route in question, A to B, is not changed and remains ambiguously
designated as a CRB. It is this situation that is now being investigated to
determine whether or not the public have the right to use the way in motorised

vehicles, on horseback or with a horse drawn cart.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo§§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



4. Applicants’ Evidence Report

4.1.

4.2.

A Definitive Map Modification order (DMMO) application incorporating: a report
with 13 historical documents, 5 witness statements and 6 evidence forms, has
been submitted under section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act (WCA) 1981.

The Applicants submitted, along with the relevant forms and submission plan (Fig.
4.1), a report entitled “The Old Parish Road and CRB 23" with 13 pieces of
evidence (Appendixes 2 to 39). The title shows that they believe that the cart road
bridleways (CRB) 21, 22 and 23 had the status of an “Old Parish Road”, (i.e.
highway for public vehicular use) which included these already registered public

rights of way.

Cleddon Stile
\Gwdéoo
\}
o
The Lo
Bank
Cottage
Glen
Liecan Beck Cote gt
Cartref Yew Tree
Coftage
Laurel Bush
Castie Dean Weaedbine
Great Hill Cottage
Issues
Alpine
Bungalow Hillside Cottage
L -é
! %
Z Willowdene
<
‘% Hill Croft oot
Cottage
2880
- High
Bodmin View
.- Rosehill o 8
A $
Bargans o Sinks %
Cotiage O~
A g &
L
=\
W A4
<o
T a
o=
Sz
Fig. 4.1: Applicants’ submission plan MCC
REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 9

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogzél-to B 8th July 2016.doc



4.3.

4.4.

Although the applicants have omitted CRB 20 from their list, the full length of the
route, as marked on their submission plan (Fig. 4.1), is being investigated.
Additionally, restricted byway (RB) 24, as a continuous through route, is also
researched as this may have a bearing or give support to higher public rights on
both routes.

The wording “Old Parish Road” is discussed in more detail in Chapter 6. The
phrase has been used on technical drawings submitted as part of a planning
application which is descriptive use only and therefore does not prove public
vehicular rights.

APPLICANTS’ REPORT

4.5,

4.6.

The status of the Old Parish Road, which is comprised of CRBs 21 22, and 23.
When searching through documentary evidence to find information on the origin of
any highway, sometimes there is one piece of evidence that is so clear and cogent
that, on its own, it can indicate the status of the route in question. Sometimes
there is no single decisive document, and it is necessary to assemble a sequence
of documentary references which, when taken together, show on the balance of
probabilities that the right being asserted exists. That is the task in this case (ref;
commission for new Towns v. JJ Gallagher [2003] 2 P&CR 3; [2002] EWHC 2668).
There is no single ‘decisive’ piece of evidence, either to show public vehicular
rights, or that the road was only ever a private road, perhaps with a public
bridleway along it. But there is a considerable pattern of evidence which, if taken
together and construed in context, points, on the balance of probabilities, to CRBs
21/22/23 being part of a longer public vehicular road, albeit a minor one
predominantly used by local people.
Comment
45.1. The report of vehicular use, here, being predominantly by local people
supports the fact that this is not a public vehicular through route and is not

used by the public at large.

The “private road” guestion.

If the network of roads/tracks including The Old Parish Road was only a network of
private roads for landowners’ access, why are there so many branches? There is
no pattern of consistency between the roads and the plots alongside. The
irregularity of the roads suggests antiquity and, if set out by an inclosure process, it
seems very wasteful of land and of repair resources. Inclosure tended to

rationalise roads and plot shapes and sizes. This area appears to be an ancient,

10

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOQ%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



irregular landscape. There is no express evidence that the road, of which CRBs
21/22/23 form part, was set out as, or later regarded as, a private road of the
benefit of one or a number of landowners. The name itself suggests it was not
private. Furthermore, the landowner(s) adjacent to CRBs 21, 22 and 23 do not
have any easement of vehicular access in their deeds and title to property (as per
the conveyance of 1952). If The Old Parish Road was only a private road, with
there being so many individual adjoining properties, it is almost inconceivable that
the properties would be conveyed without an easement of access where such
existed before sale. There is available a specimen conveyance of a property
adjoining/served by this road — there is no expression or reservation of any private
road’.

Comment

4.6.1. Irreqularity of roads. The steepness of the topography in the area has

possibly influenced the pattern of routes that ascend Llandogo Hill.

4.6.2. Inclosure Award for this area does not appear to exist and therefore is not

available to support the alleged public vehicular rights. Additionally, the
Manor of Llandogo was researched and there were no plans attached to
those documents to support any type of public right.

4.6.3. The name of the road. The lane is referred to by a number of names

among which are “Bargan’s Lane” and “John Young’s Lane” probably as it
is near and leads to John Young’s cottage. The Applicants are calling the
route in question the “Old Parish Road”. Giving a route a hame does not
make it public. The origin of this name is from technical drawings
submitted as part of a 1989 planning application (Appendix 42) in which the
term “Old Parish Road” is only descriptive and does not prove public

vehicular rights.

4.7. How old is this road?

The oldest document showing any part of the road is a plan made in connection

with deeds for Cleddon Shoots in 1828 (Appendix 11). This shows a road coming
in from the south — it is hard to see that this could be any other than The Old
Parish Road / CRB 23. Further, the whole of the road is shown in the tithe plan of
1846. In Roberts v Wester [1967] QB 298, it was held that where a road was
shown as existing in 1859, it was almost impossible for a highway authority
successfully to argue that it did not exist in 1836 when the Highway Act 1835 came
into force. On the balance of probabilities The Old Parish Road existed in 1835

substantially as it is now.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 11
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedog?%to B 8th July 2016.doc



Comment
4.7.1. The 1828 and 1834 Deed papers for Cleddon Shoots (Appendixes 11 &14)

have double line markings that are indicative of the route in question. The

1834 Deed plan does show double pencil markings that assist in locating
the area of land shaded pink. However, this does not prove any public
status for the route in question. Other routes shown on this plan are
shaded along with the reference “To Llandogo” or “From Trelleck” which
when compared with the highway records shows that this type of shading
and reference supports public rights. While in contrast the simple pencil
markings for the route in question are only indicative of location and not of
public status.

4.7.2. The 1835 Highway Act. It is acknowledged that a route shown to pre-exist

1836 would then be maintained by the local Authority at public expense.
However, the public status of the route and the level of maintenance would
not have been stipulated. In this case only two commercial maps pre-date
the 1835 Act and, although poorer in quality than the 1830s Ordnance
Survey map, are historical documents which may show an alignment that
coincides with parts of the route in question. These 1823 & 1830
commercial maps record topographical features only and do not specify the
public or private usage of the route in question.

4.7.3. The 1846 Tithe Map (Appendix 17) shows the route in question to be

shaded terracotta and, when taken together with other historical mapping,
suggests that the route is public. Whether or not the route in question has
public or private status is not the matter raised by this claim. The matter
that is being investigated is what type of public usage is being attributed to
the route in question and this document alone does not support the claimed
public vehicular rights.

4.7.4. The two commercial maps of 1823 & 1830 and the 1846 Tithe map are
evidence to the existence of the route in question therefore impossible for
the Authority to argue that it did not exist pre-1836. However, while the
Tithe map shows CRB23 as shaded, the earlier maps do not. The
inconsistencies of these earlier maps does not support the claim for either
public or private vehicular rights.

4.7.5. The comparison of all the evidence does suggest that the route in question
was not dedicated as highway pre-1835 which would mean that the route
would not be automatically maintainable, even if caused to exist by a ‘body

politic or corporate’.

! Rights of Way Law Review |[March 1992| Section 2.1 by Professor K. Davies, Barrister

12 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOQQ?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



4.8. Thereis no inclosure award for this land

A thorough search has been made for any records of parliamentary inclosure, or
inclosure by agreement, of the land where this route, and the properties it serves,
lie. This land was in the Manor of Llandogo, which was held by the Church of
Wales, and there is no record that any inclosure process was carried out. The
inclosure act and award for the Parish of Llandogo expressly do not extend to the
Manor of Llandogo. This absence of deposited documents — or any reference to
inclosure — is supported by a report by the Inland Revenue’s District Value, in
1952, which report refers to the parish of Llandogo inclosure, and also to the
absence of any other plans or maps of the manor.

Comment

4.8.1. The Enclosure Award Act dated 9 March 1821 for Trellech (Fig. 11.2) does

not show the area or the route in question therefore is not available to

support public vehicular status. Instead other historical documents need to
be relied on. Additionally, the manorial documents for Llandogo were
researched and these documents added no further support to any type of

public right.

4.9. Thetithe award and plan (Appendixes 16 & 17)

The tithe award does not appear to list “public roads”, and so is not helpful in

determining the status of the road. The tithe plan shows the road coloured in a
typical sienna colour, like all the roads in the area. Roads were not productive and
therefore not liable to a tithe rent charge, whether public or private. However,
where there is other evidence of status (which in this case there is) then the tithe
award might be taken as a small piece of evidence consistent with that other
evidence (Maltbridge Island Management Co. v. SoS for Environment [1998]
EWHC admin 820 31 July 1998).

Comment

49.1. The 1846 Tithe Map for Trellech (Fig. 11.10) does show the route in

guestion. However, this does not suggest what type of public rights already

exist for the route in question. You will note that, when compared with
other records, all public rights of ways are shaded therefore no differences

in public status can be determined by this piece of evidence.

4.10. FEirst Edition Ordnance Survey map and Book of Reference (Appendixes 18,
19 & 20)

The Old Parish Road is shown on the 1% Edition Os 25”= 1 mile map as a road,

with, at least as regards the northern portion(s), individual plot numbers. The

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 13
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedog?@to B 8th July 2016.doc



4.11.

companion Book of Reference is not helpful — it lists the plot number, and the

acreage, but this Book of Reference does not have any descriptions of land use.

All we can say here is that the OS Map shows the road in a similar way to other

public roads, and as part of a through-route.

Comment

4.10.1.The 1881 Ordnance Survey Map (Fig.11.11) does show the route in
guestion clearly bounded by solid lines. The solid unbroken lines represent

a boundary of some type such as a fence, hedge or wall while double
pecked lines record a change in surface. It is noted from this 1881 OS Map
that the route in question has structural boundaries at the northern and
southern ends which suggest that there is no through route in a northerly or
southerly direction. In contrast the majority of the networks of routes from
the east to west ascending the mountainside are not crossed by solid lines
showing that no barriers were obstructing the routes as they ascended the
mountainside. There is no differentiation between the types of routes and
all footpaths, bridleways and roads are depicted with similar lines. This
1881 OS map does not specify whether or not the route in question is a

public right of way for motorised vehicles.

The Finance Act 1910 (Appendix 21)

This is the single strongest piece of evidence of public road status. The Old Parish

Road is shown “coloured out” from the adjoining plots of land. This is consistent
with the requirements of the Act that all land must be valued “except land held by a
rating authority”. The parish council as highway authority, and its successor, rural
district council as highway authority, were both rating authorities for the purposes
of the Act. The Inland Revenue valuers did not treat footpaths and bridleways in
this way. Footpaths and bridleways were not “coloured out” on the plans, but
instead received deduction from the valuation in the “field books”. This is
indicative that The OIld Parish Road was regarded in 1910 as a public road other
than a footpath or bridleway. This is very powerful evidence. It would require
extremely cogent evidence of a mistake being made by the IR valuer to diminish its
weight (Robinson Webster v. Agombar 9 April 2001, (CH) HC 000095).

Comment

4.11.1.The 1910 Finance Act Working Map (Fig. 11.17) shows the route in

guestion as uncoloured or “white out”. Usually it is found that when

comparing the Finance Act Map with the highways mapping data set that
those roads shown “white out” on the one map are shown shaded on the
other respectively.  However, there are exceptions to this regular

interpretation of the records. The irregularity is presented here in this area

14

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo§§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



as many of the other routes are “white out” and are not recorded as roads
for public vehicular use but are instead recorded as public footpaths. There
are other examples that have been taken before the Planning Inspector and
in those cases it has been determined that no public vehicular rights

existed on the roads shown “white out”.

4.12. County road status (Appendixes 22 & 23)
By the time of the definitive map survey in the early 1950s, the bottom end of the

route that is, to its north, recorded as CRBs 20-23, was already recorded as county
maintainable highway C40-7, as far north as to a point just west of the south side
of The Mount. There is no place of public resort’ for this county road to go to other
than its continuation as the CRBs. It is highly unlikely to be a publicly maintainable
highway as far as The Mount (a private dwelling), yet not similarly a publicly
maintainable highway continuing to the dwellings to the north. Further, there is
evidence that the highway authority has improved the next section, CRB 20, as a
vehicular road, in more-recent years. This course of actions is indicative that the
highway authority regarded the route as a public road primarily serving as property
access, and surfaced sections accordingly. There is no record of a formal
‘adoption’ of these improved sections. Further, ‘adoption’ of a hitherto private
road, which is then improved at the public’s expense, when it serves only as
access to private property, is both highly unlikely, and probably misapplication of
public moneys.
Comment
4.12.1. The County Road C40-7 (Fig. 13.2) is recorded on the historical highway
maps although there is no recorded explanation of how the classifying of

C40-7 came about.

4.12.2. The 1949 highway record (Fig. 13.1) is the only dated selection of highway
maps bound in book form and the relevant map sheet shows that C40-7
was recorded as highway.

4.12.3. The 1952 Draft Definitive Map (Fig.12.1) shows a section of CRB20 to have
been crossed out. The reason for this is that when the 1949 highway
records were researched it was discovered that this section was already
recorded as public vehicular highway C40-7. Therefore, as this section of
CRB20 was already recorded on the historical highway records as C40-7, it
did not need to be re-recorded and was for this reason removed from the

Definitive Map records that were finally published in 1967.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 15
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedoggbto B 8th July 2016.doc



4.13.

4.14.

The definitive map survey 1951 (Appendixes 24 & 25 (Statements))

The record of the survey made for the original Definitive Map is itself evidential.

The description of the route as a “rough surfaced road”; that it was passable by

lorries;

and the fact that the local surveyors did not regard it as merely a footpath

or bridleway. It would seem to be local knowledge at play here, rather than any

express reference to old records. Because this part of the full length of the road

was not already recorded by the Highway Authority as a public repairable highway,

it was entirely proper and consistent with Government advice for the road to be

recorded as a road used as a public path (RUPP), sub-classified as a CRB due to
its width.

Comment

4.13.1.

4.13.2.

The Definitive Map and Statement relevant dated 1 July 1952 is a register

of historical public rights of way and not a register for maintenance liability.
Although, legislation does state that the Authority has a duty to maintain the
surface of a public right of way, the level of maintenance is only up to that
which is normally required for the certain category of public right of way.
For greater explanation of the Definitive Map and Statement, see Chapter
12.

In the 1950s at the time of the compilation of the Definitive Map and
Statement the status of the public right was difficult to determine and the
decision was taken in Monmouthshire to classify certain types of public
rights of way as cart road footpaths or cart road bridleways. These
classifications (that are not defined in the 1949 National Parks & Access to
the Countryside Act) were applied to “roads used as public paths” (RUPPSs)
where it was difficult to determine the type of public right that enjoyed
regular use of the route. However, these classifications neither specify
public vehicular use nor verify whether or not the route is publicly

maintained.

A conveyance of 1952 (Appendixes 26 to 30)

A conveyance dated 21 March 1952 passed to the Applicants (the owners of

property served by the alleged BOAT) on purchase of their property. This

conveyance names ‘Great Hill’and ‘Glyn all’ (now “Glyncote”) and plots 653 and

654 on

the Ordnance Survey Map of 1921. The property conveyed is described as

being ‘bounded... by the public road leading up to a place there called Great Hill...’

There is no grant or reservation in this conveyance of any private means of access

to the property, on or any alternative means of access whatsoever. This is strong

evidence of reputation that the road now subject of this order was regarded in

16

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCogciReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



1952 by vendor and purchaser (one might reasonably assume good local

knowledge — see the names, location, and occupations of the parties named in the

conveyance) — as a public road providing all, and vehicular, access to the property.

Comment

4.14.1. The Conveyance of freehold property known as Rock Cottage, Llandogo in
the County of Monmouth dated 21 March 1952 is difficult to interpret

without the ‘annexed’ plan as, firstly, ‘Great Hill’ is the name of the area and
not a single property and, secondly, the location of the property known
today as “Glyncote” has never been referenced as plot number 679 on any
Ordnance Survey maps.

4.14.2. Thirdly, the Tithe Map does not use this plot number 679 as mentioned in
the description while the 1881 OS Map does use the plot number 679 twice
which is shown to be intersected by a road.

4.14.3. The phrase “public road” is difficult to attribute to a single route as the
“Great Hill” area is criss-crossed by public rights of way and, with no plan
included with the 1952 Conveyance, it is difficult to verify the actual
alignment referred to.

4.14.4. The word “road” may assist the claim although this is ambiguous when
compared with ordnance survey maps that frequently use the symbol ‘F.P.’
for footpaths.

4.14.5. In conclusion, the 1952 Conveyance with no plan attached is unreliable and
has a number of discrepancies which makes the weight of this historical
document weak in support of the claim. For a detailed explanation see
Chapter 5.

4.15. Evidence of reputation

Evidence of reputation is manifested in the way people who might be expected to
know about the road have regarded it, and treated it, over a period of time. There
are two types of evidence of reputation here: that of the Highway Authority (which
has surfaced parts of the route for vehicles), and that of local residents who would
be expected to know (Trafford v St Faith’s RDC (1910) JP 297). The very fact that
the southern portion of the route was removed from the definitive map as a RUPP
at the first reclassification, and placed instead on the ‘List of Streets’, is evidence
of the whole route being a public vehicular road. If the whole route was not a pre-
1836 public vehicular road, then for any portion of it to become publicly repairable
would require a formal act of adoption by the highway authority. None is recorded
or asserted. The fact that the highway authority felt able to treat the southern
portion (CRB 20) as a publicly maintainable vehicular road, and later to make up
CRBs 20, 21 and 22, for the benefit of the public in light vehicles, is indicative that

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 17
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg?to B 8th July 2016.doc



the authority regarded the whole road as a public road for vehicles. No authority
would make up a ‘private road’ for the benefit of occupiers in to a public road, thus
making a cul-de-sac, without an act of adoption. There is none recorded or
asserted. In 1994 the Director of Highways for the highway authority stated
formally that he believed this route to be a public vehicular highway; surely he
should know?

The local people who have made statements about the use of this road are clear
that it has had a lot of varied use by vehicular traffic. Much of this use is also
consistent with a private road, but these witnesses are clear that they regarded it
as a public road — no vehicular user has ever been turned back, no landowner
asserts “ownership” of this road.

Comment

4.15.1. The evidence of reputation does not substantiate fact unless supported by

documentary evidence. The Authority did not surface parts of the route for

vehicles.

4.15.2. There is a misunderstanding between the different map records. The
section of the route referenced as C40-7 on the “List of Streets” was also
recorded for a time on the Draft Definitive Map complied and published for
public inspection on the 16 December 1952. During further investigation
into all the available documents it was revealed that the route marked on
the Draft Definitive Map was already registered as a public highway and
therefore was not required to be recorded a second time and was therefore
removed from the Definitive Map prior to its final publication on the 3™
November 1967.

4.15.3. The southern portion was not removed from the Definitive Map data set due
to a reclassification. Monmouthshire County Council did not complete and
has never completed a reclassification of RUPPs. Therefore this is not
evidence for the whole route in question to be a public right of way for
vehicles.

4.15.4. The Authority did not regard the entire route as a public road for the use of
vehicles. If the Authority had considered this then the “List of Streets”
would have identified the termination point of the adopted highway further
to the north covering the remainder of the route referred to as CRB 20 and
to continue to include CRB 23. This is not the case and the adopted
highway C40-7 terminates at the south west of the property now called
Bargans Cottage.

4.15.5. There is no record of adoption for C40-7 because there was no legislative

process for this at the time the road was constructed.

18

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCogéReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



4.15.6. The Highway section of the Council did not consider the route in question
as a public highway and would not have regarded it as such as it was not
made up to the standard similar to that of a “Listed” county road such as
C40-7.

4.15.7. At section 14 of the Applicants’ submission there is no 1994 letter from the
Director of Highways giving any formal statement with regard to the status
of the route in question. There is, however, a three page extract of the
A36666 Planning Application dated 5" October 1993 (Appendix 31 to 33)
and also a letter dated 29" October 1993 (Appendix 34). The October
1993 letter from Highways to the Director of Technical Services only refers
to observations following the granting of planning permission under
A30965.

4.15.8. Furthermore, the Director of Highways for the Highway Authority did not
formally make a statement with regard to the status of the route in question.
Instead, in addressing observations associated with planning consents for
both A29567and A30965 the County Engineer for Highways stated in
letters dated 7" September 1988 and 3 July 1989 (Appendixes 40 & 41)
that the proposed development abuts a private road that is part of a
network of similar substandard roads in the Llandogo area and in his
opinion the roads are unsuitable to accommodate further residential

development.

4.16. What’s in a name?

The name ‘The OId Parish Road’ is itself evidential. The parish was the highway

authority from at least 1555 through to 1894 when the rural district councils
inherited the role (passing to the counties in 1929). The parishes were responsible
for the repair of all types of highway, including footpaths and bridleways, but in
practice only the more important roads received ‘proactive’ maintenance. An ‘old
parish road’ could be only a bridleway, but its physical character is an evidential
issue —is it likely that a road amply wide enough for vehicles, well made, and
enclosed, would be merely a bridleway? Why would a public body put such
resources into such a limited facility? In the case of Commission for New Towns v.
JJ Gallagher, in considering the meaning of ‘parochial road’, the judge agreed with
leading expert Dr Yolande Hodson that a parochial road was more likely to be a
public vehicular road than only a public path. A ‘parochial road’is a Pparish road’.
Taken with the evidence of the description ‘public road” in the conveyance of 1952,
with no express private vehicular access, it is unlikely that in this instance, a/the

parish road’ was only a bridleway.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 19
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogngto B 8th July 2016.doc



4.17.

Comment

4.16.1. The Old Parish Road is a form of descriptive reference that was used only

in the planning application document, see Appendix 31, and has no legal
bearing as to the public status of the route in question.

4.16.2. Although physical attributes of the route in question are apparent these
cannot be taken into account when regarding the type of public rights that
possibly already exist over the way being investigated.

4.16.3. The Authority has never put resources into the route in question. Evidence
for this is that it was necessary for a member of the public to submit the
2001 mal-administration complaint. The recent surface work has occurred
as a one-off unprejudiced repair of the route in question to avoid the
consequences of the 2001 mal-administration.

4.16.4. A “parochial road” would only more likely be a public vehicular road if when
taken with all other historical evidence it showed that, on balance, the route
in question had existing public vehicular rights.

4.16.5.The 1952 Conveyance is compiled for the purposes of property
transference and not a document that proves public vehicular rights.
Phrases like “public road” used within such documents along with an
accompanying map (in this case it is missing) have to be considered with

other historical evidence before public rights may be determined.

Summary
We cannot state clearly how or when the Old Parish Road came into being, nor is

there any express indication of its status. There is a sequence of evidence that
indicates that the route existed as a “physical road” from before 1835, and that this
route was part of the local road network, albeit used almost totally by local traffic
(R v. Inhabitants of Southampton [1887] QB 590). The survey of 1910, made
under strict statutory discipline, recorded the route in a way consistent with its
being a public vehicular road, and the original definitive map survey in 1951 is also
consistent with a status higher than footpath or bridleway. Since then both the
Highway Authority (particularly in upgrading the status and condition of parts) and

local people have treated the route as a public vehicular road.

The test to be applied to this evidence is the simple balance of probabilities; when
all the evidence for and against public vehicular status is weighed, is it probable
that the Old Parish Road was, and therefore is, a public right of way for vehicles?
There is a considerable accumulation of evidence in favour; there is little evidence

against. The balance of probabilities test is satisfied, and an order should be

20

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCog%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



made to modify the RUPPs that comprise the Old Parish Road to the status of

Byway Open to All Traffic (BOAT).

Comment

4.17.1.In conclusion the route in question and the Llandogo/Trelleck Road are not
shown on the 1830 Ordnance Survey, David & Charles and Cassini Maps
(Chapter 11: Figs. 11.8, 11.7 & 11.6 respectively). Therefore, there was no
requirement at that time for unclassified county road C40-7 and the main
access up to the “Great Hill” area was from the northeast and east. The
Prices and Greenwoods maps that are of poorer topographical quality
possibly record sections of the route in question. This possibility does not
give weight to there being public vehicular rights over the route in question.
The lack of pre-1835 records also suggests that the route in question is not
maintainable at public expense.

4.17.2.When the 1902 & 1921 Ordnance Survey Maps are compared with the
earlier 1800s mapping (Chapter 11: Figs. 11.14 & 11.15) it is noted that
steps, along with the symbol ‘F.P.’, for footpaths, are the descriptive tools
for the main route that leads up the side of the hill. This shows that public
vehicular rights were not established in antiquity and proves that the term
the Old Parish Road” was purely descriptive and incorrectly used in the
planning application and correspondence of 1993.

4.17.3.The route in question is shown on the 1846 Tithe map (Chapter 11
Fig.11.10) and is shaded the same way as other paths that are registered
as either footpaths or the main public vehicular highway. Therefore, the
colouring of routes on the tithe map is not exclusive or inclusive to any
particular type of public or private right. It is, instead, a format for depicting
ways and separating them from the surrounding land.

4.17.4. The local traffic does not help determine public vehicular rights. This is
more in keeping with the suggestion of private vehicular rights as the public
at large have not and do not use the route in question in mechanically
propelled vehicles.

4.17.5.The 1910 Finance Act Map (Chapter 11: Figs. 11.16) does show the route
“white out” in a way that is normally shown for roads and not “public rights
of way or user” which are recorded differently on these historical records.
However, the distinction of bridleways and byways is embraced by the word
‘road” and therefore the Finance Act records do not always assist in the
determination of public vehicular rights over the route in question.

4.17.6. The Definitive Map and Statement, relevant date 15 July 1952, records the
route in question ambiguously as a “road used as a public path” and has

the subtitle “cart road bridleway”. This means that although the route in

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 21
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg%to B 8th July 2016.doc



4.17.7.

4.17.8.

4.17.9.

guestion has the physical nature of a “road” it is used mainly as a public
“footpath” and there is no evidence to suggest that it is used by the public
at large on horseback or in motorised vehicles. Therefore, the route in
guestion is not awarded the higher status of a byway open to all traffic
(BOAT).

The Highway Authority has not upgraded the status of the route although
surfacing work of the route in question has been carried out to prevent the
expense of a mal-administration appeal.

Local people have used the route as access to their properties suggesting
that the route in question was a “shared private driveway” and therefore is
not a public vehicular road maintainable at public expense.

On balance, when all the evidence is taken together, it is shown that the
route in question (A to B) should be registered as a public footpath.
However, this does not prevent those already with private vehicular rights

exercising such use.

22

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCogc?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



5. 1952 Conveyance of Land

5.1. Section 13 of the Applicants’ report is the 1952 Conveyance of freehold land

known as Rock Cottage in the area of “Great Hill’, Llandogo, in the County of

Monmouth dated 215 March 1952 [original plan not available]. Appendixes 26-30.

5.2. The 1952 Conveyance refers to numerous maps and plot numbers that require

investigation to determine the exact location and alignment of the “public road”

mentioned within the Deed. The mention of the “public road” does not specify the

type of public rights, the maintenance responsibility or the extent or level of that

responsibility. The 1952 Conveyance alone does not define the type of public

rights over the route in question.

5.3. A modern interpretation of the words of the

1952 Conveyance reads as follows:-

5.3.1.All the land in Llandogo together with
the dwelling house known as Rock
Cottage and all other buildings all of
which form part of the enclosure
numbered 653 and 654 on the 1921
Ordnance Survey Map (OS) 21.5 and
are shown on the plan annexed and
edge red [no plan available] along with
a written description which was in a

conveyance dated 3" December 1887.

5.4. The modern words for the description in the
1887 Conveyance reads as follows with
emphasis added:-
5.4.1.All that land orchard garden and

premises... in Llandogo...and bounded
by properties....and by the public road
leading up to a place there called the
Great Hill on all or most parts and
sides...and a small portion of which
property that is intersected by a road
leading from the Trelleck Road through

the same property to a place called the

Plots 653 & 654

Fig. 5.1: 1921 Ordnance Survey

Sheet 21:5 RO
o e o8 = __:.1 2 4 l‘
@=L s A

... “road”
leading from
* the Trelleck Rd

" :
- Plot 679 [

Fig. 5.2: 1881 Ordnance Survey
Sheet 21:5 GRO

Glyn All... plot numbered 679 [in the Tithe Map of Llandogo [sic]]. (See Fig

5.2 the 1881 OS map.)

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016

23

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg@to B 8th July 2016.doc




5.5.

5.6.

5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

The 1952 Conveyance refers firstly to plots numbered 653 and 654 marked on
both the 1902 (Fig. 11.14) and 1921 OS Maps (Fig.5.1) while the same plots are
given different numbers on both the 1846 Tithe (Fig.11.10) and 1881 OS Maps
(Fig 11.11). Secondly, the Conveyance refers to a descriptive extract from an
1887 conveyance to locate the land for Rock Cottage defining it to be “bounded by
properties...and the public road....on all or most parts and sides” and incorrectly
mentions a tithe map plot numbered 679 in the Parish of Llandogo. There is no plot
with this number on the Tithe Map for the area being investigated.

Instead, the 1881 OS Map uses plot number 679 as described in the 1887
Conveyance. Furthermore, on the 1881 OS map plot number 679 is marked up

twice and intersected by a road. (Fig 5.2).

The location of the property known today as Glyncote has never been referenced
as plot number 679 on the Tithe and all Ordnance Survey Maps. The 1881 OS
map shows that plot, “Glyn All", number 679 located a fair distance from the
landownership extent for Rock Cottage. On the other hand the ambiguous
wording of the 1887 Conveyance that mentions ‘Glyn All' could be instead referring
to “The Glyn” which may mean Glyn Cote a property that lies adjacent to the land
for Rock Cottage and is intersected by a road. Without the original plan to verify
the extent of the land and the location of the “public road” mentioned, although plot
numbers are used, numerous interpretation possibilities arise. Moreover, the term
“public road” is difficult to attribute to a single route as the whole hillside is criss-

crossed by public rights of way.

A distinction is noted within the 1887 Conveyance description between a “road”
that is described as “public” and a “road” that is implied by the descriptive omission
as “not public’. The word “public” is not in dispute, for the route in question along
with numerous public footpaths is registered on the Definitive Map and Statement.
This suggests that the omission of the word “public” to describe the road is in error
while the term “road” is only descriptive and does not specify the type of public
right. The word “road” may assist the claim, although this is ambiguous when
compared with ordnance survey maps which frequently use the symbol “F.P.” for
footpaths. The mix of the terminology and their legal meanings are ambiguous;

“road” could be a term for either bridleway or footpath.

It is established from the Definitive Map Statements that the whole area is called
“Great Hill” and that this is not the name of a particular property. The 1902 and
1920s OS Maps all label the ways leading up to the area known as the “Great Hill”

24

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo§§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



with the symbol “F.P.” for footpaths along with the numerous line markings that
indicate steps. This suggests that the route in question was probably not an
unconnected solitary length of bridleway but, instead, along with all the other paths

ascending/descending the “Great Hill”, was regarded as a footpath.

5.10. In conclusion, the 1952 Conveyance is a legal document for land sale purposes
only. It has been shown here that this Conveyance contains errors of reference
and is missing its associated plan which means that only an unsubstantiated
interpretation can be applied. For these reasons the proof and weight of this
historical document is unreliable when used to support the claim for public
vehicular rights.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 25
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogﬁl-bto B 8th July 2016.doc



6. Historical Planning Applications

6.1. Section 14 of the Applicants’ report is the Planning Report A36666 dated 5™
October 1993 along with the letter dated 29" October 1993 from Gwent County
Council Highways (Appendixes 31 to 34). The letter referred to (from the Director

of Highways dated 1994) is not included in this section and not investigated here.

6.2. The planning history for the plot, outlined in red on the map below, situated west of
Glen Cote is examined here. A detailed plan of the proposed development under

planning permission A36666 is shown on Appendix 42.

Fig. 6.1:
Ordnance Survey plan showing location of property to be developed outlined red: MCC

26 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ CountyeCoziciReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



6.3. The Planning Report considered by the Planning Committee for Application
A36666 (Appendix 32) entitled “AMENDED SITING OF APPROVED DWELLING”
refers to the route in question and states the following:-

“As the track is formally designated as a public right of way, over which the
public have right of access with vehicles, the principle of use of the track is not
at issue. As a public highway the track and supporting wall should be
maintained to a standard satisfactory for accommodating vehicular traffic,
irrespective of whether the existing site is developed. The traffic likely to be
generated by a single dwelling would be relatively light. Domestic traffic is
likely to be the lightest to use the track.”

6.4. This statement is correct in as far as describing the route in question as a public
right of way is concerned. However, it is incorrect in stating that there are public

vehicular rights.

6.5. Planning law and guidance does not place a duty on the Council to determine
public or private vehicular rights prior to granting of planning permission. Planning
permissions address the building structure, design, effect on location/habitat and
the safety of vehicular access. The reference to public vehicular rights in the
context of these planning documents and report is incorrect, the reason being that
the Planning Section of the Council does not have the authority to make any

assertions regarding public or private vehicular rights.

6.6. The comment in the Decision Report for Application A36666 does not support the

claim that public vehicular rights already exist over the route in question.

A planning history

6.7. Planning application A29567 for a dwelling and garage was initially approved on
the 4 January 1989 and among the consultation correspondence is a letter dated
7" September 1988 (Appendix 40) from the Gwent County Council, County
Engineer and Surveyor to Monmouth Borough Council stating the following:-
“This proposed development site abuts a private road that is part of a network
of similar substandard roads in the Llandogo area. These roads being narrow
and steeply graded with poor horizontal alignment are unsuitable for further
residential development. Consequently | would not recommend this proposal

from a County Highway standpoint.”

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 27
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedo%?to B 8th July 2016.doc



6.8.

6.9.

6.10.

6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

The above comment did not appear in the A36666 planning application. The use
of the phrase “private road” has two implications; 1) that the route is believed to be
a “private shared driveway” and 2) that the terminology is incorrect as any similar
routes may also be used (shared) by the public in a different capacity. It is shown
here that the Gwent County Council Highways Department officer did not say that
the route in question was a way “over which the public have right of access with

vehicles”.

Within planning file A29567 is another letter from the owner of Cleddon Stile, Mr T.
Wilkinson John, dated 10™ August 1988 (Appendix 43) that states:-
“...the access road (Old Parish Road) is not adopted; its maintenance is the

responsibility of the adjacent landlords.”

This comment shows that a local inhabitant was aware that the route in question
was not publicly maintained but instead was the responsibility of the adjacent

landowners.

Mr T.W. John has also written a witness statement dated 17" October 2001
(Appendix 36) which mainly reports that “vehicular access was quite unrestricted”.
Although this is reported regarding vehicular use, the majority of that use seems to
be by those people in vehicles that have been invited to dwellings in the “Great
Hill” area. This type of use does not represent the public at large. This 2001
Witness statement is discussed in Chapter 7 of this Report.

A consultation letter, dated 3" July 1989 (Appendix 41), from the County Engineer
and Surveyor of Gwent County Council, to Monmouth Borough Council in
response to Planning Application A30965, dated the 6 September 1989, states that
having been previously consulted under outline application code A29567 his views
remain unchanged. He confirms his original observations regarding the route in
question which were that, along with other ways in the area, any additional
development would not be recommended. This letter repeats the fact that he did

not stipulate that the route in question had public vehicular rights.

The Planning Report for Application A36666 entitled “AMENDED SITING OF
APPROVED DWELLING” dated 5" October 1993 was then compiled. This report
refers to the route in question incorrectly. From the information investigated within
all the available office files it is not possible to ascertain how this erroneous

paragraph came to be inserted within the Planning Report when it is shown that

28

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo2i:§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



both the Highway and Countryside sections submitted the facts regarding the level

of public rights over the route in question.

6.14. The consultation letter, dated 29™ October 1993 with reference A36666, from the
County Engineer of Highways (Appendix 34) states that there were “no
observations on the amended siting of the dwelling following grant of permission
under A30965”. The contents of this letter do not refer to any public vehicular
rights over the route in question. It is noted on file that planning application A36666
was granted full permission on the 1% December 1993 and that this was renewed
in 1998 under planning Application M/2637 along with a note to the applicant

regarding the route in question and the level of public rights over it.

6.15. The comments in the 1993 Planning Report have resulted in a mal-administration
complaint which was submitted by a Mr Greggains on the 22" January 2001. The
outcome of this case of mal-administration was that the Countryside Service of
Monmouthshire County Council undertook surfacing works by laying tarmac along
CRBs 20 to 22 to avoid the expense of attending the Courts.

6.16. To further negate the comment made in the A36666 Planning Application it is
necessary to be aware of the legal importance of the Definitive Map and Statement
in which strict legislative tests need to be carried out prior to any changes being

made to alignments on the Map.

6.17. The Definitive Map and Statement is the conclusive legal document of all
registered public rights of way and no comments within any other documentation
issued by any other department of the Council can be taken as fact regarding

public rights of way.

6.18. The legal position, as currently recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement
(relevant date 1%t July 1952) is that the public use of the route in question is
enjoyed by the public on horseback and foot for the first section A to B, and the

second section B to C on foot only.

6.19. The National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949 (NPACA) provided
that on the Definitive Map there should be included, in addition to every public
footpath and bridleway, other types of highways used by the public mainly for the
purposes for which footpaths or bridleways are so used, a category termed by the

Act as a “road used as a public path” (RUPP).

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 29
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogﬁlél-to B 8th July 2016.doc



6.20.

6.21.

6.22.

6.23.

Additionally, guidance was issued at the time of the initial Community Council
Survey in 1951 and reference was made to recording routes on the Definitive Map
as cart road bridleways used mainly as bridleways, or cart road footpaths used
mainly as footpaths. However, these non-statutory symbols remain, in accordance
with the 1949 NPACA, essentially referred to as roads used as public paths
(RUPPs).

This category of RUPP has proved to be unsatisfactory because the 1949 Act
failed to make it clear whether RUPPs were subject to public vehicular rights.

If public vehicular rights did exist, the Council would have had to make an order
under sections 53 or 54 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981. The effect of the
order would be to upgrade the route in question to byways open to all traffic

(BOATYS) i.e. subject to a public vehicular right.

To date such an order has not been made therefore the content of the 1993
planning report A36666 is incorrect. Moreover, the Planning Section of the Council
did not have the authority to make the allegations stated in that planning
document. In other words the route in question does not have public vehicular

rights because a planning report states as much.

30

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOE%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



7. Witness Statements

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

The Applicants’ report consists of five witness statements signed and dated in
2001 as they originally formed part of the documentation that was gathered in

support of actions against the Council.

These witness statements have been confirmed and re-signed in 2002 by each
person and are submitted as evidence in support of the claim. (Appendixes 35 to
39).

Mr Martin Roger Brown of Maylawns,
Landogo, states that he is a member of
the Trellech United Community Council
and has lived and worked in Llandogo
for the past 59 years and is a member
of a family that has been connected Liacan Sec
with the village for many centuries. o e
This is supported in his statement
where he records that his grandfather

ribacts Cotlage

lived in the region of the route in
question at Croft Cottage and his uncle P
lived in Misty Cottage (formerly
Ivydene). Although access and limited
parking for visitors was available along

the route in question there has to his

knowledge never been any restriction

applied to vehicles. He further reports Fig. 7.1:

that coal was delivered to the turning | Plan showing property locations: ~ MCC

circle at the rear of Glencote (Glyncote)

for collection by the residents of Priory Cottage. (Appendix 35)

Mr Thomas Wilkinson John, 6 Larkhill Close, Chepstow, states that he lived at
Cleddon Stile for 30 years between 1969 and 1999 and was not aware of any
restriction on the use of the route in question by vehicles. Since his occupation of
Cleddon Stile he noted constant use by a range of people namely the post, milk,
fuel (coal, wood, gas) deliveries. In addition, employees of Dwr Cymru, BT,
Swalec and emergency services were all able to attend to the needs of the

residents that lived on this hillside. Vehicular traffic was a regular element of the

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 31
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedo%%to B 8th July 2016.doc



local residents’ daily life. Further he reports that visitors to the Wye Valley and to
Cleddon Shoots used the route in question but found themselves in difficulty in

their vehicles due to route’s condition and terrain. (Appendix 36)

7.5. Mrs Amelia John, 6 Larkhill Close, Chepstow, states that she lived at Cleddon
Stile from 1969 to 1999 and during that time never encountered any restriction on
the public use of vehicles on the route in question. The daily delivery of milk and
post - also coal, oil, wood and gas - were regularly delivered to residents.
Tradesmen, delivery men, builders and others such as the Electricity, Water and
British Telecom employees all used the route in question. In addition, ambulance
and fire services and friends and relatives of the residents used the route in
question. Furthermore, other members of the public drove freely along the route in
question to view plots of land which were for sale. (Appendix 37)

7.6. Mr Martin James Woodford, Glyncote,

Bargain Lane, Llandogo, states that he
has lived at Glyncote since 1993 and
that during this time has not been aware
of any restriction on the use of the route i
in question by the members of the public ~ ' o Te
in motorised vehicles. He lists the g
vehicle users to be postmen, delivery
men, milkmen, tradesmen, builders, T o
removal firm workers, utility companies, =
ambulances, fire engines, police, visitors -
of residents and anyone else who has -
had a mind to use the route in question '
has freely done so. (Appendix 38) ) -~
7.7. Mr James Greggains, Ty-Dan-Cledan,

Llandogo, writes that Graham Brown, Fig. 7.2:
the brother of Roger Brown who owns | Plan showing property locations: ~ MCC
the shop in Llandogo, recalled there
never having been any restrictions on the public use of the route in question.
Graham Brown also said, to James during a telephone conversation on the 10"
December 2001 that coal had been delivered by trucks to a coal dump at the end
of the route in question. Further, Bill Morgan, a local farmer, would deliver coal to
Alan Brown and Will Reynolds who lived in separate houses north of the Cleddon
ravine (Shoots) from the coal dump at the end of the route in question using a

32 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016

MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOEQ?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



horse drawn sledge along the track that leads northwards around the ravine
(Shoots). (Appendix 39)

7.8. The witness statements all confirm the existence of a route that is not restricted as
evidenced by the local residents using the route in question in vehicles to gain
access to their homes. These inhabitants of the “Great Hill” have invited friends,
family and other people that provide services. Such people in their vehicles are
not regarded as the public at large as it can be taken that they are there at the
residents’ invitation and are therefore using the route in question in a private

capacity.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 33
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedo%@to B 8th July 2016.doc



8. Evidence Forms

8.1.

8.2.

In support of the application there are six evidence forms among which three are

by people who believe the route in question to be a public Byway Open to All

Traffic (BOAT). Two are by people who report that it has public Bridleway (BR)

status while one person states that they used the way as a public Footpath (FP).

Of these six submissions, three people believe the status of the route in question
to be that of a public BOAT and these are:-

8.2.1. Mrs A Harwood of Highview, Llandogo (Appendix 44.1 to 44.3) believes

the public status of the route to be that of a Byway Open to all Traffic
(BOAT) and states on her evidence form dated 22" April 2004 that use of
the route in question has been from “Bargans Cottage” to “sinks” for 8

years (1996 to 2004). The purpose of use was for recreation by means of

foot or bicycle. Mrs Harwood reports never:

encountering any gates or stiles,

being stopped or turned back,

being told by anyone that it was not a public route,

seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,
having to ask permission to use the route,

being told that the way was public

No additional information was supplied.

Comment

8.2.1.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004

evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Mrs Harwood has
had use of the route in question unhindered on foot and bicycle
for 19 years. There is no report of public vehicular use of the

route in question.

8.2.1.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

34

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo2i:§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



8.2.2. Dr R J Harwood of Croft Cottage, Llandogo (Appendix 45.1 to 45.3)
believes that the public status of the route is that of a BOAT and states on
his evidence form dated 22" April 2004 that the use of the route in question
has been from ‘Bargans Cottage’ to the ‘sinks’ for 8 years (1996 to 2004).
The purpose of use was for recreation by means of foot or bicycle. Dr
Harwood reports never:-

e encountering any gates or stiles,
¢ being stopped or turned back,
¢ being told by anyone that it was not a public route,
e seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,
¢ having to ask permission to use the route,
¢ being told that the way was public
No additional information was supplied.
Comment
8.2.2.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004
evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Dr Harwood has had
use of the route in question unhindered on foot and bicycle for 19
years. There is no report of public vehicular use of the route in
guestion.
8.2.2.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

8.2.3. Mr Andrew Tansill of Llecan Beck, Llandogo (Appendix 46.1 to 46.3)
believes that the public status of the route is that of a BOAT and states on
his evidence form dated 17" April 2004 that the use of the route in question
has been from “Bargans Cottage” Grid ref: 523027 to ‘Cleddon stile gate’
Grid ref: 522040 for 12 years (1993 to 2004). The purpose of use was for
gaining access to Llecan Beck by means of foot and vehicle. Mr Tansill
reports never:-

e encountering any gates or stiles,

¢ Dbeing stopped or turned back,

¢ Dbeing told by anyone that it was not a public route,

e seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,

¢ having to ask permission to use the route,

¢ being told that the way was public
Additionally it is reported that he was never made aware of any particular
person owning the land and that “the general public use the route in

guestion unimpeded for walking, bicycle and vehicular use”.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 35
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedoggbto B 8th July 2016.doc



Comment

8.2.3.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004

evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Mr Tansill has had
use of the route in question unhindered on foot and in a vehicle
for 23 years. Here is a report of private and public vehicular use
of the route in question.

8.2.3.2. This is the only form that mentions public vehicular rights over

the route in question for a period longer than the required 20
years. However, this in itself is not enough evidence to prove
wider public vehicular rights.

8.3. Among these six submissions, there is one person who believes the status of

the route in question to be that of a footpath:-

8.3.1. Mrs M Monks of Bodmin, Llandogo (Appendix 47.1 to 47.3) believes that

the public status of the route is that of a footpath and states on her

evidence form dated 15™ April 2004 that use of the route in question has
been from ‘the stream’ to ‘the woods’ for 17 years (1987 to 2004). The

purpose of use was for exercising dogs. Mrs Monks reports never:-

encountering any gates or stiles,

being stopped or turned back,

being told by anyone that it was not a public route,

seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,
having to ask permission to use the route,

being told that the way was public

No additional information was supplied.

Comment

8.3.1.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004

evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Mrs Monks has had

use of the route in question on foot for 28 years.

8.3.1.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

8.4. Of these six forms, two people believe the status of the route in question to be

that of a bridleway and these are:-

8.4.1. Mrs B Edwards of Bargans Cottage, Llandogo (Appendix 48.1 to 48.3)

believes the public status of the route is that of a bridleway and states on

her evidence form dated 18" April 2004 that use of the route in question

36

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgugntye(:ogciReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



has been from ‘Bargans Cottage’ Grid ref: 523027 to ‘Cleddon stile
Cottage’ Grid ref: 522040 for 8 years (1996 to 2004). The purpose of use
was for gaining access to home by means of a vehicle. B Edwards reports
never:-
e encountering any gates or stiles,
¢ being stopped or turned back,
¢ Dbeing told by anyone that it was not a public route,
e seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,
¢ having to ask permission to use the route,
¢ being told that the way was public
No additional information was supplied.
Comment
8.4.1.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004
evidence form. Therefore it is believed that B Edwards has had
use of the route in question unhindered in a vehicle for 19 years.
8.4.1.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

8.4.2. Ms D Mariana Robinson of Cascades, Llandogo (Appendix 49.1 to 49.2)
believes the public status of the route is that of a bridleway and states on
her evidence form dated 20" April 2004 that use of the route in question
has been from “stream near Bargans Cottage” to “woods and zig zag path”
for 20 years (1984 to 2004). The purpose of use was for visiting friends or
exercise on foot only. Ms Robinson reports never:-

e encountering any gates or stiles,
¢ being stopped or turned back,
¢ being told by anyone that it was not a public route,
e seeing any notices that carried such words as “Private” or “No Road”,
¢ having to ask permission to use the route,
¢ being told that the way was public
Also she reports no knowledge of a landowner and further states that the
route in question should remain as a public footpath as it was never
suitable for vehicular use.
Comment
8.4.2.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004
evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Ms Robinson has
had use of the route in question unhindered on foot for 31 years.
8.4.2.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 37
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogS?to B 8th July 2016.doc



8.4.2.3. Additionally, Ms Mariana Robinson, having had the opportunity to

read the file of evidence supplied by Sylvia Harris (Chapter 4),
has submitted in writing her understanding of that evidence
(Appendixes 50.1 to 50.7).

8.4.3. Below are extracts from Ms Robinson’s submission (Appendix 50.1)
The Status of the “Old Parish Road”

....didn’t see any reference to the name “Old Parish Road” anywhere.
...historical importance of WATER. ....at least 5 springs in this region.
In later years, water was also the reason that CRB40 [sic] (CRB20
(part)) became public highways as C40-7, by the construction of a
storage tank of water, again taken from the same spring, and which
supplied the village up until the early 1990s. ....was adopted by the
Council on behalf of the Water Board vehicles who regularly service
the tank. Similarly, council refuse wagons stop at the turning area.
They had no need to travel further than Bargans Cottage.

| dispute the report findings that CRB40 [sic] (CRB20 (part)) was part
of a continuous road that included CRBs 21, 22 and 23. Whilst |
believe there has always been a right of way for public access to the
springs, either on foot or with a cart, | don’t believe it was an historical
road that “went anywhere’.

There is no foundation under the widened turning area and the council
has now put tarmac on an unstable foundation upon which people

(including the general public) park their cars.

Comment

8.4.3.1. The Old Parish Road is a form of descriptive reference that was

used only in planning application documentation, see Appendixes
31, 40, 41 & 42, and has no legal bearing as to the public status

of the route in question.

8.4.3.2. The history of water suggests reasons for the recording of the

existing public footpaths that directly ascend the “Great Hill” and
one of those reasons is to gain access to collect potable fresh

water.

8.4.3.3. CRB20 (part) not “CRB40” did not become public highway C40-7.

The county unclassified road was already registered on the 1949
historical highway map records. There are two records for the
public highway network. The “List of Streets” which records the
highways that are maintained at public expense and the 1952

Definitive Map and Statement that registers historic public rights

38

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgugntye(:ogémference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



of way that are only maintained to the level required for their
registered use. The stages of the development of the Definitive
Map are detailed in Chapter 12 of this report. County
Unclassified Road C40-7 south of the route in question would
have influenced more regular, although limited, vehicular use.
This limited vehicular use reported in evidence forms and witness
statements is not the public at large. Furthermore, it is
documented here that the general public park their vehicles in the
widened turning area at the end of C40-7 on the east side of the
road.

8.4.4. Private road question (Appendix 50.2)
¢ The antiquity of pattern suggests paths and not roads. Many cottages
would have been tithe cottages to the bigger houses of the area. Itis
inconceivable that properties would be conveyed without proper
easements of vehicular access. The fact that they haven't any, is not
strong evidence that this was a private or public road — it is evidence
that people along the lane CRB 21-23 should NOT be using motorised
vehicles along a path. By now, there are many residents, including
Councillor Thomas, who say they have obtained a ‘“right from 20 years’
unhindered use, but this is not true of SH and AD’s plot — where no
house has existed before. lllegal use cannot be used to establish a
legal right.
¢ From Bargans Cottage to Misty Cottage — it is a bridleway. *At this
point the path is intersected east-west (E-W) by what is probably the
correct road, uphill to one of the springs. The path then continues to
Glyncote and on into the woods. (*See point 8.4.12.)
Comment
8.4.4.1. The 1846 Tithe Map shows that there have been dwellings on
“The Great Hill” and from 1949 there has been a county
unclassified road up to this region which means that to prevent
the use of the route in question by vehicles for the local
inhabitants would be met with vehement indignation. It is evident
from recent site visits that all the dwellings that were demarcated
on the 1846 Tithe Map are still present today and have over time
developed car parking areas and/or garages. This evidence
reveals that many of the inhabitants of “The Great Hill” area may
have private vehicular easements which would have to be

confirmed by private means and are not the topic of this report.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 39
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogSQlto B 8th July 2016.doc



8.4.5.

8.4.6.

8.4.7.

8.4.8.

8.4.4.2. Chapter 11 discusses in detail all the historical mapping and the
route in question is shown by that mapping as not being the main
route up the hill prior to the earliest highway record dated 1949.

8.4.4.3. Chapter 4, points 4.14.1 to 4.14.5, and Chapter 5 discusses in
detail the investigation into the 1952 Conveyance that references
an 1887 Conveyance that refers to the alignments of routes that
ascend the “Great Hill’ area from the east or north easterly
direction. However, without the original plan the implications of
this document in support of the claim for public vehicular rights
does not, on balance, have the evidential weight to substantiate
those rights.

How old is the road? (Appendix 50.3)

Comment

8.4.5.1. The Deed plans for Cleddon Shoots (Appendixes 11 & 14) show
simple pencil markings for the route in question as indicative of
locating the land and are not, on balance, a record of any public
status. Expanded comments are made previously in Chapter 4,
points 4.7.1 to 4.7.5, and are discussed further in Chapter 11,
points 11.7 & 11.20.

There is no enclosure award for this land (Appendix 50.3)

Comment

8.4.6.1. The Enclosure Award is not available for inspection but an
extract plan of the Enclosure Award that is held at the Gwent
Record Office is included (Chapter 11 Figure 11:2) to show that
there might be a plan for the Manor of Llandogo although this has

not been retained or found.

The tithe award plan (Appendix 50.3)

Comment

8.4.7.1. As previously commented on in point 4.9.1 and further detailed in
Chapter 11 point 11.21.

The First Edition 1881 OS Map and Book of Reference. (Appendix

50.3)

Comment

8.4.8.1. As previously commented on in point 4.10.1 and further detailed
in Chapter 11 point 11.27.

40

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgudtye(:og%mference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



8.4.9. Finance Act 1910 (Appendix 50.3)
Comment
8.4.9.1. As previously commented on in point 4.11.1 and further detailed
in Chapter 11 point 11.44.

8.4.10. County Status road (Appendixes 50.3)

e ....I have proved to the OS, who came to survey my property when
dealing with my boundaries, that The Mount was an area of land on
this hillside — roughly in the area we are discussing. The Mount — the
dwelling is just the name of a house. (See Electricity board map of
area Appendix 50.7). This mix up appeared in the 1951 revision of the
1921 OS map. Similarly, the property now known as Great Hill, is not
the Great Hill mentioned in the 1952 conveyance given as evidence. It
is likely, historically, that Great Hill and The Mount were local names
given to the rough area high above the village, where spring water
emerged....

Comment

8.4.10.1. Agreed. The study of the historical documents namely the 1952
Conveyance and the Definitive Map Statements shows that the
“Great Hill” is a reference to the whole area and not to a
particular property. See point 4.12.1 to 4.12.3 and also
Chapters 5 & 12 for further details.

8.4.11. Map Survey 1951 (Appendix 50.4)

¢ In my searches at the Public Record Office when establishing my own
enquires, | was told by an officer of the OS, that the last definitive map
of this area took place in 1921. Since then — maps have been
‘revised” only. Therefore the 1921 map should be the one used for
evidence in this case. Revised editions appeared in 1951, 1971 and
probably 1991 — although I'm surmising this last revision. The OS
inspector who walked and measured my land in October 2002 stated
that a full survey of Llandogo was being carried out because of new
building, such as Pathways, the Millennium Hall etc.

e The reference to “passable by lorries” is quite easily cleared up. The
local coal merchant owned a house along the lane. At the time, he
was probably the only person who owned a motorised vehicle and
used the small turning area near Glyncote to store his coal and to turn

his own vehicle. He probably established private vehicular rights of

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 41
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogS%to B 8th July 2016.doc



way from the 1950’s. Because he used the lane for his own private
access and storage does not mean it is a public road open to all

traffic.....

Comment

8.4.11.1. There is a misunderstanding in this paragraph. The Applicants

refers to the Definitive Map Survey for public rights of way dated
1951 and not to Ordnance Survey mapping and field work as
described by Ms Robinson.

8.4.11.2. See points 4.13.1 to 4.13.2 and Chapter 12 for a full

explanation of the Definitive Map Survey and the making of the
Definitive Map and Statement relevant date 1 July 1952. Point
12.27 particularly addresses the Definitive Map Statement

reference to the use of lorries over the route in question.

8.4.12. Conveyance of 1952 (Appendix 50.5)

...In my view, the description is not talking of the north-south (N-S)
route to these properties, but more likely an east-west (E-W) route
since the description clearly states “up to a place there called Great
Hill”. The word “up is significant, since CRB21/22/23 is virtually flat
along the hillside, whereas the steps and path coming up from the
Trellech Road, immediately to the north of Misty Cottage (formerly
Ivydene) and onwards and upwards to the Great Hill is in fact the road
in question. This would bound plots 653 and 654. Similarly, the
reference to Glyn All, (Glyncote) in my opinion, is the path that also
comes up from the Trellech Road and curves southwards onto the lane
at Misty cottage. This cross roads shows the main right of way in an E-
W direction and not a N-S direction and is likely to be a public road
rather than a path.

... The Council needs to be aware that historically many areas of land
in the Lower Wye valley had the word “The” in front of them, e.g. The
Freedom, The Mount, The Fence, The Hudnalls — these were areas of
land and not individual dwellings although many dwellings have taken

these names.

Comment

8.4.12.1. Study of the historical maps alongside the 1952 Conveyance

detailed in Chapters 5 & 12 of this report shows that the “Great

Hill” is in reference to the whole area and not to a particular

property.

42

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgugntye(:ogc?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



8.4.12.2. The 1952 Conveyance for Rock Cottage has a number of
discrepancies and no annexed plan. Therefore it is difficult to
verify the actual alignment of any routes mentioned. This has
been investigated in depth in Chapter 5 and reference has also
been made in points 4.14.1 to 4.14.5.

8.4.13. Evidence of Reputation (Appendix 50.5)

e This paragraph states that the Highways Authority has surfaced parts
of the route for vehicles — this has only been done in the last 12
months and was not the case when this file was first compiled by Jim
Greggains. Not evidence at all.

e In 1994 the Director... Surely he should know? - Again, he may not
have known and my experience of most council workers is that they
don’t bother to find out either. The fact that areas of the lane were
surfaced either officially or unofficially by the council might depend
more on “who lives along the lane” rather than any right by owners.

°« ... one of the houses has recently been built - on the site of Mrs
Andrew’s cottage that “burnt out” in the late 1980’s because the fire
engine COULD NOT GET to her property (CRB-22). The nearest fire
hydrant is next to “Bargan’s Cottage”....

Comment

8.4.13.1. A mal-administration complaint was submitted by a Mr Greggins
dated 22 January 2001 claiming that the Authority was not
carrying out its duty to repair the surface of the route in
question. The Council’'s Countryside Service undertook surface
works to CRBs 20 to 22 purely to avoid the expense of putting
the issues before the Courts. This was not done because of
any lack of belief on the part of Council officers regarding the
status of the route in question.

8.4.13.2. The Director of Highways for the Highway Authority did not
make a formal statement with regard to the status of the route in
guestion. See point 4.15.8 and Chapter 6 for more details
associated with the planning consents and their relation to the

case.

CONCLUDING COMMENTS ON EVIDENCE FORMS
8.5. Itis acknowledged that public status already exists. However, the evidence forms
submitted along with this application do not sufficiently support public vehicular, or

public bridleway rights over the route in question. To determine the type of public

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 43
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogS@to B 8th July 2016.doc



8.6.

8.7.

use other historical evidence has been investigated as the user evidence taken
alone does not, on balance, stipulate either public vehicular, public non-motorised

vehicular or public bridleway rights over the route in question.

The decision to be made is whether the available evidence suggests that the
registered route in question should in fact be recorded a public bridleway,

restricted byway or byway open to all traffic.

In considering this matter need, nuisance or suitability cannot be taken into
account. Instead, what should be considered is whether the public enjoy
equestrian and vehicular rights over the route in question. Although, suitability
cannot be taken into account it may be a factor in deciding whether or not certain

types of use by the public would, in fact, have been likely or possible in the past.

44

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgugntye(:og§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



9. Pre-Order Consultations

9.1.

9.2.

9.3.

9.4.

9.5.

9.6.

There have been two pre-order consultations for the whole route, A to C, being
investigated. The first was conducted in 2004 and the second ran from 28"
January 2015 to 7" May 2015.

In response to the 2004 consultation there were 15 replies out of 38. The lack of
replies from the user groups suggests that the route in question was not regarded

by the public at large to be a public thoroughfare for horse or vehicle users.

There are two interesting observations gleaned from the 2004 consultation that

support different sections of the claim:-

1. For RUPPs (CRBs 20 to 23)
That the owner of Cleddon Shoots was aware of motorbike users
gaining access to the Shoots and was desiring to prevent that type of

public access.

2. For RB24 (Section B to C)
The report of “human and donkey” using RB24 is a single piece of
evidence that suggests that this route may have existing bridleway
rights.

The first of these two observations implies some public use although this use could
have been anti-social behaviour as no users have come forward to verify this
single report of motorbike use. Without the user groups coming forward and
confirming their use of the route in question it is not possible to confirm whether or
not the use of the route was legitimate. Therefore, this single mention of motorbike
use along with all the other historical evidence does not support recording the

route in question as a byway open to all traffic.

The second observation is a report of people using the route RB24 in a private

capacity to collect coal.

These observations are not significant in proving either public vehicular, non-

motorised vehicular, or equestrian use of the route in question.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 45
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglandogébto B 8th July 2016.doc



9.7. The 2015 consultation resulted in 13 replies in which the main concerns given
were related to future maintenance liabilities.
Pre-Order Consultation results dated 2015
1 Matthew Lewis IC—I:ead of : No comments at this time.
ountryside
2 Ruth Rourke gggg;rsyg(fjf?cer Continuous input.
3 ge_lte Biodiversity Officer | No comments at this time.
tinchcombe
4 Claire Williams Legal Services No comments at this time.
5 Wendy Mustow | Highways No comments at this time.
6 Councillor D Councillor for No reply
Blakebrough Trellech '
7 Ms A. Davidson | Community Council | No reply.
8 Mr A Blake A.O.N.B No reply.
Reply - Ms S. Harris of Middle
Farm — consultation returned “No
9 S. Harris & A The Applicants longer at this address”.
Dance Reply — Mr A Dance of Lysander
House — telephoned his objection
to footpath.
Reply — objection to footpath as
. maintenance to vehicle usage
10 Llecan Beck Ms Z. Lindgren standards for the section leading
to Lysander House should occur.
Reply — objection to footpath
: registration and that the route
11 Alpine Lodge Mr A. Gorell should be maintained to vehicle
usage standards.
12 RoseHill Mr Ashley Thomas Reply B _objectlon 0 B.OAT
registration.
Replied by telephone and letter. —
The Authority should fully
: : maintain the route to vehicle
13 Bodmin Mrs S J Simpson standards as the wear and tear to
the way causes safety issues to
her property.
Replied by telephone, emails and
letters — The Authority should fully
14 Cascades Ms M. Robinson maintain the route to vehicle
standards as the wear and tear to
the way causes safety issues to
her property.
Reply — objection to any upgrade
15 Woodside Mrs P. Wilson of CRF 24. More concerned with
CRF 24 than with CRBs 20 to 23.
Replied by email — objection to
Lower Freedom any upgrade of CRF 24. More
16 Cottage Mrs B Rosewell concerned with CRF 24 than with
CRBs 20 to 23.
17 Priory Cottage No Reply.
Marigold
18 Cottgge No Reply.
19 Foxgloves No Reply.
20 Cleddon Stile No Reply.
46 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016

MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOéciReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc




9.8.

9.9.

9.10.

21 Glen Cote No Reply.

22 Great Hill No Reply.
23 Misty cottage No Reply.
24 Pathways No Reply.
Bargans
25 Cottage No Reply.
Mrs A The British Horse Reply - The BHS would object to
26 : proposals to record routes as
Underwood Society

footpaths.

Reply - The OSS would object to
proposal to record routes as
footpaths.

Open Spaces

27 Mr D. O. Morgan Services

Reply - CRB20 to 23 No comment
CRF24 covered by SSSI and

28 Mr. R. Bacon Natural Resources | SAC. If current usage is increase

Wales and if maintenance is proposed,
then NRW needs to be re-
consulted.

29 Mr J. Askew Tread Lightly Area | No reply.
30 Mr. A. Thomas Ramblers No reply.

GLASS (Green

31 Mr D Wyatt Lane Association)

No reply.

Byways and

32 Bridleways Trust No reply.

33 Mr M. Slater CTC No reply.

Reply - No objection: your
34 Mr R. Gould British Telecom proposed scheme should not
affect BT apparatus.

35 National Grid No reply.

Ms R.
36 Humphreys Welsh Water No reply.

37 Western Power No reply.

The Applicant, Mr A. Dance, of Lysander House, has telephoned to say that he
has no further evidence at this time. But he has given verbal notice that he will
submit his objection at “order making” stage if the order is made to record the route

as a public footpath.

Ms Z. Lindgren of Llecan Beck has telephoned and emailed questioning who
would maintain the route if it were not adopted. This DMMO, however, does not
seek to adopt the right of way. It only determines whether there may or may not

be public vehicular rights over the route in question.

Mr A. Gorell of Alpine Lodge has written in stating his objection if the order is made
to record the route as a public footpath. He states that he has “enjoyed
uninterrupted vehicular access over the road for more than twenty years as have
the public who have made a nuisance of themselves through noise, being in the
way and/or parking their vehicles across my drive”. He is aggrieved by planning
permissions for three new developments that have not taken into account the

nature of the route in question.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 47

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogé?to B 8th July 2016.doc




9.11.

9.12.

9.13.

9.14.

9.15.

9.16.

Mr Ashley Thomas of Rosehill will object if the DMMO is made to register the route
in question as a byway open to all traffic. Mr Thomas has given a detailed history
of the area as his father moved there in 1949 as the Parish Rector. He recalls that
there was not much traffic in the past, in fact hardly any, as most people living
there did not have cars. Then in the late 60s when car usage increased the
residents joined together, commissioned a local contractor, and tarmacked from
point A to the junction of CRB 22 with FP18.

Mr Thomas remembers the coal lorry deliveries, mentioned in the Definitive
Statement. The route in question was grass with hard core tracks which were the
width of an original Mini. The lorry was about the length of a Ford Mondeo estate
car or less. In other words, it was smaller in comparison to today’s delivery vans
which collide with walls on the upper side and teeter over the drop, thereby

weakening the edges on the lower side.

Mr Thomas states that RB24 should never be registered as a byway open to all
traffic by reason of it being passable only on foot, horseback or mule/donkey as
the crossing at the ‘Falls’ in the ravine precluded motorised vehicles. He reports
that properties such as Woodside and Priory Cottage had no delivery access as
convenient as point B. The alternative was to go a great distance down the steep
hillside to the village. Meanwhile point B was almost on the same level making it
much easier to transport coal from point B by arrangement with the coal merchant
and the landowner at that time. “We all had to make special arrangements like

that for difficult deliveries”.

This is the second reference to the use of a mule/donkey for section B to C.
However, as it is pre-arranged between the coal merchant and landowner the type

of use is by private means and for a private need.

Mrs S. J. Simpson of Bodmin will object if the DMMO is made to register the route
in question as a byway open to all traffic. Due to her property being below the
supporting banks of the route in question there is a very serious safety risk from
the disturbance of heavy boulders that would cause damage if dislodged. For this
safety reason it is her wish that the route be adopted between sections A to B and

publicly maintained.

Ms D. M. Robinson of Cascades will object if the DMMO is made to register the
route in question as a byway open to all traffic. Her reasons are entirely due to
maintenance and safety concerns and not with regard to evidence of any public

status.

48

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOééReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



9.17.

9.18.

9.19.

9.20.

9.21.

9.22.

9.23.

Definitive Map Modification Orders do not consider need, nuisance or suitability of
the route in question and therefore Ms Robinson’s request cannot be considered

under this legislative procedure.

Mrs P. Wilson of Woodside will object if the DMMO is made to register the whole
route as a byway open to all traffic. She reports having lived in the village from
November 1986 and is concerned that the Applicants are seeking to change the
status of a private road (section A to B). However, she has always known section

B to C as a footpath.

Mrs B. Rosewell who owns Cleddon Shoots will object if the DMMO is made to

register the route in question as a byway open to all traffic.

Mrs A. Underwood representative, of the British Horse Society, objects to the
“downgrading” of these restricted byways to footpaths referring to “known history of
the area that is readily available and was carried out by Gwent and Glamorgan
Archaeological Trust”. Her evidence covers the general history of the area and the
“‘use of a network of roads and pack animal trails”. This evidence is not
specifically related to the route in question and provides no assistance to qualifying
the public status of the actual route being investigated. This is the third mention of
equestrian use in the area. However, this report is generalised and not specific to
a single route. In contrast, the above mentioned two reports of mule/donkey for

the assisted transport of coal do refer to the particular use of RB24.

The generalised history when taken together with all the other historical
documentation is interesting. However, as public equestrian use cannot be
specifically attributed to the route in question, it does not assist the recording of

either public restricted byway or bridleway rights.

Mr D. O. Morgan representative of the Open Spaces Society has responded to the
effect that an order should be made for a byway open to all traffic as the Order
Making Authority is obliged to process a DMMO and that it would be fair to all the

types of users involved.

Mr R. Bacon of Natural Resources Wales (NRW) replies stating that if current
usage is increased over RB24 and if maintenance is proposed then NRW needs to
be re-consulted as this section of the route passes through Cleddon Shoots
Woodland, a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI) which is a component of the

larger Wye Valley Woodlands Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Also in

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 49
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogéél-to B 8th July 2016.doc



9.24.

accordance with all the given legislation Monmouthshire County Council will be

required to undertake a Habitat Regulations Assessment.

Overall the consultation responses do not, of themselves or in conjunction with
other historical evidence, provide substantial evidence to record the route in
question as having public vehicular, public non-motorised or public bridleway
rights. For these reasons the route in question should therefore be recorded as a
public footpath (FP) only and not registered as a public byway open to all traffic
(BOAT).

50

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOé%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



10. Land Registry Documents (official copies requested in 2015)

10.1. Title Deeds from Land Registry have been requested for the properties that utilise

or abut the route in question.

10.2. A study of these documents has shown that out of the majority of the

landownership documents no public vehicular rights have been described for the

route in question.

Date of _ Dates of rights
No. |Official | I Title name | r2MeABY8 | Notes
copy number istorical Dee
or Conveyance
e e Section AtoBotroutomauestion
“forms a bank between bridle path
1a 24/03/2015 | WA963131 Cascades | 23 April 1969 and the roadway shown coloured
blue”
“..right granted to the Purchasers as
23 26/03/2015 | CYM621529 | Bodmin ?8 ﬁpril 1969 & | aright of way at all times and for all
ugust 1972 | purposes over the road way shown
coloured blue.”
The conveyance mentions “coloured
blue” on the attached plan but does
29 Seplember not extend the whole of the “private
3a 14/05/2015 | WA460951 High View | 1967 22 June "
1971 roadv_vay : AIthough, the attachgd
map is marked with the annotation
“approx. line of private access road”.
21 July 1967 Deed mentions that the private
Croft Deed & 29 driveway “coloured blue” allows the
4a 14/05/2015 | WA377892 Cottage September 1967 | landowners to pass and repass in
& Deed 15 vehicles. The Conveyance 29/9/67
December 1975 | allows the same rights.
“...shows the part thereof edged blue
Hillside 21 July 1967 & | being a private roadway between the
5a 14/05/2015 | CYM138412 Cottage 31 December point marked A on the said plan to
1970 the public highway there at the point
thereon marked B....”
“...shows the part thereof edged blue
31 December being a private roadway between the
6a 14/05/2015 | CYM517453 | Hill Croft 1970 & 15 point marked A on the said plan to
December 1975 | the public highway there at the point
thereon marked B...”
27 September
7b' | 26/03/2015 | CYM11137 hysa”der 1976 & 1June | Not available to investigate
ouse 1988
Glyncote 27 September
8b? 26/03/2015 | WA443562 1976 & 1 June Not available to investigate
(Glencote) 1988

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogé%to B 8th July 2016.doc

51



Dates of rights
LED e ranted by a
No. | Official | Title number | Title name | Jror e oY Notes
Historical Deed
copy
or Conveyance
For discussion regarding 1952
Llecan Conveyance with no plan attached....
Beck see chapter 5.
(formerly 21March 1952; | Other documents - not available to
Quiet 27 September | investigate...although an extract is
3
% 26/03/2015 | WAGT73845 Ways and | 1976 & 1 June | copied to modern record
prior to that | 1988 “...pass and repass...with or without
Rock vehicles ...along the private roadway
Cottage) as means of access to...said garage
site...”
Bank 17D The quoted extracts from the two
ecember
Cottage 1953: 30 Conveyances do not refer to any
10b* | 26/03/2015 | WA93370 (subdivisio ’ rights over the route in question. The
November 1973 .
n Great 86 Mav 1998 Deed is between landowners and
Hill y South Wales Electrical.
Cleddon There is no reference to any
11c! | 26/03/2015 | WA924445 Stile Conveyance or Deed therefore no
mention of the route in question.
There is no reference to any
12¢2 | 26/03/2015 | CYM44560 Pathways Conveyance or Deed therefore no
mention of the route in question.
Alpine There is no reference to any
13c® | 26/03/2015 | WA446844 P Conveyance or Deed therefore no
Lodge . ) )
mention of the route in question.
Mist There is no reference to any
14¢* | 26/03/2015 | CYM102206 y Conveyance or Deed therefore no
Cottage . . .
mention of the route in question.
There is no reference to any
15¢5 | 26/03/2015 | CYM505479 | Rose Hill Conveyance or Deed therefore no
mention of the route in question.
Barqains There is no reference to any
16¢8 | 26/03/2015 | WA373492 g Conveyance or Deed therefore no
Cottage . . .
mention of the route in question.

10.3. Twenty Land Registry documents have been investigated in relation to the route in
question. Sixteen properties are associated with section A to B, while four
properties relate to section B to C and are detailed in Report 2.

10.4. Six Land Registry documents [reference to table above la-6a] all make reference
to the historical conveyances which state that these dwellings have private
vehicular rights over a driveway that is shown shaded blue on included plans. The
documents also stipulate that the landowners have a responsibility to maintain the
“private roadway”. The “private roadway” mentioned in these documents is not the
route in question.

10.5. Four Land Registry documents [ref. 7b' — 10b*] refer to historical conveyances,
although these conveyances are not available to investigate. Three of the four

52 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016

MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOéc?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



modern title deeds refer to the Conveyance dated 27" September 1976 that has

not been retained.

10.6. Six Land Registry documents [ref. 11c! — 16¢f] do not include historical
conveyances and make no reference to the route in question as being a “private or

public” roadway.

10.7. Twelve Land Registry documents [ref. 1a; 2a; 7b! — 10b% 11c’- 16c°] abut the
section A to B of the route in question. Two of the 12 have a historical conveyance
that does not refer to the route in question but does address a different route
highlighted blue and recorded in this conveyance as a shared “private roadway”.

g

l

8 i

Fig. 10.1 Property and Reference Locator A MCC

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 53
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogééto B 8th July 2016.doc



10.8.

10.9.

The other ten Land Registry documents [ref. 7b! — 10b% 11c’- 16c°] for the
properties abut and utilise section A to B of the route in question, and make no

reference to public vehicular or equestrian rights.

However, the Land Registry document for Llecan Beck [9b%] quotes from a
historical conveyance stating that the route in question has “private” access rights.
Due to Llecan Beck being situated nearer point B than A, it means that most of the
route in question has “private” rights as stated and not public vehicular rights. This
evidence points to the route in question being a shared private drive that also has
public footpath rights over it.

54

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCOé§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11. Historical Map Evidence

11.1. Legislation requires that an investigation be made of all available historical
evidence that, on the balance of probabilities, may show that the route in question
has public vehicular rights and should be recorded as a byway open to all traffic
(BOAT) on the Definitive Map and Statement.

11.2. John Cary’s ‘Improved Map’ of England and Wales, series 1820 — 1832. From
an original held in The Brotherton Library, Leeds University, the route in question is

not shown.

_ , >

o -g". b gt
: | ! .' J 11 S
LI s

~4 ‘l ; %! : v e
Fig. 11.1: Appendix 10: Applicants’ Evidence 2:
John Cary’s Improved Map’ of England and Wales, series 1820- 1832.

From an original held in The Brotherton Library, Leeds University

-

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 55
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoiij.lB Lglanedog76(o B 8th July 2016.doc



11.3. The Enclosure Award, dated 9" March 1821 (Fig. 11.2) does not cover the area
in which the route in question is located. However, as the “Manor of Llandogo” is
mentioned, further investigation into the Manorial documents, held at the National
Library Wales, has been carried out. Unlike the example below of the nearby
Enclosure Award, the Manorial documents do not distinguish any routes and paths
from the surrounding land. This Report will later detail the significance of routes
that are either coloured or not, depending on the map studied, which may or may
not imply public status. Therefore, the Enclosure Award and the Manorial
documents add no further support to the claim for any type of public right.

Fig. 11.2:
1821 Enclosure Award not to scale: Gwent Record Office Ref: Q/Inc. Aw. 2 page ]

56 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsB g)ﬁtye Cu.|?ciReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.4. The Price Map, dated 1823, commissioned by the Duke of Beaufort, and
inscribed by Henry and Charles G. Price. The title of this map has been destroyed
however it states, in part that it was “Drawn from ... Actual...and founded on a

Trigonometrical basis by the surveyors of Hereford, Henry and Charles G. Price”.

8 Price Map Llandoo: not to scale: S GRO Ref: Q/Misc Maps/20

.y -

L IR TVIN
RO
U

- e - u :. - . o .~ 'L,".:\u .. \ \ ‘
1823 Price Map Llandogo: not to scale 1901 Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale
Fig. 11.3: Comparison between Price and OS Maps

11.5. This 1823 map shows a number of routes that cross Cleddon Shoots (stream)
marked by parallel bold black lines. After further study and comparison with other
mapping of the same era, along with the 1901 Ordnance Survey Map, it is not
possible to extrapolate comparable and accurate road alignments. Although some
alignments of routes are misleading it is possible that RB 24 and CRBs 20 to 22
are represented while CRB 23 is not.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 57
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reporj.nglanedog7§m B 8th July 2016.doc




11.6.

Furthermore, when comparing all the historical maps from 1823 to 1920, although
a road is more commonly shown at this scale on this map, the earlier 1800s maps
only recorded an alignment of a route with no distinction between public or private
status and no variation of markings to describe a specific type of route such as

footpath, bridleway or road.

58

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe Countyqu.?éReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.7. The 1828 Plan to the Deed Papers for Cleddon Shoots is the earliest and the
first historical document to partially represent CRB23 and RB24 while the
catalogue entry only lists landownership and costs. This Title Deed, created for
landownership reasons, has other linear markings to assist with the locating of the
property and these markings do not prove the public or private status of the routes
depicted. It is possible that the broken line shown of the plan is a footpath that
runs from the boundary of “Cleddon Shoots” to the stream. Additionally this
marking does not continue through the property. This suggests that the route was
not regarded as a major thoroughfare for use by the public at large in motorised

vehicles, on non-motorised vehicles, or on horseback.

Fig. 11.4: Appendix 11 & 12 Applicants’ Evidence 3
1828 Title Deeds Map and Catalogue entry for Cleddon Shoots Llandogo: not to scale:
GRO Ref: D39811-13

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 59
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoiij.lB Lglanedoglyz:(o B 8th July 2016.doc



11.8.

11.9.

The Greenwood Map, published in 1830, when compared to other mapping
reveals a mere representation of routes and not the detail that is shown from the

more formal survey conducted by Ordnance Survey in the same period.

CleCkK

rlices
R

MCC Office

oI iy

1830 Greenwood M: not to scale 1902 Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale
Fig. 11.5: Comparison between Greenwood and OS Maps

However, it is noted when the comparison is made between the Greenwood and
OS mapping that the poorer quality cartography of the Greenwood Map, contrary
to the David and Charles Map, does in fact represent part of the route in question.
A part of the route in question has been highlighted green on both maps. Like the

60

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ County Cm?%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



Price map the section of the route in question numbered CRB23 has not been

included.

11.10. The 1830 maps do not usually extend to the depiction of footpaths. Although, in
the comparison between the Greenwood and OS mapping, Figl1.5, it is noted that
the F.W. symbol on the 1902 O.S. Map is on the same alignment as that shown on
the Greenwood map. For the purposes of identification “F.W.” has been marked
and circled in pencil on the Greenwood Map. This is the only map of this era that
shows a difference in the recording of footways and roads which suggests that the

route in question is higher in category to that of a footpath.

11.11. However, the route in question, section A to B, depicted on the 1823 Price and the
Greenwood Maps are not shown on the other 1830s maps that are from an actual
survey conducted by the military or based on that same survey. Therefore, the few
historical maps examined so far recording the alignment of the route in question
are not of themselves a record for public or private rights. Other historical
evidence needs to be investigated.

11.12. The Cassini Map (162), was created using the Old Series Ordnance Survey sheet
35 which was published on the 1st May 1830 and, like the David & Charles Map,
discussed later, does not show the route in question.

4
i

,
e

£
-

\R"" ‘3 b

Y,
S ’

e T
et C—o‘d";"“

-
s, s

-
-
A

Fig. 11.6:
1830 Cassini Map Llandogo: not to scale: MCC

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 61
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reporj.g Llandog7é(o B 8th July 2016.doc



11.13. The David and Charles Map, Sheet 68, published 1 May 1830, is a reproduction
of numerous documents covering various dates and based on surveys originally
executed by the Ordnance Survey between 1811 and 1816 but extensively revised
in the late 1820s. The Cassini and the David & Charles Maps of the same period
do not show the route in question. The Ordnance Survey commenced in 1811
suggests that the route was not constructed pre-1835.

1830 David & Charles
Fig. 11.7: Comparison between 1830 David & Charles and OS Maps

11.15. Shown above is a comparison of the 1830 David and Charles with the Ordnance
Survey mapping of the 1920s. The more detailed mapping of the 1920s indicates

62 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ CountyeCm?c?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



in some respects the similarities of the routes that are for the purposes of this
comparison shaded in pink. This comparison clearly shows that the route in

question was not recorded in the 1830s.

11.16. The 1830 Ordnance Survey map is based on the first survey taken between 1791
and 1874 and published with many revisions and new editions between 1805 and
1874. These surveys are the bases for the Cassini and the David & Charles
facsimile maps already discussed. The route in question is not shown on all three
of these maps.

~ .\‘“
6 '& '*g\‘ \‘. -

.:ﬂfq 0,;~

Fig. 11.8: Appendix 13 Applicants’ Evidence 4
1830 1=t Edition Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale GRO

11.17. The 1830 OS Map is known to be better drawn and more accurate in the depiction
of physical features surveyed. It is from these original Ordnance Surveys that the
Cassini, David & Charles and the Greenwood Map have been copied. This then
implies that the Greenwood Map has been poorly copied as both the 1830 Cassini
and David & Charles Maps do not show the route in question.

11.18. It is difficult to be certain which mapping set is wrong as there are three map sets
that show similar alignments of the majority of routes recorded, while there are two
map sets that show very different alignments and record additional routes. One
reason may be that the scale, being 1 inch to a statute mile, does not give the

required detail to depict each route accurately.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 63
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reporj.la Llandog7§o B 8th July 2016.doc



11.19. It is established that the 1830 OS map is the better record in the quality of its
surveying. However, it is possible that due to the small scale of this mapping, it
was difficult to depict every route. Therefore, as these earlier dated maps are
inconsistent and only indicative to the alignment of the route in question, it is
necessary to look at other historical records to determine on the balance of

probabilities what, if any, the public status might be.

64 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe Countyqu.|7§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.20. The 1834 Map with the Deed Papers for Cleddon Shoots indicates the route in
question with two pencil markings. The transcript of the deed within the catalogue
entry describes landownership extents and not public rights. The Applicants have
highlighted green the word “road leading from Cleddon towards Llandogo” as
evidence for higher rights. This word “road” in the Deed Papers, however, does
not relate to the route being investigated. Furthermore, the second phrase, “road
leading from Cleddon to Llandogo” happens to be on the western boundary of
Cleddon Shoots (shaded pink). This document was created for the purpose of
landownership; other markings on the plan are indicative only and not for the
purposes of showing public or private ways. It is noted from this plan that the route
being investigated is not shown to continue through Cleddon Shoots suggesting
that it was not regarded as a major through route for use by the public at large
either in motorised vehicles, on non-motorised vehicles or on horseback.

TRANSCRIPT OF DEED DATED AUGUST 1834

Lease for a year 27/28™ August 1834 with Plan

‘Piece of Woodland (12a) situate at Llandogo called the
Shoots. Late in possession of Arthur Wyatt and now of
John Gough, bounded on the S.W., S and S.E. by lands
belonging to or in occupation of John Roberts esq, Ann
Edwards, Mr Hopkins, John Hodges, Rev David Jones
and Isaac Madley, on the east by the road leading from
Trelleck towards Monmouth and land of Isaac Madley,
on the north and N.W. by lands belonging to or in
occupation of Isaac Madley, Joseph (James) Madley,
William Hopkins and the foad leading from Cleddon
towards Llandogo, on west by lands belonging to John
Roberts, Mary Moulton, Joseph Renolds and the foad
leading from Cleddon to Llandogo, 2 small cottages
standing on part of the said piece of woodland, late in
occupations of John Clement and James Jones, but now
of Mr Davies and Zachariah Reynolds’.

Fig. 11.9: Appendix 14 & 15 Applicants’ Evidence 5
1834 Title Deeds Map & Catalogue entry - Cleddon Shoots Llandogo: not to scale:
GRO Ref: D398 11-16

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 65
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reporj.g Lglandoggﬁ(o B 8th July 2016.doc



11.21. The Tithe Map for Llandogo, dated 1846, shows the route in question to be
coloured terracotta. The linear markings on this Map designate plot boundaries
which are in keeping with similar boundary markings shown on the 1881 Ordnance

Survey (OS) Map discussed later in this report.

11.22. When comparing highway records with tithe maps the shading of the roads on the
tithe maps are normally consistent with the shading of publicly maintained roads
shown on the highway maps. Therefore, when a route in question is identified on
the Tithe Map as shaded terracotta then it is reasonable to suggest that the route

should be recorded as public route maintained at public expense.

The orientation has been turned
to assist the reading of the plot
numbers

o

Fig. 11.10 Appendix 17 Applicants’ Evidence 7
1846 Tithe Map for Llandogo: not to scale: GRO Ref: D3731.1

11.23. However, the shading of this route here does not nessarily mean that it should be
a byway open to all traffic; it could be feasible to record the route as a public
footpath. This is particularly shown on the Definitive Map and Statement for this
location where most of the routes are registered as footpaths.

11.24. Notably, when comparing the Tithe Map with the OS Maps the route in question on
the Tithe Map is shaded terracotta only up to the plots numbered 45 & 46 in the

66 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouths$ é?é“ye Cogc_{Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc




south and 91 & 109 in the north indicating that the route in question was only an
access way for various plots and not a main public thoroughfare. Additionally, the
route in question was accessed via two other routes from the east that are now
recorded as public footpaths which further establishes the fact that the route in
gquestion was not regarded as a thoroughfare for the public at large in motorised

vehicles, on non-motorised vehicles or on horseback.

11.25. The route in question is clearly indicated by double lines on all historical maps prior
to and after the production of the Tithe Map. When a map like this shows a
coloured and un-numbered strip of land, it can be taken, when considered together
with other historical maps that the route in question was and therefore still remains
in the public domain. However, the Tithe map records do not determine the type of
public rights and therefore it is possible to register routes either as public footpaths
and bridleways on the Definitive Map and Statement or as roads on the “List of
Streets”.

11.26. The route in question ends at point B where there is no indication of any route
continuing through the Cleddon Shoots woods. This shows that the route in
question was not consider a thoroughfare for any type of public use. The lack of
markings on the Tithe Map north of point B suggests that there were no public
rights along the northern section in the first half of the 19" Century.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 67
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedoggéto B 8th July 2016.doc



11.27. The 1881 Ordnance Survey Map (OS), contrary to the Tithe Map, shows the
route in question as not shaded. When comparing the 1881 OS Map with the
highway records it is noted that only the main through roads on the 1881 OS Map
are shaded. The OS Map is similar to the Tithe Map as it shows the physical
features such as barriers across the route in question at the same southern and

northern points where the shading on the Tithe Map ends.

Fig. 11.11: 1881 Otdnance Survey Sheet 21:1 colour copy: not to scale GRO

11.28. The 1881 OS map shows that at the corner of the plot numbered 674 the route in
guestion is offset slightly and, further, a broken line at this point indicates a change
of surface. Both these features support the fact that the route in question was not
considered a public thoroughfare.

11.29. The detailed depiction of physical features surveyed shows that the route in
guestion is bound on all sides by solid unbroken lines denoting a fenced minor
road. The markings of the OS maps are taken from the Conventional signs and
writing used on the OS six inch maps.

68 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouths$ Countye Cog%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



M.S. (Mile Stone)

n | ——— Main Roads i | o
g S
8 <
s :

Minor— Qo .:...coocxee ®

Fig. 11.12:
Conventional signs and writing used on the Ordnance Survey six inch maps.

11.30. There are solid lines at the southern (A) and northern (B) points across the route in
guestion and, based on conventional sign usage, this implies the presence of
barriers crossing the route in question while there are no such physical features

across the routes that lead up the hill side in an east/west direction.

11.31. It is reasonable to suggest that these solid lines represent gates or barriers of
some description. The fact that such physical features are recorded on both the
OS map and the Tithe map supports the conclusion that the route in question was
not regarded as a through road for the public at large in motorised vehicles, on

non-motorised vehicles or on horseback.

11.32. The route in question has not been awarded a status equal to other know public
roads in the area as it is not shaded. The Ordnance Survey Map unlike the Tithe
Map has plot 617 on its northern section only. Plot 617 is listed in the 1st Edition
25-inch Ordnance Survey Book of Reference for the Community of Trelleck
(Appendix 20), held at the British Library. In the Book of Reference there is only a
numerical entry for plot number 617 and no further description of the use of the
land that would indicate the possible private or public nature of the route in

question.

11.33. Another symbol on all Ordnance Survey maps is the mark that resembles a
stretched “S” that is called a brace. This brace links land that has been dissected
by streams, routes or other topographical features. The detail afforded to this OS
Map due to its larger scale shows no braces that link the route in question to any
adjacent field or dwelling. These factors suggest that the route in question was

considered a shared private access way and not within any individual ownership.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 69
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedoggél-to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.34.

11.35.

The Ordnance Survey Maps dated 1886 (six inches to 1 statute mile 1:10560) is
also the scale of the Definitive Map and although it is a small scale it still gives
more detail than that shown on the 1830s mapping. At this scale it is worthy to
note that there are three unbroken lines across the route in question. Unbroken
lines across a track like this usually denote a barrier such as a wall or boundary

fence possibly with a gate.

The 1886 Map and the earlier 1881 Map show that the route in question was not
considered a through route at this location. This is demonstrated when observing
that other junctions within the network of routes in the “Great Hill” area do not have
solid lines representing barriers. The linear marking evidence on this Map shows
that the route in question ended at both points A & B and was not an open through

route proceeding either south of point A or north of point B.

Fig. 11.13:
1886 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21: not to scale GRO

70

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouths$ Countye Cog%Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.36. The 1902 Ordnance Survey Maps, at the larger scale of 1:2500, usually have the
label “track” or “F.P” alongside the linear marking indicating the alignment of un-
metalled roads and footpaths. It is noted that even on this larger scale map (Fig.
11.14) the density of topographical marks and symbols limit the “F.P.” labels to
appear only four times. Although, the conventional signs and writings (Fig. 11.12)
indicate the routes leading up the hill from the east to be fenced minor roads, most
of the routes are labelled as footpaths. This suggests that, regardless of the

conventional signs, these routes were merely believed to be footpaths leading to
other footpaths.

2 0 o BT A A ST S AR R R R L
FL‘Q a ,e. m‘l‘? Q_@Q, =3 4% ot B & ’ r;.” :.‘ "7\?’ . l| li q
it 4 T ll e S i f 3 (VST e

“1
NoE g (! 4 S e b LI.I]0 c A

. N Qpd g8 ‘?‘12 e m -

.I'F' 660 66l ; -.::i:a_‘.fs:'a_u, %Q‘ 6 \
-‘,, “1188 1370 l\g Q_‘h ;:)AQ "L;]Q

w Villa = et Br—l by’

o "'—_

Fig. 11.14:
1902 Ordnance Survev Sheet 21:5 not to scale: MCC

11.37. When comparing the 1902 OS Map with previous maps discussed it shows that at
point B the solid line across the route in question remains, while the solid line at
point A is no longer evident. It is possible that the existing stream was covered by
a culvert and at the same time it is possible that other barriers were removed. The

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 71
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reporj.la Llandoggéto B 8th July 2016.doc




11.38.

11.39.

1902 OS Map is the base map for the 1910 Finance Act map which is discussed in
detail later.

The 1921 Ordnance Survey Map again has similar linear markings to the
previous OS maps discussed. Although some elements are different there
remains a solid line across the route in question at point B and none at point A
while across other nearby footpaths solid lines exist. A single solid line denotes

either a fence or a barrier while “frequent solid lines” possibly indicate steps.

Fig. 11.15:
1921 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21:5: not to scale: GRO

It is not known what type of barrier was located at point B. However, it is possible
that physical features that are intended to serve as a barrier may or may not inhibit
the use of the way either by horse-drawn cart, horse, or on foot.

72

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsB g)é\tye Cogc?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.40. The Ordnance Survey Maps all show the route in question as marked by a solid
line for most of its length. This is normally the marking adopted to depict main

roads (see Fig. 11.12) but as shown here it is also the marking for footpaths.

11.41. Ordnance surveyors were given the duty to depict all physical features that were
encountered. It is possible, therefore, that some of the routes depicted on the OS

maps may prove to be private ways.

11.42. The conventional signs and symbols have been kept as standard over the years
and it is understood that a dashed or double pecked line represents a route or way
that is unfenced.

11.43. In contrast to this, a solid unbroken line represents a boundary such as a fence or
wall. Therefore, if a solid line crosses a route or way then this is interpreted as a
gate or another type of barrier. Although barriers such as gates do not prohibit
usage of a route by any type or means, they do constitute some form of limitation
and prevention. As the mapping inspected so far indicates barriers at more than
one location, this suggests that the route in question was not used by the public at

large instead was possibly a private access way.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 73
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglandogg@to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.44. The 1910 Finance Act Register Books and Maps provided for the levy and
collection of a duty on the incremental value of all land in the United Kingdom. In
this way, private owners were required to surrender to the State part of the
increase in the site value of their land, which resulted from the expenditure of
public money on communal developments such as roads, common land or public

services.

11.45. The reason for the production of the Finance Act Maps and Registers was to
record land values and not for the purpose of recording the extent of the publicly
maintainable highways.

11.46. The Finance Act Map for this area shows the route in question to be uncoloured
and, when compared with the highway record, it typically shows that roads shaded
on highway maps are similarly uncoloured on finance act maps suggesting that a

road was considered public.

Fig. 11.16:
1910 Finance Act Map Sheet 21.5 Kew Record Office (KRO)

11.47. Although, the Finance Act Map is first and foremost a record of the extent of
landownership which provided for the levy of various tax duties on lands, these
Finance Act records also help with the status of any routes that are in question.

74 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ é?é\tye Co§§Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



11.48.

11.49.

11.50.

11.51.

11.52.

11.53.

11.54.

The reason for this is because the Finance Act Registers and Field books Record
a monetary deduction in the calculation of tax for each property for “public rights of
way or user” while, for the majority of cases, routes normally used by vehicular
traffic were left uncoloured or “white out” as they were considered not to have any

agricultural value.

In this location there is evidence for exceptions to this usual interpretation of the
Finance Act Map. In the “Great Hill” area the routes left uncoloured are registered
as public footpaths on the Definitive Map and Statement and even with this
evidence these routes remain recorded as public footpaths. In other words the
type of marking on the 1910 Finance Act Map does not always, as a single piece

of evidence, award the route in question public vehicular rights.

The Register Book that accompanies the Finance Act Map, for this area, records
no monetary value that would reduce the taxable value of the land. The strip of
land that is in question is not allocated a plot number for the very reason that it was

never included within any particular private land ownership.

The Finance Act Map Register Book was investigated for any further details
pertaining to Plots 13, 37, 43, 44, 50, 70, 74, 83, 146, 239 & 247. The Register
does not record any deduction of tax for “public rights of way or user” for any of the

plots already listed.

The Field Books listing these plot numbers, held in the National Archives at Kew,
give no further detail. Furthermore, the Book for plots 101 to 200 is recorded as
missing in transfer therefore only the Finance Act Map is available for

investigation.

The working copy of the Finance Act Map has no other significant information that
has been omitted from the official copy previously studied. The route in question is
uncoloured while the two areas of land, north and south of points B and A

respectively are shown shaded.

This strongly suggests that the route in question was not regarded as a public
vehicular through road due to the fact that the only access to the route is from the
east by the means of other routes that have been known and recorded as public
footpaths. Therefore, it would be reasonable to suggest that for the route in
question there are no higher public rights and the only public right utilised is that of

a footpath.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 75
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglandoggbto B 8th July 2016.doc



Fig. 11.17: Appendix 21: Applicants’ Evidence 10
1910 Finance Act Map “working copy” Sheet 21:5 GRO

11.55. The Finance Act mapping records at this location establish the fact that not all

routes that are “white out” should automatically be regarded as having public
vehicular, public restricted byway or public bridleway rights. Other historical
documents and evidence needs to be considered. Only then, on the balance of
probabilities, is it possible to determine the status or type of public right that utilises

the route in question.

76

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouths$ Countye Co@c_{Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



12. The Definitive Map and Statement

12.1. The public rights of way are registered on the Definitive Map and Statement for the
area of Monmouthshire. These maps, which have a “Relevant” date of 1% July
1952, were published on the 16™ November 1967 and are now kept under
continuous review by Monmouthshire County Council Countryside Office.

12.2. The County Council was required under section 27 of the National Parks and
Access to the Countryside Act 1949, to carry out a survey and defined all the
footpaths, bridleways and roads used as public paths which it considered were
public. The process of producing the Definitive Map & Statement went through
three stages:

12.2.1. The former County of Monmouthshire (Gwent) carried out this task by
sending a map to every Community Council.

12.2.2. The Community Councils were asked to walk every path and provide
details of them.

12.2.3. A public meeting had to be held. Local people recommended alteration at

this stage.

12.3. The Draft Map was deposited in all District Offices as well as at County Hall.
Notice of its publication and where it could be inspected was given in local papers
and the London Gazette. A minimum of four months was allowed for objections
against the alterations made by the Council as a result of original objections, which
the Authority had to consider in the light of all evidence submitted and inform all
parties of its decision. Any user who was not satisfied with decisions could appeal
to the Secretary of State who appointed a representative to hear appeals and

come to a decision.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 77
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg?to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.4. Itis noted that on the Draft Definitive Map dated 16 December 1952 that the route

in question is marked up by the symbol for roads used as a public path (RUPP), as

‘Broken Green Line’, along with the terms cart road bridleway (CRB) and cart road
footpath (CRF).

™
- -8,
I: .
LR R AN e -
,.A‘_' e - - ~

x ';v‘l'_l“

1952 Draft Definitive Map Sheet 21: not to scale:

78

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁgugntye(:ogémference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.5. Office files hold copies of letters and notes that record the inspection of certain

footpaths in the Llandogo district. A letter dated 315 July 1953 (Figure 12.2) states

that Monmouth Rural District Council and the Tintern Parish Council refer to some

footpaths in the Llandogo district as being “lateral roads” transferred to the County
Council by the District Council on the 15t April 1930 although no records were

retained. The County Surveyor further explains that he did not know what was

meant by “lateral roads” and was of the opinion that these “lateral roads” were

simply approaches to private residences on the hillside overlooking the Wye Valley

and there was some doubt in his mind if the routes should be included in the

survey as public paths.

(=4

Public Patha,

]
The Clerk of
. the Counall,

Fig. 12.2:
31+t July 1953: Letter from County Surveyor to Clerk

Slat July, 1953,
National Parks and foocess to the Countryside /ot, 1949,

MCC

12.6. After a site inspection of the routes in the Llandogo district on the 14™ August 1953
there is a note added in pencil to the letter dated 5" August 1953 (Fig. 12.3) which
states that the clerk of Monmouthshire County, Mr V Lawrence, agreed with the

County Surveyor’s contentions that the ways were not roads and,...“even if they

are public paths, we ought not to do anything more than keep them open”.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg?Ifo B 8th July 2016.doc

79




r '_"'; Monmonthshire Gounty Gomncil.

.
vguon LAWRENCE, O.B.E.,
_*  CLERK OF THE COUNCH,

Your Ref o
Po veply plasss qusts | A..'A.‘/Y.:'.Il

>
daticnal Muris mud fdocess to tho Countryside Act,19L0.
sublic athe,
~ -
: ith reference to yowr memo. of tho 31st ultimo heroin, Friday
the Uth inetant at 10,30 n.m. would bo o suitable time for the rronosed
fus pootion of foct-mthe mentionsd by wou
Porhope you would soufimm if thie +ime nlre suite vo
< »
o . »~ 4 »
, ap” ! ‘
. / . o . g ”
- » e -
> pet” T I L e
';f' ; p/'/ P
LA s ff /
e f - 4
o / ¥y "/
Fig. 12.3:
5t August 1953: Letter from Clerk to County Surveyor MCC

12.7. All these records taken together show that the surveyors at the time were not able

to determine any maintenance liabilities or the status of the public right and
thereby gave the route in question the ambiguous title of Cartroad Bridleway. The
statutory term for such routes is a ‘road used as a public path’ (RUPP).

12.8. The 1949 National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act provided that the

Definitive Map and Statement (DM&S) should include, in addition to every public
footpath and bridleway, highways used by the public mainly for the purposes for
which footpaths or bridleways are so used, a category termed by the Act as “road
used as a public path” (RUPP). The definition in the 1949 Act did not use the
words “public” or “private” before the term “road used as a public path”. The term
did place the word “public” prior to the word path. The interpretation then is that
this type of route shown on the DM&S was visibly a road that is recorded on it as a
public path which is either a “public” bridleway or “public” footpath. The public
status of the road with this term “RUPP” for this route category is not determined
by the 1949 Act.

80

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ CountyeCoggReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc




12.9. The category of RUPP is thus shown to be unsatisfactory and to add to the
difficulties of interpretation a pamphlet, titted Surveys and Maps of Public Rights of
Way, was issued with circular number 81, dated 17" February 1950, and sent to
the Community Councils in 1951 at the time of the initial surveys. This official
guidance was prepared by the Open Spaces and Footpaths Preservation Society
in collaboration with the Ramblers Association; recommended by the County
Councils Association; and approved by the Ministry of Town and Country Planning.

12.10. In this official guidance circular, reference was made to recording of routes on the
DM&S with the symbols for “Public Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as
bridleway to be CRB” and “Public Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as footpath
to be CRF”. As a result numerous highway authorities used these non-statutory
symbols to record routes.

12.11. This is what has happened in this Authority and is revealed within the DM&S title
(Fig. 12.4). At the Provisional stage RUPPs were referenced by using the non-
statutory terms of “Public Carriage or Cart Road used mainly as a footpath shown
in a Broken Green line” and “Public Carriage or Cart Road used mainly as a
Bridleway shown in a Broken Green line” which were then amended at the final
Definitive Map stage and the words “Public” were crossed out and replaced by the

word “Private”.

Fig. 12.4:
Definitive Map title MCC

12.12. An explanation of the use of these terms is given by Lord Denning in the case “R v
Environment Secretary, ex p. Hood 1975 1QB 891" in which the following is
stated:-

“When the local authorities came in 1949 to prepare their maps under the
statute, they divided the last category Toad used as public path’into two sub-
divisions which have no statutory authority. They divided them into ‘CRF’and
‘CRB’, which denoted ‘cartroad footpath’and ‘cartroad bridleway’, meaning
respectively that there was a public footpath along a cartroad, or a public
bridleway along a cartroad. In that division the local authorities did not mean
to say whether the cartroad was public or private for carts, because they did

not know which it was. They only meant to say by CRF that there was public

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 81
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: RepoiS.nglanedoggéto B 8th July 2016.doc



12.13.

12.14.

12.15.

12.16.

12.17.

footpath along a road: and by CRB a public bridleway along a road. That
division was misleading because each of those subdivisions CRF and CRB

were shown in the map as a ‘road used as a public path’.”

On the Definitive Map for Monmouthshire (formally Gwent) the public rights of way
are shown correctly in accordance with Statutory Instrument 1970 No. 675.
Bridleways are shown by a continuous green line and RUPPs by a broken green
line. It is the marking of a “Broken Green line” on the Definitive Map and within the

Map title which establishes their legal status as “roads used as a public path”.

The category of RUPP along with the non-statutory sub-divisions of CRB & CRF
have proved to be unsatisfactory as none of the symbols make it clear whether the
routes were subject to public vehicular rights. This report seeks to determine the
status of the public rights that utilise the route in question.

To determine this public status research of the Draft Definitive map documents
shows that the section of RUPP (CRB 20) south of point A (Fig 12.1) has been
initially marked up and then later removed as indicated by red crosses and
hatchings.

This marking shows that Highway records were interrogated revealing that certain
routes were already part of the highway network and recorded on the “List of
Streets”. The section of RUPP (CRB 20) that was crossed out is south of point A
and, as this was the only part already listed as public highway, it was therefore not
necessary to record public status again on the Definitive Map and Statement.

The “List of Streets” is the main document this Authority holds that records the

publicly maintained highway over which the public have vehicular rights.

82

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCo§c?Reference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.18. The Modification Map (Additions and Deletions) (Fig. 12.5) records no
markings over the route in question. There is, however, a bold blue line over part
of CRB 20. The reason for this is that public rights already existed and were
recorded on the Highways “List of Streets”, and as part of the process for
compilation of the Definitive Map records, this part of CRB 20 was marked blue for

removal.

Fig. 12.5:
Addition and Deletion Map (Modification Map) sheet 21: not to scale: MCC

12.19. Since the route in question, A to B is not marked up on this map, it remains

recorded as a “road used as a public path” (RUPP).

12.20. Historical vehicular rights possibly began when C40-7 was constructed. The
earliest depiction of the southern route is shown on the 1949 Highway mapping
records. The construction of the county road C40-7 south of the route in question
may have influenced regular, although limited, vehicular use. However, the
Authority does not consider this limited vehicular usage to support the existence of
public vehicular rights over the CRBs 20, 21, 22 and 23.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 83
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Repoﬁ.nglanedogg@to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.21. The Definitive Map, in keeping with statutory provisions, shows bold broken green

markings for the route in question. The arrows, also marked in green, join the route
symbol of cart road bridleway or cart road footpath (along with a number) to the
relevant section of the route in question. Other public footpaths in the area are
marked by bold pink (purple) lines.

Fig. 12.6:
1967 Definitive Map sheet 21: not to scale: MCC

12.22. When all appeals and objections to the Draft Definitive Map and Statement had

been processed and any additions or deletions had been marked on an
intermediate map the Authority then compiled a Provisional Definitive Map and
Statement.

84

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ CountyeCogﬁReference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.23. The County Council published and advertised, as before, the Provisional Definitive
Map and Statement on the 17" September 1965. This is the Draft Definitive Map
duly modified. The public had no further right of objection but any owner/occupier
of land crossed by a right of way could apply to quarter sessions, within 28 days of
publication, for a declaration modifying the maps or statements in respect of the
Rights of Way. When all applications had been determined the County Council
finally published on 3" November 1967 the Definitive Map and Statement for the

County of Monmouthshire (formerly Gwent).

12.24. The Case of Trevelyan v Secretary of State 2001 raised a presumption that what is
marked on the Definitive Map and Statement is properly and correctly recorded.

Evidence of some substance has to be put forward to displace the presumption.

12.25. The Definitive Map & Statement is afforded considerable weight due, firstly to the
statutory provision already mentioned and secondly, to the process of continuous
review set out in Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, allowing for
the modification of the maps and statements on the discovery of evidence
suggesting that it contains errors or omissions. This allows for thorough
investigation of any perceived discrepancies and their correction. This report

represents such a case.

DEFINITIVE MAP AND STATEMENT
12.26. The Definitive Map and Statement in its entirety is regarded as the legal register

for public rights of way and the information held within is, for completeness, better
understood when both the map and statements are investigated together. The
descriptions made during the survey remain the statements for the Definitive Map.
These statements (Appendix 65 & 66) were compiled by Mr F. Wiliams of
Wyedene, Llandogo in the Community of Trellech. Modern records are not able to
verify the location of Wyedene, however, the mention of Ivydene, which was the
previous name of Misty Cottage, is located adjacent to the route in question.
Regardless of the precise location of Mr F. Williams's home he did live in
Llandogo. Therefore, he had some local knowledge of the route in question
although in point 12.16 it is shown that he did not know the full extent of the public

highway and, as a result, described the whole route.

12.27. Public Rights of Way (PROW) 20 to 24 states:-
e “Starts on County Road W. of The Mount. Rough surface road passing through

wood as far as Young’s Cottage. Continuing as unsurfaced road for a quarter

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 85
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan%tgbéto B 8th July 2016.doc



12.28.

12.29.

12.30.

12.31.

12.32.

12.33.

12.34.

of a mile approx. with a turning point for lorries at the end. Road now continues

as a CRF crossing Cleddon Shoots into Cloisters Lane near Marigold Cottage”.

It is noted that the first part of the above statement refers to the county road C40-7
as a rough surfaced road. Then from Young’s Cottage now known as Bargan’s
Cottage the route in question is described as not being surfaced. By stating this
for this section of the route in question, it proves that the way was never regarded
as forming part of the publicly maintained highway and also suggests that it was

not regularly used by the public at large in motorised vehicles.

“

Furthermore, “.....a turning point for lorries at the end” has been reported to be
private vehicular use as the local coal merchant owned a house along the lane and
used the small turning area near Glyncote to store his coal and to turn his vehicle.
The route in question, however, appears to be too narrow to negotiate such a

manoeuvre in a lorry.

The Definitive Map Statement uses the word “road” on a humber of occasions. It
is incorrect to assume that the descriptive word “road” automatically stipulates that
such a route should have public vehicular rights and be maintained at public

expense.

The other existing public footpaths have Definitive Map Statements that add further

information to the route in question. The descriptions for the routes are as follows:

PROW Trellech 11to 14
e FP: Great Hill: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts at the Laurel Bush
Cottage on the Llandogo Trellech Road. After First 25 yards mount by stone

steps exit on to Glen Road, 20 yards south of Wyevern Cottage.

PROW Trellech 15, 16 and 17
e FP: Great Hill: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Continuation of FP No.12.
Starts at Wyevern Cottage on the Glen Road, continuation of rough stone steps

for 100 yds then rough pathway through woods to Cledden [sic].

PROW Trellech 18 to 19
e FP: Hollow Lane: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts at Inglewood House
on the Llandogo Trellech Road mounts hill with stone wall left hand side;

Earthen bank on other. Approx. width 6ft. Exit on to Glen Road.

86

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoT(ij?ﬁference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



12.35. PROW Trellech 49 to 50
e FP: -: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts 10 yds above the junction of FP
No. 48 branching right from the Great Hill FP No. 5[sic] rough track bordered by
low stone walls serving 3 cottages before crossing FP no 18 and 19 then runs

up to join CRB No. 23 and 24 at its terminus.

12.36. The Definitive Map Statement records the path to be described as Trellech 49 to
50. Then in the description there is a typing error; an “0” after the number “5” is
missing. This is backed up by following the route described on the Definitive Map
and also noting that FP5 is not marked while FP50 is.

12.37. PROW Trellech 24
e CRF: -: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts on County road W of The

Mount. Rough surfaced road passing through wood as far as Young’s Cottage.
Continuing as unsurfaced road for a quarter of a mile approx. with turning point
for lorries at the end. Road now continues as a CRF crossing Cleddon Shoots

into Cloisters Lane near Marigold Cottage.

12.38. Three of these statements refer to the route in question as “Glen Road”. The
possible reason for this may be that Glen Cote is the name of the property at the
northern end (point B) of the route in question. The route in question has evidently
been described in many different terms, but none of these descriptions of the route

in question endorse any type of public or private use.

12.39. It is noted from all of these statements that the whole area is referred to as “Great

Hill”; this name is not attributed to a single dwelling.

12.40. In keeping with all the Ordnance Survey Maps that record the physical features
such as boundaries, surface changes and widths for the route in question along
with these Statements it suggests that the surveyor was using the word “road”
descriptively to record the physical nature of the route on the Definitive Map &
Statement and not stipulating a public vehicular, a horse drawn cart or bridleway
right. This reason is verified by the fact that the DM&S records the route in

guestion as being a road used as a public path.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 87
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan%tgbéto B 8th July 2016.doc



13. The Highway Records

13.1. Both the 1% April 1949 Highway Map and current “List of Streets” do not record the
route in question as a county unclassified highway. The OS base maps on which
the Highway information is recorded shows the route in question on a similar

alignment to all previous historical maps discussed.

13.2. The scale of the 1949 Highway record shows a possible barrier at point X on the
plan below. This suggests that the route in question was not regarded as the main

route up to the area called “Great Hill”.

Fig. 13.1:
1949 Highway Records: not to scale: MCC

88 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ é?é\tye COT6§ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



13.3. The undated Highway records show the same roads shaded as the 1949 Highway
plan records. With the larger scale of this Ordnance Survey base map it is noted
that the possible barrier at point X on the plan below is probably only a change in

surface.

13.4. The evidence that county road 40-7 is the only section recorded on the Highway
documents shows that the route in question was not regarded as a thoroughfare
for the use of motorised vehicles by the public at large.

ﬂ* - -
¥ ang i --
Fig. 13.2: Appendix 22: Applicants’ Evidence 11
Undated histotical highway records: not to scale: MCC
REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 89

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan(f[goélfo B 8th July 2016.doc



14. Aerial Photographs

14.1. The Aerial Photograph dated 13 April 1947 shows that north of Glen Cote there
is evidence of a small turning triangle depicted by wide light grey shading.
However there are no additional similar markings continuing northwest or

northeast from this location.

w7 Glen Co.té.
’i. - .

=,

-
-
-

Fig. 14.1:

Aerial photograph: Dated 13 April 1947: National Assembly of Wales
(MCC has a purchased copy. It is available at MCC office for viewing.)

14.2. This shows that the route in question was not regarded as the regular way for the
public at large in motorised or non-motorised vehicles to access other properties
north of Cleddon Shoots.

920 REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁ CountyeCoTrc'j%ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



14.3. Although the tree canopy in April 1947 is not dense at the time this photograph
was taken, it is still difficult to see an impression of RB 24 through to Cleddon
Shoots. This suggests that if the alignment of RB 24 were more discernible
between the trees than that currently shown, it would support the fact that the
entire route was more frequently used by the public at large. This is not evident in
this photograph. Therefore, the route being investigated is not used as a through
route by the public in motorised vehicles, horse-drawn carts or on horses.

14.4. Furthermore, there are no high boundaries causing shadows to fall across the
route in question making it possible to view the difference in surface between the
cart road bridleways (CRBs) 23 and 22. When viewing the photographs through a
stereograph, CRB23 has a rougher surface compared to the more frequently used
CRB22 and FP18. This shows that the section of the route in question near Glen

Cote was not regarded as a main road.

14.5. Public FP18 east of Glen Cote and descending the “Great Hill” area is shown in
greater relief suggesting that it was more regularly used to ascend and descend
the area. Because of this daily use it became more susceptible to erosion than the

other ways that run parallel to the contours of the hillside.

14.6. The Aerial Photograph dated 27 March 1970 shows the route in question vividly
in a medium grey shading and, when viewed through a stereograph, a grass knoll
is seen in the middle of the CRB 23. This proves the irregular use of the route in

question which allowed the grass to grow along this non-sealed surface.

14.7. When viewing the entrance of the turning triangle north of Glen Cote through a
stereograph, it is noted that a barrier of some description was located to prevent
some type of use. At the same time the aerial photograph shows another larger
turning area directly north of Cleddon Stile being more evident 19 years after the
1951 survey for the Definitive Map. However, the aerial photograph does reveal a
distinctive change in surface type which suggests that the larger turning area was

possibly for private land management requirements.

14.8. It is not clear from this aerial photograph what this area might have been used for.
However, it has been clarified by users and local inhabitants as being an area for
the private delivery of coal by a small ford delivery truck and not for the use of the

general public.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 91
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 éanTgO%to B 8th July 2016.doc



14.9. The aerial photographic evidence proves that the public at large did not frequently

use the route in question as a major vehicular or equestrian thoroughfare. This is
particularly evident on the sections marked CRB23 and RB24.

“x)uAu«uu.wo ’ O ‘\pmm S IEI mm’:;??,m NS
C-‘dE ,AJ') RS St RO, a‘i

TVL“” § TP

Flg. 14.2:

Aerial photograph: Dated 27* March 1970:

National Assembly of Wales
(MCC has a purchased copy. It is available at MCC office for viewing.)

92

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
Monmouthsﬁg&tyemitﬂa?ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



15. Site photographs (4ppendixes 51 to 58).

15.1. The first three photographs taken on the 16" March 1998 (Appendix 51) are
of a land slip below Bargan's Cottage and the route in question shows a

patched sealed surface.

15.2. The photographs taken on the 29" February 2000 (Appendixes 52 & 53)
show most of the route in question to have a sealed surface that in some areas
is broken. The wear and tear of these sections of broken ground have evidence
of tyre marks near them. This shows that the use of the route has been with
vehicles and it is evident that it is this type of use that has damaged the surface
of the route in question.

15.3. The photographs taken in 2004 (Appendix 54) (Photographs 1, 2 & 3) show a
recently sealed surface along with the evidence of tyre tracks damaging the
edges of the route in question. Photograph 4 shows the unchanged surface of
CRB 23. The evidence in this photograph shows a central grass knoll with
parallel wearing made by wheeled vehicular traffic. However, it is evident from
other historical documentation that the usage is limited to reported coal delivery
and to the requirements of a single dwelling prior to the proposed development

of the property in 2004.

15.4. The evidence in photograph 1 (Appendix 56) of the stepping stones show that
this route was not considered as a vehicular through route. In support of this
reasoning is that the office file for restricted byway (RB) 24 (formerly cart road
footpath) contains no complaints regarding the surface of the route and the
need for the stones to be removed to allow motorised, horse drawn cart,
equestrian or cyclist traffic. Furthermore, none of these photographs show a
wide route with a central knoll of grass. Instead, a single narrow route in

keeping with that expected for footpaths is illustrated.

15.5. The photographs taken in 2014 (Appendixes 57 & 58) show the route
relatively unchanged when compared with the photographs taken in 2004.
Photograph 4 (Appendix 57) shows the evidence of motor car usage that has
worn wheeled tracks and a central grass knoll over the section CRB 23. The
comparison of the 2004 photographs with the 2014 photographs indicates that
the evidence of motor car usage has not changed. This limited use supports the

fact that this route has not been enjoyed by the public at large. It is more

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 93
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 éanTgOéto B 8th July 2016.doc



15.6.

15.7.

15.8.

15.9.

difficult from these photographs to prove along the section CRB 20 to 22 only
public bridleway or footpath use, because the sealed surface hides much of that

type of use.

The photographs of RB 24 (Appendix 58) show the route to be narrow in
comparison to the previous section CRB 20 to 23 (Appendix 57) and this
evidence supports the fact that the route in question is not a public thoroughfare

for public motorised vehicles, non-motorised vehicles or horses.

The photographs of RB 24 show that this section of the route is used mainly by
pedestrians. It is difficult from these photographs to prove horse riding or cycling

use.

The limitations imposed by the location of the route being investigated suggests
that there was once private equestrian usage in the past carried out by local
inhabitants and their associated needs. Then, much later, modern private
vehicular usage was and is still conducted by the local homeowners wishing to

gain access.

The site photographs when taken together with all the other evidence discussed
so far suggests that the public usage of the route in question is mainly

pedestrian.

924

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoT(fjlﬁference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



16. The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

16.1. Regulations associated with restricted byways (RBs) and roads used as public
paths (RUPPs) came into force on the 11" May 2006 in Wales (through the
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (Commencement No. 8 & Transitional
Provisions)(Wales) Order 2006).

16.2. The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) sections

66-72 Part 6 came into force in Wales on the 16™ November 2006.

16.3. A guide for local authorities, enforcement agencies, rights of way users and
practitioners compiled by DEFRA for Part 6 of NERC and Restricted Byways is

used here to test whether or not the Act applies in this case.

16.4. All the 2006 NERC Act sub-sections have been investigated as the points raise
questions that assist in determining whether or not public vehicular rights exist
over the route in question. These sub-sections have been copied along with all
the relative comments and are included at Appendixes 59 to 61. The flow chart
illustrating the process for determining public rights of way for mechanically
propelled vehicles (MPVs) over any given way are included in Appendixes 62 to
64.

16.5. The sub-sections 67(3a) and (6) do apply to this claim and are repeated below:-
e Sub-Section 67(3)(a) states that: Subsection (1) does not apply to an

existing public right of way if before the relevant date (19™ May

2005(s.67(4)), an application was made under section 53(5) of the Wildlife

and Countryside Act 1981 (c.69) for an order making modification to the

definitive map and statement so as to show the way as a byway open to all

traffic, (BOAT).

Comment

16.5.1. This Definitive Map Modification Order application to register a
byway open to all traffic (BOAT) was submitted on the 13" April
2004. This predates the coming into force of the legislation that
means MPVs rights are not extinguished over the route in question
if it is the subject of an application.

16.5.2. It does, however, mean that the DMMO has to determine to
establish whether or not public motorised rights do or do not exists

over the route in question.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 95
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan%tgiéto B 8th July 2016.doc



o Sub-Section 67(6) states that: for the purposes of subsection (3), an
application under section 53(5) of the 1981 Act is made when it is made in
accordance with paragraph 1 of Schedule 14 of that Act.

Comment

16.5.3. Yes, the Definitive Map Modification Order Application is valid and
was made on the 13™ April 2004. This means that public MPVs are
not automatically extinguished by the 2006 NERC Act for CRBs 20,
21, 22 and 23.

Concluding Comments

16.6.

16.7.

16.8.

It has been demonstrated here that under section 67(2) of the 2006 NERC Act
MPV rights are extinguished for the entire route marked. However, under
section 67(3)(a) and 67 (6) of the 2006 NERC Act the public MPV rights are not
extinguished for CRBs 20, 21, 22 and 23 due to the outstanding 2004 DMMO
claim for a BOAT.

Although the tests under subsection 67(2) of the 2006 NERC Act do not apply
due to the 2004 DMMO claim being outstanding at the date of commencement,
an examination of the exceptions has been applied to the whole route in
question for completeness (Appendixes 59 to 61). It is shown that with the aid
of these “test questions”, under subsection 67(2), the route being investigated

does not have public vehicular rights.

The 2004 DMMO for the route in question, A to B, prevents the 2006 NERC Act
from automatically extinguishing public MPV rights. However, the DMMO
evidence remains to be investigated to determine the level of public status and

research has shown that in this case the entire route is only a public footpath.

96

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoTciITference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



17. Section A to B - Review

17.1.

17.2.

17.3.

17.4.

17.5.

17.6.

17.7.

The Applicants, under the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 s53 (3)(c)(ii), submitted
their claim seeking to upgrade the status of CRBs 20 to 23, points A to B,
(Appendix 4) to a byway open to all traffic (BOAT).

Under common law the terms “without force” is met because there has not been
any barrier placed across the route in question as the route is already a registered
public right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement. “Without secrecy” is met
as the inhabitants of the area have openly utilised the route in question to access
their private properties, and this type of use is not made by the public at large in
either a vehicle, horse drawn cart or on horseback. “Without permission” is met as
the inhabitants honestly believe that they have the right to drive their vehicles over
the route in question to access their homes. The evidence discussed in this report
shows that this belief does not extend to public vehicular, non-motorised or
equestrian rights.

In considering this Application the Council seeks to determine whether or not
public vehicular rights exist and cannot take into account need, nuisance or

suitability.

The regular use of the route in question has been reported by local inhabitants to
have been in a private capacity. The reported usage of the route in question has
historically been with the use of a pack horse to transport household items to
various properties and similarly the current use has been by vehicles to gain

access to their private dwellings.

While there are some reports of private vehicular use over section A to B, there is
no single “decisive” piece of evidence to show any public vehicular or equestrian

rights.

On balance, when all the evidence is taken together it is shown that the recording

of section A to B, should be that of a public footpath.

The 1952 Conveyance of land for Rock Cottage mentions “public road” but does
not specify the type of public rights, the maintenance responsibility and the extent
or level of that responsibility. Additionally, due to the fact that the plan is missing,
the proof and weight of this historic document is weak and only an unsubstantiated

interpretation can be applied to it.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 97
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan%tgiéto B 8th July 2016.doc



17.8.

17.9.

17.10.

17.11.

17.12.

17.13.

17.14.

The Planning Report numbered A36666 correctly describes the route in question
as a public right of way. However, it is incorrect in stating that there are public
vehicular rights. The context for the 1993 planning report A36666 is for permitted
development and this planning report does not have the legislative weight to make
the allegations regarding any public rights.

In a previous planning application, number A29567, is a consultation letter dated
7" September 1988 from the Highways Department. This letter states that the
route in question, along with other substandard roads in the Llandogo area, is
narrow and steeply graded with poor horizontal alignment being unsuitable for
further residential development.

It is evident that comments made under planning permission have not been taken
into consideration and that construction of the dwelling at the end of CRB 23 has

now been completed.

The witness statements all confirm that the route in question has been available for
access to their private dwellings in motorised vehicles. Additionally, the local
inhabitants of the “Great Hill’, Llandogo, have invited friends, family and utility
providing services to their private dwellings. These invited people have attained
access over the route in question in motor vehicles. This type of use is not
regarded as being use made by the public at large. Therefore this private
vehicular use carries no obligation in any sense that the route in question is a

public byway open to all traffic.

The six evidence forms submitted do not sufficiently support public vehicular rights
as the usage is similar to the private vehicular requirement that has been

highlighted within the witness statements.

Two pre-order consultations were carried out one in 2004 and another in 2015 the
results of which show that the route in question is not regarded as a public
vehicular thoroughfare. Additionally, it is noted that the majority of the inhabitants
of the “Great Hill’ area are confident that they had and could prove their
established private vehicular rights and believe that there is no requirement to

record public vehicular rights.

Moreover, Mr T. Wilkinson John of Cleddon Stile in 1988 (Appendix 43) and Mr
Ashely Thomas of Rosehill in 2015 both report, on two separate occasions, that

the route in question is not adopted and that its maintenance is the responsibility of

98

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCochf-léference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



17.15.

17.16.

17.17.

17.18.

17.19.

17.20.

17.21.

the adjacent landlords and is not and has never been a “byway open to all traffic”

maintainable at public expense.

Regardless of other Land Registry documents for the surrounding area, the 2015
Land Registry documents for Llecan Beck; the statement by a witness who lived in
Cleddon Stile; and a pre-consultation result from the landowner of Rosehill, all
refer to the route in question as a “private roadway”. These three, when taken
together, on balance, with all the other historical evidence and documentation
investigated, demonstrates that there is no evidence that positively supports public

vehicular or equestrian rights over the route in question.

There are two commercial maps, the Greenwood and Price Maps, which were
reproduced prior to the 1835 Highways Act. This Act stipulates that any route
depicted on a map prior to 1% August 1835 meant that that route was maintainable
at public expense. These two maps are the only records that show alignments
which possibly represent all or parts of the route in question.

The 1830 Ordnance Survey Maps compiled under strict administration, and the
facsimiles of that survey, the David & Charles and Cassini Maps, do not show the

route in question.

There is no Enclosure Award map that specifically lays out the alignments of every
type of road and way. Additionally, the history of the Manor of Llandogo was
researched and there were no details included in the documents that record a

landowner or support any type of public right.

The information gathered from these earlier historical maps suggest that the route
in question is probably not maintainable at public expense and neither does the
earlier documentation support the claim for the route in question to be registered

as a public byway open to all traffic, restricted byway or bridleway.

The 1828 and 1834 plans within the deed papers of Cleddon Shoots have on them
pencil marks probably indicating section A to B of the route in question to be a
method of referencing the land to physical features noted on the ground. These
deeds do not support the claim for public vehicular rights. Neither of these deed
plans show the route to continue through Cleddon Shoots which suggests that the

route in question was not regarded as a public thoroughfare for vehicles or horses.

The shading of the 1846 Tithe Map ends at points A & B; the “white out” on the
Finance Act map ends at points A & B; and the probable evidence of two barriers

at point A shown on the 1881 O S map suggests the access to the “Great Hill” area

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 99
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan%tgiz-to B 8th July 2016.doc



17.22.

17.23.

17.24.

17.25.

17.26.

to be from its north eastern junction with the Llandogo/Trellech road and not from
the south as is the current practice. This means that public Footpaths 18 & 19
were probably used as the main routes up the hill as evidenced on the 1846 Tithe
Map. Therefore, all three map sets, the Tithe, the Finance Map and all the
Ordnance Survey Maps, do not support public vehicular or equestrian rights. Also,
due to the topography of the area, along with the historical map evidence
investigated, suggests that the route in question should be designated as a public
footpath.

The 1846 Tithe Map and the 1910 Finance Act Map do not record a specific
landowner for the route in question. Furthermore, the earlier Enclosure Awards
and Manorial documents do not give details regarding landownership, whereas

common law requires demonstration of a capacity to dedicate land usage.

Although, the historical maps such as the Tithe and Finance Act maps normally
evidence higher status than that of footpaths, there are always exceptions to the
rule. An exception is shown here when comparing both the historical maps with
the Definitive Map. This comparison reveals that all the existing public footpaths
marked in the relevant area on the Definitive Map are shown shaded on the Tithe
map and are non-shaded on the Finance Act Map. These documents alone do not
necessarily mean that routes depicted like this are to be recorded as public roads
that are utilised by the public at large in vehicles or on horseback. However, it
does demonstrate that it is possible that footpaths can also be found to be shown

on these historical maps as shaded or non-shaded.

The Tithe and Finance Act maps, although useful in support of a claim, cannot be
taken alone, as these maps were specifically compiled to identify “titheable” land or
the value of land with regards Inland Revenue. These maps were not specifically
constructed to assist in identifying public ways. This suggests that, on balance,
when all other documental and physical evidence is considered, there are no

public vehicular, horse drawn cart or equestrian rights over the route in question.

The Definitive Map and Statement is afforded considerable weight due to the
statutory provision and the continuous review as set out under section 53 of the
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

Therefore, evidence of some substance is required to refute that which is already
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement. Furthermore, as has been

revealed in this Report, the terminology used for the route in question is

100

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCochf-%ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



ambiguous and has led to further study which has been carried out below in a

question and answer format.

17.27. Is the whole route a ‘road used as a public path™?
Yes. The legal symbol of a ‘broken green line’ for RUPPs is shown for the entire

route and mentioned in the Definitive Map title.

17.28. Is section A to B a Public] Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as a bridleway...?
No. The title to the Definitive Map was changed at Provisional stage and the word

3

“public” was substituted by the word “private”.

17.29. Is section A to B a “[Private] Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as a bridleway...”?
No. This non-statutory symbol for a cart road bridleway (CRB) is explained by
Lord Denning in the case “R v Environment Secretary, ex p. Hood 1975 1QB 891"
(see Chapter 12) to be misleading. The reason is because local authorities did not
know whether a cart road was “public” or “private” and that this symbol along with
the symbol for a cart road footpath (CRF) were both marked against the same
notation for a “road used as a public path” on the Map. Further, although the non-
statutory symbol for a cart road bridleway (CRB) may have been provided within
official guidelines, it remains non-statutory, while the symbol of “broken green line”

remains the statutory symbol for “roads used as a public path”.

17.30. Is section A to B ‘mainly used as a bridleway™? No.

In other words, does the public at large use this section as a bridleway? No.

Although this section has had this designation (CRB) since 1952 (the relevant date

for the Definitive Map & Statement (DM&S)), the evidence of public equestrian use

reported in some historical accounts for the general area, is not specifically
attributed to the route in question.

17.30.1. More specifically, as the route is marked on the DM&S, legislation states
that evidence of some substance has to be shown to refute that which is
already recorded.

17.30.2. Only section B to C has a report by local inhabitants that coal has been
transported with the help of a horse. By these means, these inhabitants
found it easier to move coal from point B to their own homes near point C.
This is private equestrian use.

17.30.3. There is no record of public equestrian use for the section A to B either on
horseback, leading a horse, or with horse and cart.

17.30.4. There is no evidence on the office file of any regular reports stating issues
with the surface of the route. On the one hand, regular equestrian use

would cut deep single ruts into any soft surface and, on the other hand,

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 101
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 éanTgi%to B 8th July 2016.doc



17.31.

17.30.5.

17.30.6.

17.30.7.

17.30.8.

17.30.9.

equestrians do not like tarmac as it can be slippery. There are no
complaints on file relating to either surface type.

It has been reported that this route serves as an access to at least 12
separate dwellings which means that if this route had been deeply rutted
by equestrian use then there would have been many complaints over the
years requesting the repair of the route. Since 1952 only one surface
repair request has been raised. This was by Mr Greggains and it pertains
to the wear and tear of the sealed surface of the route in question which
would not have been caused or made by equestrian use.

The 1998, 2000, 2004 and 2014 photographs and site visits revealed no
horse hoof marks on any open ground. Further, no horse muck on the
existing sealed surface was found, which shows that there was no regular
equestrian use of the whole route in question.

The route in question connects with no other bridleways. From point B
northwards it has been essentially regarded as only a footpath and from
point C onwards all other public routes are registered as footpaths.
Furthermore, other routes from the east and continuing westwards are all
recorded as existing public footpaths.

This means that if A to B is to be recorded on the DM&S as a bridleway
then it is isolated and not a through route linking to any other public
bridleways. Isolation from other bridleways would be pointless as any
public enjoyment of a route would be to continue and not have to go out
and the return on a single alignment. Furthermore, it would be dangerous
to invite equestrian use of the section B to C. This is discussed in Report
2 in greater detail.

If any one of the points raised here is taken alone it would not be enough
evidence to refute what is already recorded on the Definitive Map.
However, when taking all the points raised here along with all the other
evidence discussed it is shown that, on balance, the evidence does

substantially refute the recording of a public bridleway.

The Definitive Map Statement for the route in question along with the statements

for other public rights of way in the area refer to the route being an “unsurfaced

road” or

“Glen road”. The recording of “unsurfaced road” indicates that the route in

guestion was never regarded as forming part of the publicly maintained highway

and also that the route was not regularly used by public vehicles. The naming of

the route in question as “Glen road” is purely for location and descriptive purpose

and does not authorise public or private vehicular status.

102

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoTciR?ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



17.32. The 1949 historical highway map is the first recording of the highway C40-7 which
only extends to point A, just south of Bargans Cottage. The highway records show
that the route in question was not regarded as publicly maintained highway and
therefore not added to the “List of Streets”. When C40-7 was constructed it
became the only way for vehicles to access the private dwellings in the “Great Hill”

area.

17.33. The 1949 & 1970 aerial photographs show the section A to B of the route in
question which was viewed through a stereograph and the difference in surfaces
between RUPPs (CRB22) and (CRB23) was noted. This difference in the
surfaces, depicted on these aerial photographs, along the route in question
substantially pre-dates the recent works and shows that the section near Glen

Cote was not considered a main through road for public vehicles.

17.34. The site photographs dated 1998, 2004 and 2014 confirm what is presented in the
aerial photographs by showing CRB 20 to 22 to have a sealed surface while CRB
23 is not surfaced although the evidence of a central grass knoll, along with
parallel wearing lines made by wheeled traffic, does show that some motorised
vehicles have used this section. It has provided and continues to provide access
to a private garage and is not used by the public at large. Furthermore, there is no
horse use damage along this section. If there had been surface disturbance made
by horses then more complaints would have been made to the Authority by

adjoining landowners and/or the public at large regarding surface repairs.

17.35. The outstanding 2004 Definitive Map Modification Order Application for the route in
question between points A to B is not subject to the tests as laid out under section
67 of the 2006 Natural Environment and Rural Act.

17.36. The results of this investigation show that the vehicular usage both in the past and
in more recent times has, on balance, been made by the inhabitants of the “Great

Hill” area to access their private homes.

17.37. Furthermore, an investigation of all the historical, documental and user evidence,
along with the lack of any regular requests for maintenance, shows that nothing
has been found to substantiate the claim that the route in question should be
recorded as a public byway open to all traffic, a restricted byway (i.e. for horse
drawn cart) or a bridleway. It then remains that, in keeping with the other existing
registered public rights of way in the area, CRB 20 to 23 should be recorded as a

public footpath.

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 103
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 éanTgiéto B 8th July 2016.doc



18. Conclusion

18.1.

18.2.

18.3.

18.4.

18.5.

18.6.

It is concluded that there are no public vehicular rights for the entire route. Only a
part of the section A to B is marked on the poorer quality maps (1823 Price map

and the 1830 Greenwood map) and not the section marked CRB 23.

Although, these more generalised maps do predate the 1835 Highways Act they
do not, on balance, give weight to the entire route having public vehicular rights.
With their specific production criteria the evidence from these two early 1800s
historical maps along with all the other historical documentation does not add
weight to the evidence that suggests the entire route be registered as a byway
open to all traffic.

There is one complaint from a local inhabitant with regard to the public parking
their vehicles along the route in question. Moreover, the pre-order consultation
only mentions a single report of anti-social motorbike use for the entire route. This
evidence for public vehicular use is insufficient to register the route in question as

a byway open to all traffic.

As far as it is possible with the historical documents available, it has been
demonstrated here that the proper procedures in production of the Definitive Map
and Statement were followed. Therefore, the standard of evidence investigated
and interrogated within this report demonstrates actual positive evidence, of some
substance, which shows a contrary position to that made by the Applicants and the

one included on the Definitive Map and Statement.

All the historical, documental and user evidence for section A to B and also that
evidence which applies to section B to C detailed in Report 2 for the route being
investigated, shows that there is no suggestion of use by the public at large either

in motorised vehicles, in a horse drawn cart or on horseback.

Therefore, this being the case and along with the knowledge that public footpath
rights crisscross the area known as the “Great Hill”, then with all this evidence
taken together, it is shown that, on the balance of probabilities, the route in
question, cart road bridleways (CRB) 20 to 23, does not have higher public rights

and should be registered as a public footpath.

104

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8™ July 2016
MonmouthsiSe CountyeCoTci@ference: Countryside: Report 1.18 Llandogo A to B 8th July 2016.doc



19. Recommendation

19.1. Members are invited to resolve that advice (autherisation) be given to the
Community Services Cabinet Portfolio Member to (proceed-with) authorise the
making the Modification Order under section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 to classify the CRBs 20, 21, 22 & 23 as footpaths as

detailed in this report and to confirm or seek confirmation of the Order.

|
/7\' /

JMSEEV Qe e
Mandy Mussell Ruth Rourke
Definitive Map Officer Principal Countryside Access Officer
June 2016 June 2016

Authors:  Mandy Mussell, Definitive Map Officer and R. Rourke, Principal Countryside

Access Officer

Contact Details:  Telephone: Ext 4813
Email: mandymussell@Monmouthshire.gov.uk

REPORT 1: SECTION A to B: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8" July 2016 105
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Reﬁrt 1.18 Lelan?tgééto B 8th July 2016.doc



Monmouthshire County Council

Countryside Access

Licence and Regulatory Committee Report
Definitive Map Modification Order

Cleddon Shoots, Llandogo, Trellech
REPORT 2: SECTION B TO C (24)

8" July 2016

File Ref: 41Mod _Llandogo CRB23

Page 121



Index

S [ (o o [F {1 [o] o PO PP TP P PP PP PPPPPP PR PPPON 1-2
N =T -1 =T =SSP 3
3. Statutory BaCKgrOUNG ............uuuiiieiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiiie e eennenessennennnne 4-9
4. WINESS SEALEIMIENT. .. ettt 10
5. EVIOENCE FOIMMS ..ottt e e e reeeeas 11-12
6. Pre-Order CONSUIALIONS ........cuiiiiiiiiiiiiii e 13-18
7. Land Registry Documents (official copies requested in 2015)............eevvvvvveninnnnns 19-20
8. Historical Map EVIAENCE .......uuiiii it 21-40
9. The Definitive Map and Statement..........cccooeeeiiiiiiiiiiie e 41 -51
10. The Highway RECOIUS .......ccooeiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeee 52 - 53
11. Aerial Photographs .......coooooiiooe 54 - 56
12. Site PhotOgraphs ........ovueiii e 57 - 58
13. Natural Environment and Rural Communities ACt 2006 ............ccoouiiiiiriiiiieeeeeiiiiinnne 59
14. SeCtioN B 1O C - REVIEW .....cooeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e 60 - 64
L T o  [od V1] T o 65
16. RECOMMENUALION. .....cii i a e 66
Glossary

Appendixes for both Reports 1 to 66

Page 122



1. Introduction: Definitive Map Modification Order
1.1. This Report discusses the status of restricted byway (RB) 24 (B to C). Appendix 1
shows the location of the route in question that is in Llandogo in the community of
Trellech.
1.2. Research for the entire route, A to C (Fig.1.1) was undertaken as some or all of the

historical evidence may or may not support the claim submitted for section A to B

(Report 1).

documentary evidence and carry out site visits for the whole route once.

Rather than repeat the research it was expedient to investigate via
The

historic records investigated were obtained from the Gwent and National Record

Offices and the Welsh National Library.

¥

[ Pam

The Freedomn

g (nd

5
A
e’)\
\

-~

3
%

.

ouh )

Fraedam

L R

v
M o
| 2/ %e0%
/ PRR— " ??'0\.\\9'0
(s - W -
LLANDOGO

43.0m

"Wl' s
BV 4T

o I

or

r-. R

& | I

EM #2.12m
Gl Yow Tree

Caege )

vzt
Mo

TO BARGAIN WOOD &
CATBROOK

Section 53

LOTANY €L 0N

fecroduced fromthe Onlmmn.
Fio. 1.1: Consultation blan

Defintive Map Modification Order

Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981

Route to be reclassified eees—
Other Public RIONLS O V@Y e s e

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committ
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.

Eh 2
ﬂ%QB July 2016.doc



1.3.

1.4.

1.5.

1.6.

The Council needs to decide whether the available evidence suggests that the
registered restricted byway RB 24 should be recorded as:
¢ a public footpath (available to the public on foot only),
e a public bridleway (available to the public on foot and with horses);
e a public restricted byway (RB) (available to the public on foot, with horses and
with vehicles other than mechanically propelled vehicles); or
e a public byway open to all traffic (BOAT) (available to the public on foot, with

horses, horse drawn carts, and with motorised vehicles).

In considering this matter, issues of need, nuisance or suitability cannot be taken
into account. Instead, what should be considered is whether the public enjoy
equestrian and vehicular rights over the route in question. However, suitability
cannot be taken into account as it may be a factor in deciding whether or not
certain types of use by the public would, in fact, have been likely or possible in the

past.

While it is already understood that some public rights are shown to exist as are
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement (relevant date 1 July 1952), this
Report seeks to determine whether or not public vehicular, horse drawn cart or

eqguestrian rights exist over the route in question.

This Report only deals with section B to C.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MOI]SOUthShi%COT?(ﬁunC" Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



2. Legal Tests

2.1. The legal tests for B to C, the route in question are under the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (WCA) section 53(3)(c)(ii) that concerns itself with a highway
that has been recorded at a particular status on the Definitive Map and Statement
and should instead be recorded with a different status. Section 53(3)(c) of the
1981 WCA is distinct from other sections of the WCA as, in these types of claims,
historical evidence is uncovered in support for amendment or otherwise of a path

prior to the 1% January 2026.

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 s53:

2.2.  The Section 53(2) of the 1981 places two duties on the Authority:
(2) As regards every definitive map and statement, the surveying authority
shall-

(a) as soon as reasonably practicable after the commencement date, by
order make such modifications to the map and statement as appear to
them to be requisite in consequence of the occurrence, before that
date, of any of the events specified in subsection (3); and

(b) as from that date, keep the map and statement under continuous
review and as soon as reasonably practicable after the occurrence on
or after that date, of any of those events, by order make such
modifications to the map and statement as appear to them to be

requisite in consequence of the occurrence of that event.
2.3. Together these duties are known as the continuous review of the DM&S.

2.4. Events fall into two categories “legal events” and “evidential events”. The basis of

an application falls within the evidential event of section 53 (3)(c)(ii).

Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 s53:

(3) The events referred to in subsection (2) above are as follows:
(c) the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with
all other relevant evidence available to them) shows —
(i) that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a
particular description ought to be there shown as a highway of a

different description;

2.5.  Further to the above the standard of proof for both the making and confirmation of

a Definitive Map Modification Order is “on the balance of probabilities”.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g slgu&ﬁm 3
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



3. Statutory Background

How public rights of way came about

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The law has always acknowledged that the public right to use a highway lies in
dedication by the owner and that public use alone does not create a highway. The
law is clear that if there has been a public uninterrupted user of a road for such a
length of time as to satisfy a jury that the owner of the soil, whoever he might be,
intended to dedicate it to the public, this is sufficient to prove the existence of a
highway, even though it cannot be ascertained who the owner of it has been
during the time the road has been used by the public.

The types of highway recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement (relevant date
1 July 1952) are footpaths, bridleways, restricted byways and byways open to all

traffic.

A footpath only allows walkers; a bridleway allows walkers, horse riders (including
people leading a horse) and possibly the right to drive cattle; a restricted byway
allows all the above descriptions including non-mechanically propelled vehicles like
a horse drawn cart; and a byway open to all traffic allows all types of traffic as
listed above including motorised vehicles.

Common Law

3.4.

3.5.

3.6.

3.7.

Common law originally specified three types of highway, those being footpaths,
bridleways and carriageways. Common law is the basis on which statutory rights
have been built on. Therefore the type and level of user for these ways is in some
respects similar. Over the years legislation has extended the rights where for
example carriageways have been subdivided into other types of routes, some
being byways open to all traffic while others are now referred to as restricted

byways.

DMMO applications, where a way has become public from long usage, are now
generally made under a statutory provision where the common law principles of:

“without force”, “without secrecy” and “without permission” are clearly preserved by

law.

Common Law uses a term “as of right”, to explain the principle of long usage that
gives rise to a presumption of dedication where the use had to be without force,
without secrecy and without permission. Case law has enhanced the term “as of

right” to include “in the honest belief in a legal right to use”.

Provisions of section 31 of the 1980 Highways Act (HA) do not supersede the

principles of implied dedication that existed at common law before 1932. That

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]ﬁ(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



3.8.

3.9.

means where a claim is made in respect of a way that is not obstructed or where

use is for a period shorter than 20 years a claim may be made at common law.

However, where a claim is based only on common law, the requirement with
regard to capacity to dedicate still applies. On the section B to C there is a specific
landowner who has, to date, not dedicated public vehicular, non-motorised or

equestrian rights.

Furthermore, the tests under the 1980 Highways Act section 31 are not relevant to
this case as it is already understood some public rights, although ambiguous, are
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement.

Restrictions imposed by statute:

3.10.

3.11.

3.12.

3.13.

Before the year 2000 the Authority had not processed the duty to reclassify section
B to C under section 54 of the 1981 Wildlife and Countryside Act (WCA). This
section of the 1981 Act has now been revoked by the 2000 Countryside and Rights

of Way Act and is no longer available for use.

The 1980 Highways Act, section 31 does not apply as the route is already
registered as a public right of way on the Definitive Map and Statement as “cart
road footpath” (CRF) which is essentially a road used as a public path (RUPP). In
this case the route is regarded as a public footpath. This is discussed in detail in
Chapter 9 of this Report.

The 2000 Countryside and Rights of Way Act (CROW) Section 47 came into force
on the 11" May 2006 and re-designated roads used as public paths (RUPPSs) to
restricted byways (RB).

3.12.1. The Welsh Statutory Instruments (2006 N0.1279(V.124)(C.42) provided
that nothing in section 47 or 48 of the 2000 CROW Act affects the
operation of the relevant sections and schedules of the 1981 WCA if
either an order or an application for a relevant order was made before the
19™ May 2005.

Section 67(3) of the 2006 Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act does
not exempt B to C of the route in question being changed by the Act. When both
the Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (CROW) and the 2006 Natural
Environment and Rural Communities Act (NERC) came into force, the route
previously marked on the Definitive Map and Statement as a cart road footpath
was changed to a restricted byway. The extinguished public vehicular rights on
this section are discussed in detail in Chapter 13 of this Report and Appendixes 59
to 64.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g sl'm_u&zzm 5
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



3.14.

The tests under the 1981 Wildlife and Countryside Act are applied to determine
whether or not public vehicular rights already exist over section A to B of the route

in question.

THE LEGAL TESTS

Discovery of Evidence

3.15.

3.16.

3.17.

3.18.

3.19.

3.20.

Planning Inspectorate guidance summarises the position on discovery of evidence

that has evolved through Case Law:-
“In Mayhew it was argued that in order to be discovered, evidence had to
previously have been unavailable to the Authority. This argument was
rejected. The judge, Potts J, adopted parts of the judgment in R v Secretary of
State for the Environment ex parte Simms and Burrows where it was said that:
‘the word ‘discovery’ suggests the finding of some information which was
previously unknown, and which may result in a previously mistaken decision

being corrected”.

In addition, Potts J adopted the following passage from Simms and Burrows:-
“In particular | am satisfied that section 53(3)(c), with its use of the word
‘discovery’, embraces the situation where a mistaken decision has been made
and its correction becomes possible because of the discovery of information

which may or may not have existed at the time of the definitive map”.

In the Court’s view the meaning of “to discover” is to find out or become aware of.
The phrase implies a mental process of the discoverer applying their mind to

something previously unknown to them.

In terms of discovery of evidence in the current case, it is noted that discovery
need not exclude documents held in the archives at the time of drafting the
definitive map from 1952 to 1967. The 1910 Finance Act Records only became

available for public inspection from 1979 onwards.

This should, however, be considered in conjunction with the clarification offered in
later case law where the court noted that:
“It is plain that the section 53(3)(c) intends that a definitive map can be

"y

corrected, but the correction... is dependent on the 'discovery of evidence'.

In order to qualify as a discovery for the purposes of this case then, evidence that
existed at the time is able to qualify, though it must be new in the context of

evidence previously considered and the submission of evidence cannot be illegal

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]ﬁ(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



use of an existing way. Also, evidence already considered in a hearing or

otherwise at an earlier stage is precluded from forming the basis of a discovery.

Standard & Existence of Evidence
3.21. Planning Inspectorate guidance outlines that:-

“When considering whether a right of way already shown on definitive map
and statement should be deleted, or shown as a right of way of a different
description, the Inspector is not there to adjudicate on whether procedural
defects occurred at the time the right of way was added to the definitive map
and statement (for example notice was incorrectly served). Unless evidence
of a procedural defect is relevant to establishing the correct status of the right
of way concerned (for example a key piece of documentary evidence
indicating a different status was ignored), there can be no reason to consider
it. There must be presumption that the way is as shown on the definitive map
and statement, even if the procedures were defective, unless there is
evidence to establish that the way should be shown as being of a different

status, or not shown at all.”

3.22. Where there is no indication that the proper procedures were significantly departed
from, the standard of evidence that needs to be produced is that of actual positive
evidence of some substance, showing a contrary position to the one included on

the Definitive Map and Statement.

DMMO Process
3.23. It should be noted that the DMMO process seeks to ensure rights are correctly

recorded as they exist and is an exercise in modifying the definitive map to reflect
such a position. It is not within the remit of the DMMO process to give
consideration to matters such as privacy; the current or future necessity; or
usefulness of a route (though such factors may assist where they constitute

evidence of past use).

LEGAL TESTS - Discovery of Evidence
3.24. In this case the Council received the Application in 2004 to upgrade section A to B

an existing cart road bridleway to a byway open to all traffic which is considered in

greater detail in Report 1.

3.25. The investigation into all the available evidence meets the tests of ‘discovery of

evidence’. This is discussed in detail in this Report.

3.26. Itis not possible to show that the historical records were referred to in the process

of the compilation of the Definitive Map and Statement. While recognising that this

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g sl'm_u&?s 7
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



3.27.

3.28.

lack of surviving evidence does not prove that no consideration was given, it is
proposed that the submission of the historical documents at least, should be

considered sufficient for a discovery under section 53(3)(c)(ii).

Furthermore, when the definitive map was compiled, roads use as public paths
(RUPPs) were shown as either cart road bridleways (CRBs) or cart road footpaths
(CRFs). These terms have no legal significance. Hence the category “RUPP”

proved to be unsatisfactory.

A number of legislative attempts were enacted to reclassify the RUPPs and finally,
as stipulated by the test set out under section 67 of the Natural Environment and
Rural Communities Act 2006, the route in question B to C was registered as a

restricted byway.

LEGAL TESTS - Standard of Evidence

3.29.

3.30.

3.31.

3.32.

3.33.

While the historical evidence referred to must be demonstrated to be sufficient to
rebut the presumption of the existence of that already recorded on the Definitive
Map and Statement, the ambiguity of symbols for cart road bridleways; cart road
footpaths; roads used as public paths and also due to section 56(1) of the WCA
1981 Act where the depiction of a way as a RUPP on the definitive map was
conclusive evidence of the existence of bridleway rights, it proved difficult to

properly reclassify such a route to a footpath under section 54 of WCA 1981.

Therefore, if evidence existed that a way shown as a RUPP should have been
shown as a footpath, or indeed should not have been shown at all, it should be
tested by way of a modification order under section 53(3)(c) of WCA 1981, which
requires all the relevant evidence to be taken into account thereby meeting the

requirement for the ‘discovery of evidence’ as set out under that Act.

The full extent of the public status of the route was investigated in 2004. For the
purposes of this case the calling into question is therefore the submission of the
2004 DMMO Application dated 13" April 2004.

Under the CROW 2000 and Natural Environment and Rural Communities (NERC
2006) Acts, section B to C was designated as a public restricted byway (RB) and
public vehicular rights have been removed. Although, section B to C is not part of
the DMMO application, it is integral to the alleged claim and historical research has

been conducted for the whole route A to C.

Due to the changes made by NERC 2006 it is necessary to place two reports

before the Committee for decision on both orders to be made at the same time.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



= Report 1: Section A to B, the Application made by members of the public for a
byway open to all traffic, and

= Report 2: Section B to C, which is compiled in accordance with the Authority’s
duty to keep the definitive map and statement under continuous review and by
order make modification to the map and statement as it appears to them to be
requisite in consequence of the occurrence of any specified event under
section 53(3) of the WCA 1981.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittPa;g sl'l_u& 16 9
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



4. Witness Statement

4.1.

4.2.

4.3.

4.4,

4.5,

The Applicants’ report contains five withess statements signed and dated in 2001
as they originally formed part of the documentation that was gathered in support of

actions against the Council.

These witness statements were confirmed and re-signed in 2002 by each person
and are submitted as evidence in support of the claim for the change of status for
section A to B. (Appendixes 35 to 39).

From these five witness statements one, by Mr J. Greggains, refers to section B to
C of the route in question.

Mr James Greggains, Ty-Dan-Cledan, Llandogo, writes that Graham Brown, the
brother of Roger Brown who owns the shop in Llandogo, recalled there never
being any restrictions on the public use of the route in question. Graham Brown
also said to James during a telephone conversation on the 10 December 2001 that
coal had been delivered by trucks to a coal dump at the end of the route in
question. Also that Bill Morgan, a local farmer, would deliver coal to Alan Brown

and Will Reynolds who lived in separate houses north of the Cleddon ravine

(Shoots) from the coal dump at the end of the route in question, using a horse

drawn sledge along the track that leads northwards around the ravine (Shoots).
(Appendix 39)

This witness statement, although hearsay, does report the use of the route B to C
with the use of a horse-drawn sledge. This description of use is not regarded as
applying to the public at large. It is instead the local residents making their own
plans to facilitate the transport of coal to their homes along the route in question in

a private capacity.

10

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



5. Evidence Forms

5.1. Six Definitive Map Modification Order evidence forms have been submitted to the

Authority as par
two have some

however, report

5.2. One witness bel

t of the DMMO application for section A to B. Of these six forms,
bearing on section B to C of the route in question. Both people,

utilising the route on foot only.

ieves the status of the whole route A to C to be that of a footpath.

5.2.1. Mrs M Monks of Bodmin, Llandogo (Appendix 47.1 to 47.3) believes that

the publ

ic status of the route is that of a footpath and states on her

evidence form dated 15 April 2004 that her use of the route in question has

been fro
purpose
.
.
.
.
.

m ‘the stream’ to ‘the woods’ for 17 years (1987 to 2004). The
of use was for exercising dogs. Mrs Monks reports having never:

encountered any gates or stiles,

been stopped or turned back,

been told by anyone that it was not a public route,

seen any notices that said such words as ‘Private’ or ‘No Road’,
been asked permission to use the route,

been told that the way was public.

No additional information was supplied.

Comment

5.2.1.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004

evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Mrs Monks has had
use of the route in question on foot for 28 years.

5.2.1.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

5.2.1.3. It is also know now that Mrs Monks no longer lives at this

5.3. The second beli

address.

eves the status to be a bridleway.

5.3.1. Ms D. Mariana Robinson of Cascades, Llandogo (Appendix 49.1 to

49.2) believes the public status of the route is that of a bridleway and states

on her evidence form dated 20 April 2004 that use of the route in question

has been from the ‘stream near Bargans Cottage’ to the ‘woods and zig zag

path’ for

20 years (1984 to 2004). The purpose of use was for visiting

friends or exercise on foot only. Ms Robinson reports having never:

encountered any gates or stiles,

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8‘:!338%3,6 11
7 L1 QB July 2016.doc

Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.



been stopped or turned back,

been told by anyone that it was not a public route,

seen any notices that said such words as ‘Private’ or ‘No Road’,
been asked permission to use the route,

been told that the way was public.

Also she reports no knowledge of a landowner and further states that the

route in question should remain as a public footpath as it was never

suitable for vehicular use. Additionally, Ms Mariana Robinson, having had

the opportunity to read the file of evidence compiled by Mrs S. Harris for the

DMMO application for section A to B has submitted in writing her

understandings of that evidence and these are addressed in detail in

Report 1 and are included in Appendixes 50.1 to 50.7.

Comment

5.3.1.1. It has now been eleven years since the submission of this 2004

evidence form. Therefore it is believed that Ms Robinson has
had use of the route in question unhindered on foot for 31

years.

5.3.1.2. This form does not support public vehicular rights over the route

in question.

5.3.1.3. ltis also noted from the evidence that Ms Robinson has used

Concluding comments

the whole route as a footpath only and does not report that she

herself used the entire route on horseback.

5.4. Itis acknowledged that public status already exists and that these two evidence

forms do support public footpath rights over the route in question. However, within

one of these user evidence forms, bridleway status is reported, although only

footpath use is evident for the whole route being investigated. To determine any

other alleged type of public use additional historical and documental evidence

must be studied.

12

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]étﬁuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



6. Pre-Order Consultations

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

6.4.

6.5.

6.6.

There have been two periods for pre-order consultation; one was conducted in
2004 and the second ran from 28" January 2015 to 7" May 2015.

In response to the 2004 consultation there were 15 replies out of 38. The lack of
replies from the user groups suggest that the route in question was not regarded

by the public at large to be a public thoroughfare for horse or vehicle users.

There are two interesting observations gleaned from the 2004 consultation that

support different sections of the claim:-

6.3.1. For RUPPs (CRBs 20 — 23)
That the owner of Cleddon Shoots was aware of motorbike users
gaining access to the Shoots and was desiring to prevent that type of

public access.

6.3.2. For RB24 (Section B to C)
The report of “human and donkey” using RB24 is a single piece of
evidence that suggests that this route may have existing bridleway
rights.

The first of these two observations implies some public use although this use could
have been anti-social behaviour as no users have come forward to verify this
single report of motorbike use. Without the user groups coming forward and
confirming their use of the route in question it is not possible to confirm whether or
not the use of the route was legitimate. Therefore, this single mention of motorbike
use along with all the other historical evidence does not support the registration of

the route in question as a byway open to all traffic.

The second observation is a report of people using the route RB24 in a private

capacity to collect coal.

These observations are not significant in proving either public vehicular, non-

motorised vehicular or equestrian use of the route in question.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!_“38‘516 13
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



6.7. The 2015 consultation resulted in 13 replies in which the main concerns given
were related to future maintenance liabilities.
Pre-Order Consultation results dated 2015
1 Matthew Lewis IC—I:ead of : No comments at this time
ountryside
2 Ruth Rourke gggggsyg?f‘iacer Continuous input
3 ge_lte Biodiversity Officer | No comments at this time
tinchcombe
4 Claire Williams Legal Services No comments at this time
5 Wendy Mustow | Highways No comments at this time
6 Councillor D Councillor for No reply
Blakebrough Trellech
7 Ms A. Davidson | Community Council | No reply
8 Mr A Blake A.O.N.B No reply
Reply - Ms S. Harris of Middle
Farm — consultation returned “No
9 S. Harris & A The Applicants longer at this address”.
Dance Reply — Mr A Dance of Lysander
House — telephoned his objection
to Footpath
Reply — objection to footpath, as
. maintenance to vehicle usage
10 Llecan Beck Ms Z Lindgren standards for the section leading
to Lysander House should occur
Reply — objection to Footpath
: registration and that the route
11 Alpine Lodge Mr A Gorell should be maintained to vehicle
usage standards
12 RoseHill Mr Ashley Thomas Reply — objection to BOAT
registration
Replied by telephone and letter. —
The Authority should fully
: : maintain the route to vehicle
13 Bodmin Mrs S J Simpson standards as the wear and tear to
the way causes safety issues to
her property
Replied by telephone, emails and
letters — the Authority should fully
14 Cascades Ms M Robinson maintain the route to vehicle
standards as the wear and tear to
the way causes safety issues to
her property
Reply — objection to any upgrade
15 Woodside Mrs P Wilson of CRF 24. More concerned with
CRF 24 than with CRBs 20 to 23
Replied by email — objection to
Lower Freedom any upgrade of CRF 24. More
16 Cottage Mrs B Rosewell concerned with CRF 24 than with
CRBs 20 to 23
17 Priory Cottage No Reply
Marigold
18 Cottgge No Reply
19 Foxgloves No Reply
20 Cleddon Stile No Reply
14 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016

Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc




21 Glen Cote No Reply

22 Great Hill No Reply
23 Misty cottage No Reply
24 Pathways No Reply
Bargans
25 Cottage No Reply
Mrs A The British Horse Reply - the BHS would object to
26 : proposals to record routes as
Underwood Society

footpaths.

Reply — the OSS would object to
proposal to record routes as
footpaths

Open Spaces

27 Mr D. O. Morgan Services

Reply — CRB 20 — 23 No
comment. CRF24 covered by
Natural Resources | SSSI and SAC. If current usage
Wales is increase and if maintenance is
proposed then NRW needs to be
re-consulted

28 Mr. R. Bacon

29 Mr J. Askew Tread Lightly Area | No reply

30 Mr. A. Thomas Ramblers No reply

GLASS (Green

31 Mr D Wyatt Lane Association) No reply
Byways and
32 B)r/i\éivlezvays Trust No reply
33 Mr M. Slater CTC No reply
Reply - no objection: your
34 Mr R. Gould British Telecom proposed scheme should not
affect BT apparatus
35 National Grid No reply
36 Ms R. Welsh Water No reply
Humphreys
37 Western Power No reply

6.8. The Applicant Mr A. Dance, of Lysander House, has telephoned to say that he has
no further evidence at this time. But he has given verbal notice that he will submit
his objection at “order making” stage if the order is made to record the route as a

public footpath.

6.9. Ms Z. Lindgren of Llecan Beck has telephoned and emailed questioning who
would maintain the route if it were not adopted. This DMMO, however, does not
seek to adopt the right of way. It only determines whether there may or may not

be public vehicular rights over the route in question.

6.10. Mr A. Gorell of Alpine Lodge has written in stating that he would object if the order
is made to record the route as a public footpath. He states that he has “enjoyed
uninterrupted vehicular access over the road for more than twenty years, as have
the public who have made a nuisance of themselves through noise, being in the
way and/or parking their vehicles across my drive”. He is aggrieved by planning
permissions for three new developments that have not taken into account the

nature of the route in question.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committh sl'm_u&zzm 15
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



6.11.

6.12.

6.13.

6.14.

6.15.

6.16.

Mr Ashley Thomas of Rosehill will object if the DMMO is made to register the route
in question as a byway open to all traffic. Mr Thomas has given a detailed history
of the area as his father moved there in 1949 as the Parish Rector. He recalls that
there was not much traffic in the past, in fact hardly any as most people living there
did not have cars. Then in the late 60s when car usage increased the residents
joined together, commissioned a local contractor, and tarmacked from point A to
the junction of CRB 22 with FP 18.

Mr Thomas remembers the coal lorry deliveries mentioned in the Definitive
Statement. The route in question was grass with hard core tracks which were the
width of an original Mini. Furthermore, the lorry was about the length of a Ford
Mondeo estate car or less. In other words, it was smaller in comparison to today’s
delivery vans which collide with walls on the upper side and teeter over the drop,

thereby weakening the edges on the lower side.

Mr Thomas states that RB24 should never be registered as a byway open to all
traffic. It was passable only on foot, horseback or mule/donkey as the crossing at
the ‘Falls’ in the ravine precluded motorised vehicles. He reports that properties
such as Woodside and Priory Cottage had no delivery access as convenient as
point B. The alternative was to go a great distance down the steep hillside to the
village, whereas point B was almost on the same level making it much easier to
transport coal from point B by arrangement with the coal merchant and the
landowner at that time. “We all had to make special arrangements like that for

difficult deliveries”.

This is the second reference to the use of a mule/donkey for section B to C.
However, as it is pre-arranged between the coal merchant and landowner the type

of use is by private means and for a private need.

Mrs S. J. Simpson of Bodmin will object if the DMMO is made to register the route
in question as a byway open to all traffic. Due to her property being below the
supporting banks of the route in question there is a very serious safety risk from
the disturbance of heavy boulders that would cause damage if dislodged. For this
safety reason it is her wish that the route be adopted between sections A to B and

publicly maintained.

Ms D. M. Robinson of Cascades will object if the DMMO is made to register the
route in question as a byway open to all traffic. Her reasons are entirely due to
maintenance and safety concerns and not with regard to evidence of any public

status.

16

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



6.17.

6.18.

6.19.

6.20.

6.21.

6.22.

6.23.

Definitive Map Modification Orders do not consider need, nuisance or suitability of
the route in question and therefore this request cannot be considered under this

legislative procedure.

Mrs P. Wilson of Woodside will object if the DMMO is made to register the whole
route as a byway open to all traffic. She reports having lived in the village from
November 1986 and is concerned that the Applicants are seeking to change the
status of a private road (section A to B). However, she has always known section

B to C as a footpath.

Mrs B. Rosewell who owns Cleddon Shoots will object if the DMMO is made to

register the route in question as a byway open to all traffic.

Mrs A. Underwood, representative of the British Horse Society, objects to the
“downgrading” of these restricted byways to footpaths referring to “known history of
the area that is readily available and was carried out by Gwent and Glamorgan
Archaeological Trust”. Her evidence covers the general history of the area and the
“‘use of a network of roads and pack animal trails”. This evidence is not
specifically related to the route in question and provides no assistance to qualifying
the public status of the actual route in question. This is the third mention of
equestrian use in the area. However, this report is generalised and not specific to
a single route. In contrast, the above mentioned two reports of mule/donkey for

the assisted transport of coal do refer to the particular use of RB 24.

The generalised history when taken together with all the other historical
documentation is interesting. However, as public equestrian use cannot be
specifically attributed to the route in question, it does not assist the recording of

either public restricted byway or bridleway rights.

Mr D. O. Morgan representative of the Open Spaces Society has responded to the
effect that an order should be made for a byway open to all traffic as the Order
Making Authority is obliged to process a DMMO and that it would be fair to all the

types of users involved.

Mr R. Bacon of Natural Resources Wales (NRW) replies stating that if current
usage is increased over CRF 24 and if maintenance is proposed then NRW needs
to be re-consulted as this section of the route passes through Cleddon Shoots
Woodland, a Site of Special Scientific Interest (SSSI), which is a component of the

larger Wye Valley Woodlands Special Area of Conservation (SAC). Also in

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g sl'm_u&?s 17
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



6.24.

accordance with all the given legislation Monmouthshire County Council will be

required to undertake a Habitat Regulations Assessment.

Overall the consultation responses do not, of themselves or in conjunction with
other historical evidence, provide substantial evidence to record the route in
question as having public vehicular, public non-motorised vehicular or public
bridleway rights. For these reasons section B to C should therefore be registered
as a public footpath only.

18

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]ﬁ(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



7. Land Registry Documents (official copies requested in 2015)

7.1. Title Deeds from Land Registry have been requested for the properties that utilise
or abut the route in question.

7.2. A study of these documents has shown that out of the majority of the
landownership documents no public vehicular rights have been described for the
route in question.

Dates of
rights
Date of .
No. | Official UL Title name gfante.d JE Notes
co number Historical
Py Deed or
Conveyance
For Section A to B of the route in
question, please refer to Report 1:
Chapter 10
Section B to C of the Route in Question
Is:gﬂfhwest of 1959 Conveyance. Not available to
. investigate. Rights for water are
\év(?t?:s(gde éég(ljy 1179 59 & mentioned and public or private rights
17 | 26/03/2015 | CYM11657 1ag of way are not. Rights related to a
registered November . drive B
with Lower 1987 private drive for access to. riory
Freedom Cottage are mentioned while public
Cottage rights are not mentioned.
11 May 1921 1921 Conveyance. Not available to
18 | 26/0312015 | CYM134721 CP:rlory Deed 17 |nvest|gate. Extracted qgote relgtes to
ottage November water rights and not public or private
1987 rights of way.
Land Deed of partition dated 1 September

19 | 26/032015 | CYM276959 southwest of | 1 September | 1979. Not available to investigate. No

The 1979 public or private rights of way are
Cloisters mentioned.
1920 Conveyance. Not available to
investigate - extracted quote relates to
water rights and not public or private
rights of way.
26 May 1920 .
20 | 26/03/2015 | WAS18254 | Woodside | &Deeq 15 | 1074 Deed Alows for private motor
March 1974 vehicle rig ts only over and along the
private roadway coloured green. The
land coloured green referred to is
hatched brown between the points
marked on the Deed plan.
7.3. Twenty land registry documents have been investigated in relation to the route in

question. Four properties relating to section B to C are detailed here, while sixteen

properties associated with section A to B are discussed in detail in Report 1
Chapter 10.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committ
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.

8‘1% 16
ﬁ%gB C'8tTJuly 2016.doc

19




7.4.  No further support for public vehicular or equestrian rights are ascertained from the
four land registry documents that refer to section B to C of the route in question.
The historical conveyances referred to in these documents are not available to

investigate. The modern records do not make any reference to ‘public’ or ‘private’

rights.

,/
"7
The Freedom
patn lus)
S
o
3ot
Fig. 10.2 Property and reference locator MCC
20 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016

Morlsouthshi%COT'ﬁ(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8. Historical Map Evidence

8.1. Legislation requires that all historical evidence is investigated which on the balance
of probabilities may support the allegation that the route in question should be

recorded as a byway open to all traffic.

8.2. John Cary’s ‘Improved map’ of England and Wales, series 1820 — 1832. From
an original held in The Brotherton Library, Leeds University does not show the

route in question.

1 1 .!"
L SV, 1) -
¢ Fatan )
// ',

:
1)
L

i ‘ » '
Fig. 8.1: Appendix 10: Applicant’s Evidence 2:
John Cary’s ‘Improved Map’ of England and Wales, series 1820 - 1832.
From an original held in The Brotherton Library, Leeds University

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory ComminP%g 81”4%36 21
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L B 10 C 8t July 2016.doc



8.3. The Enclosure Award, dated 9" March 1821 (Fig 8.2) does not cover the area in
which the route in question is located. However, as the “Manor of Llandogo” is
mentioned, further investigation into the Manorial documents, held at the National
Library Wales, has been carried out. Unlike the example below of the nearby
Enclosure Award, the Manorial documents do not distinguish any routes and paths
from the surrounding land. This Report will later detail the significance of routes
that are either coloured or not, depending on the map studied, which may or may
not imply public status. Therefore, the Enclosure Award and the Manorial
documents add no further support to the claim for any type of public right.

Fig. 8.2:
1821 Enclosure Award not to scale: Gwent Record Office Ref: Q/Inc. Aw. 2 page |

22 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬂouthshié CointACAuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.4. Price Map, dated 1823, commissioned by the Duke of Beaufort, and inscribed
by Henry and Charles G. Price. The title of this map has been destroyed however
it states, in part, that it was “Drawn from ... Actual...and founded on a

Trigonometrical basis by the surveyors of Hereford, Henry and Charles G. Price”.

/20

T -~ |

83Price’s Map Llandoo: not to scale: - - _ GR_O'Refz Q/Misc Maps

s e ||
- P w Aal A o« w b o

1823 Price’s Map Llandogo: not to scale 1901 Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale

Fig. 8.3: Comparison between Prices’s and OS Maps

8.5. This 1823 map shows a number of routes that cross Cleddon Shoots (stream)
marked by parallel bold black lines. After further study and comparison with other
mapping of the same era along with the 1901 Ordnance Survey map it is not
possible to extrapolate comparable and accurate road alignments. Although,
some alignments of routes are misleading it is possible that RB 24 and CRBs 20 to
22 are represented while CRB 23 is not.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory ComminP%&g 8‘1\14_356 23
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L gB €8t July 2016.doc



8.6.  Furthermore, when comparing all the historical maps from 1823 to 1920, although
a road is more commonly shown at this scale on this map, the earlier 1800s maps
only recorded an alignment of a route with no distinction between public or private
status and no variation of markings to describe a specific type of route such as

footpath, bridleway or road.

8.7. The 1828 Plan to the Deed Papers for Cleddon Shoots is the earliest and the
first historical document to partially represent CRB23 and RB24 while the
catalogue entry only lists landownership and costs. This title deed created for
landownership reasons has other linear markings to assist with the locating of the
property but these markings do not prove the public or private status of the routes
depicted. It is possible that the broken line shown on the plan is a footpath that
runs from the boundary of “Cleddon Shoots” to the stream. Additionally, this
marking does not continue through the property. This suggests that the route was
not regarded as a major thoroughfare for use by the public at large in motorised

vehicles, on non-motorised vehicles, or on horseback.

Fig. 8.4: Appendix 11 & 12 Applicants’ Evidence 3
1828 Title Deeds Map and Catalogue entry for Cleddon Shoots Llandogo: not to scale:
GRO Ref: D39811-13

24 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshi%Coinﬁ%uncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.8. The Greenwood Map, published in 1830, when compared to other mapping
reveals a mere representation of routes and not the detail that is shown from the

more formal survey conducted by Ordnance Survey.

CleCK

rites
4%

~ MCC Office

|

2 I iy

b Wrehdem _‘  C ':’ A :
et 7%
v ; = Llandogo/
y B " ‘_v:, -
foo l' A ,\\' i .
A o
2 ) Ky T
2 N s l“ ? 1>y
\ o
A ) I
! {
1830 Greenwood Map:not to scale 1902 Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale

Fig. 8.5: Comparison between Greenwood and OS Maps

8.9. However, it is noted when the comparison is made between the Greenwood and
OS mapping that the poorer quality cartography of the Greenwood map, contrary
to the David and Charles map, does in fact represent part of the route in question.
A part of the route in question has been highlighted green on both maps. Like the
Price map, the section of the route in question numbered CRB 23 (and RB 24) has
not been included.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommmPag ';E_%Zl 25
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2 S July 2016.doc



8.

10. The 1830 maps do not usually extend to the depiction of footpaths. Although, in
the comparison between the Greenwood and OS mapping, Fig. 8.5, it is noted that
the F.W. symbol on the 1902 OS Map is on the same alignment as that shown on
the Greenwood map. For the purposes of identification “FW” has been marked
and circled in pencil on the Greenwood map. This is the only map of this era that
shows a difference in the recording of footways and roads which suggests that the
route in question is higher in category to that of a footpath.

8.11. However, the route in question, section B to C, depicted on the 1823 Price map is

not shown on the Greenwood and other 1830s OS maps that are from an actual
survey conducted by the military, or based on that same survey. Therefore, the
few historical maps examined so far recording the alignment of the route in
guestion are not of themselves a record for any public or private rights. Other
historical evidence needs to be investigated.

8.12. The Cassini Map (162), has been created using the Old Series Ordnance Survey

sheet 35 which was published on the 1st May 1830 and, like the David & Charles

map discussed later, does not show the route in question.

|
2
i

A
e

' ﬁA':,?;\ii;"_qg;§!‘ e
4 " ¥ O SO )

v 4
: ;
S

v E R LT
B .

L

Fig. 8.6:
1830 Cassini Map Llandogo: not to scale: MCC Office

26

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MorlsouthshiECoth-(‘guncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.13. The David and Charles Map, Sheet 68 published 1 May 1830, is a reproduction
of numerous documents covering various dates and based on surveys originally
executed by the Ordnance Survey between 1811 and 1816 but extensively revised
in the late 1820s. The Cassini and David & Charles maps of the same period do
not show the route in question. The Ordnance Survey commenced 1811 suggests
that the route was not constructed pre-1835.

TS
o

| *
s

1830 David and Charles Map: Sheet 68: not to scale:

iy ¢ < A
; QAO,’)Z;‘-‘O-

hatles - T 1902 Ordnance Survey

1830 David & C
Fig. 8.7: Comparison between 1830 David & Chatles and OS Maps

8.14. Shown above is a comparison of the 1830 David and Charles with the Ordnance

Survey mapping of the 1920s. The more detailed mapping of the 1920s shows

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittP%:g 8‘1%96 27
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L §B €8N July 2016.doc



8.15.

limited similarities of the routes that are, for the ease of comparison, shaded in
pink on the David & Charles map. This comparison clearly shows that the route in

guestion (B to C) was not recorded in the 1830s.

The 1830 Ordnance Survey map is the first survey taken between 1791 and 1874
and published with many revisions and new editions between 1805 and 1874.
These surveys are the bases for the Cassini and the David & Charles facsimile
maps already discussed. The route in question is not shown on all three of these

maps.

~ .\‘“
6 '& '*g\‘ \‘. -

.:ﬂfq 0,;~

Fig. 8.8: Appendix 13 Applicants Evidence 4
1830 1=t Edition Ordnance Survey Map: not to scale GRO

8.16.

8.17.

The 1830 OS map is known to be better drawn and more accurate in the depiction
of physical features surveyed. It is from these original Ordnance surveys that the
Cassini, David & Charles and the Greenwood Map have been copied. This then
implies that the Greenwood map has been poorly copied as both the 1830 Cassini
and David & Charles maps do not show the route in question.

It is difficult to be certain which mapping set is wrong as there are three map sets
that show similar alignments of the majority of routes recorded, while there are two
map sets that show very different alignments and record additional routes. The
possible difficulty here is that the scale of 1 inch to a statute mile does not give the

required detail to depict each route accurately.

28

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morlsouthshire Coin%(éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.18. It is established that the 1830 OS map is the better record in the quality of its
surveying. However, it is possible that due to the small scale of this mapping, it
was difficult to depict every route. Therefore, as these earlier dated maps are
inconsistent and only indicative to the alignment of the route in question it is
necessary to look at other historical records to determine on the balance of

probabilities what if any the public status might be.

8.19. The 1834 Plan to the Deed Papers for Cleddon Shoots indicates the route in
question with two pencil markings at point B, while the remainder of the route to
point C is not depicted. The transcript of the deed within the catalogue entry
describes landownership extents. The Applicants have highlighted green the word
‘road leading from Cleddon towards Llandogo” as evidence for higher rights. This
word “road” in the Deed Papers, however, does not relate to the route being
investigated. This document was created for the purpose of landownership.
Other markings on the plan are indicative only and not for the purposes of showing
public or private ways. It is noted from this plan that the route in question is not
shown to continue through Cleddon Shoots suggesting that it was not regarded as
a major through route for use by the public at large in motorised vehicles, on non-

motorised vehicles, or on horseback.

TRANSCRIPT OF DEED DATED AUGUST 1834

Lease for a year 27/28™ August 1834 with Plan

‘Piece of Woodland (12a) situate at Llandogo called the
Shoots. Late in possession of Arthur Wyatt and now of
John Gough, bounded on the S.W., S and S.E. by lands
belonging to or in occupation of John Roberts esq, Ann
Edwards, Mr Hopkins, John Hodges, Rev David Jones
and Isaac Madley, on the east by the road leading from
Trelleck towards Monmouth and land of Isaac Madley,
on the north and N.W. by lands belonging to or in
occupation of Isaac Madley, Joseph (James) Madley,
William Hopkins and the foad leading from Cleddon
towards Llandogo, on west by lands belonging to John
Roberts, Mary Moulton, Joseph Renolds and the foad
leading from Cleddon to Llandogo, 2 small cottages
standing on part of the said piece of woodland, late in
occupations of John Clement and James Jones, but now
of Mr Davies and Zachariah Reynolds’.

Fig. 8.9: Appendixes 14 & 15 Applicants’ Evidence 5
1834 Title Deeds Map & Catalogue entry - Cleddon Shoots Llandogo: not to scale:
GRO Ref: D398 11-16

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory ComminP%&g 8‘1& 16 29
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L gB July 2016.doc



8.20.

8.21.

The Tithe Map for Llandogo, dated 1846, shows the route in question to be
coloured terracotta from point C and continuing in a south-westerly direction for
some of its length. The linear markings on the Tithe Map that designate plot
boundaries are in keeping with similar boundary markings shown on the 1881

Ordnance Survey (OS) Map discussed later in this Report.

When comparing highway records with tithe maps, the shading of the roads on the
tithe maps are normally consistent with the shading of publicly maintained roads
shown on the highway maps. Therefore, when a route in question is identified on
the Tithe map as shaded terracotta, then it is reasonable to suggest that the route

should be recorded as public route maintained at public expense.

Fig. 8.10 Appendix 17 Applicants’ Evidence 7
1846 Tithe Map for Llandogo: not to scale: GRO Ref: D3731.1

The orientation has been turned
to assist the reading of the plot
numbers

o

8.22.

However, the shading of this route here does not nessarily mean that it should be
a byway open to all traffic; it is feasible to record the route as a public footpath.
This is particularly shown by the mapping for this location where most of the routes
are registered as footpaths on the Definitive Map and Statement.

30

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshi% Coin%czuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.23. Notably, when comparing the Tithe Map with the OS maps, the route in question
on the Tithe map is shaded terracotta only up to the plots 91 and 109 near point B
and the plots 102 and 104 not far south of point C. This indicates that the route in
question was only an access way for various plots and not a main public
thoroughfare. Additionally, the route in question was accessed via another route
from its northern end, point C that is now recorded as a public footpath. This
further establishes the fact that the route in question was not regarded as a
thoroughfare for the public at large in motorised vehicles, on non-motorised
vehicles or on horseback.

8.24. The route in question is clearly indicated by double lines on all historical maps prior
to and after the production of the Tithe map. When a map like this shows a
coloured and un-numbered strip of land, it can be taken, when considered together
with other historical maps that the route in question was and therefore still remains
in the public domain. However, the tithe map records do not determine the type of
public rights and therefore it is possible to register routes either as public footpaths
and bridleways on the Definitive Map and Statement or as roads on the List of
Streets.

8.25. There is no indication of any route continuing through the Cleddon Shoots woods.
This shows that the route in question was not consider a thoroughfare for any type
of public use. The lack of markings on the Tithe Map north of point B suggests
that there were no public rights along the northern section in the first half of the 19"
Century.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittPa;g 8‘:!‘&%36 31
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



8.26. The 1881 Ordnance Survey Map (OS), contrary to the Tithe Map, shows the
route in question as not shaded. When comparing the 1881 OS Map with the
highway records it is noted that only the main through roads are shaded. The OS
Map is similar to the Tithe map as it shows the physical features such as barriers
across the route in question at point B where the shading on the Tithe Map ends.

Fig. 8.11: 1881 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21:1 colout ¢ y: not to scale o . "GRO

8.27. The 1881 OS map shows a detailed depiction of physical features surveyed. The
route in question is marked on all sides by broken lines denoting an unfenced
minor road for much of its length. Where the route nears Plot 598 it is marked by
solid unbroken lines denoting a minor fenced road. The markings of the OS maps

are taken from the Conventional signs and writing used on the OS six inch maps.

M.S. (Mile Stone)

Fig. 8.12:
Conventional signs and writing used on the six inch maps of the Ordnance Survey

32 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshig Coin%(:auncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.28. There are solid lines at point B across the route in question which, according to

conventional sign usage, implies that a barrier crosses the route.

8.29. It is reasonable to suggest that this solid line represents a gate or barrier of some
description. The fact that such physical features are recorded on both the OS
Map and the Tithe map supports the conclusion that the route in question was not
regarded as a through road for the public at large in motorised vehicles, on non-

motorised vehicles or on horseback.

8.30. The route in question has not been awarded a status equal to other known public
roads in the area as it is not shaded. The Ordnance Survey Map unlike the Tithe
Map has Plot 598 on its northern section only. This plot is listed in the 1st Edition
25-inch Ordnance Survey Book of Reference for the Community of Trelleck
(Appendix 20), held at the British Library. In the Book of Reference there is only a
numerical entry for Plot 598 and no further description of the use of the land that

would indicate the possible private or public nature of the route in question.

8.31. Another symbol on all Ordnance Survey maps is the mark that resembles a
stretched “S” that is called a brace. This brace links land that has been dissected
by streams, routes or other topographical features. The detail afforded this OS
Map due to its larger scale shows no braces that link the route in question to any
adjacent field or dwelling. These factors suggest that the route in question was
considered for most of its length as a shared private access way and not within

any individual ownership.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8‘:!‘&516 33
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



8.32.

8.33.

The Ordnance Survey Maps dated 1886 (six inches to 1 Statute mile 1:10560) is
also the scale of the Definitive Map and although it is a small scale it still gives
more detail than that shown on the 1830s mapping. At this scale there are two
unbroken lines across the route in question, one at point B and another more
clearly shown on this map at point X. Unbroken lines across a track like this
usually denote a barrier such as a wall or boundary fence possibly with a gate. A
site visit revealed that at point X there is a wall which is not a barrier but instead

two paths that are separated by a change in level.

The 1886 map and the earlier 1881 map show that the route in question was not
considered a through route. This is demonstrated when observing that other
junctions within the network of routes in the “Great Hill” area do not have solid lines
representing barriers. The linear marking evidence on this map shows that the
route in question had a barrier at point B and was open at point C. However, when
this evidence is taken along with the evidence for section A to B it is noted that
route as a whole was not regarded as a thoroughfare.

Fig. 8.13:
1886 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21: not to scale GRO

34

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshi%Coin%%uncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.34. The 1902 Ordnance Survey Map. This mapping, at the larger scale of 1:2500,

usually has the label “track” or “F.P.” alongside the linear marking indicating the

alignment for un-metalled roads and footpaths.

Due to the density of boundary

markings four “F.P.” labels have been inserted. Although the conventional signs
and writings (Fig.8.12) indicate the routes leading up the hill from the east to be

fenced minor roads, most of the routes are labelled as footpaths suggesting that,

regardless of the conventional signs, these routes were merely believed to be

footpaths leading to other footpaths.

f o, S & il
.%a%;e e %’ L

‘ ﬂ//.ﬁ/ﬂsul? qs
7‘ :
IQQ M"

Pﬂ. ' ..

Fig. 8.14:
1902 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21:5 not to scale:

MCC

8.35. When comparing the 1902 OS map with previous maps discussed, it shows that at
point B the solid line across the route in question remains while the solid lines at

point X clearly depict a change in level and not a barrier. The 1902 OS map is the

base map for the 1910 Finance Act map which is discussed in detall later.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Commm?%g ';E_ngl
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2 S July 2016.doc

35



8.36.

8.37.

The 1921 Ordnance Survey Map. This Map, again, has similar linear markings to
the previous OS maps discussed. Although some elements are different there
remains a solid line across the route in question at point B while at point X the
change of level and route alignment is clearly defined and not obstructed.

Fig. 8.15:
1921 Ordnance Survey Sheet 21:5: not to scale GRO

It is not known what type of barrier was located at point B. However, it is possible
that these physical features that are intended to serve as a barrier may or may not
inhibit the use of the way either by horse-drawn cart, horse, or on foot.

36

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshia Coin%(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



8.38.

8.39.

8.40.

8.41.

The Ordnance Survey Maps all show the route in question as marked by a solid
line for most of its length. This is normally the marking adopted to depict main

roads (see Fig. 8.12) but as shown here it is also the marking for footpaths.

Ordnance surveyors were given the duty to depict all physical features that were
encountered. It is possible, therefore, that some of the routes depicted on the OS

maps may prove to be private ways.

The conventional signs and symbols have been kept as standard over the years
and it is understood that a dashed or double pecked line represents a route or way

that is unfenced.

In contrast to this, a solid unbroken line represents a boundary such as a fence or
wall. Therefore, if such a solid line crosses a route or way then this is interpreted
as a gate or another type of barrier. Although barriers such as gates do not
prohibit usage of a route by any type or means, they do constitute some form of
limitation and prevention. As the mapping inspected so far indicates barriers at
more than one location, this suggests that the route in question was not used by

the public at large.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittPa;g 8‘:!‘&96 37
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



8.42. The 1910 Finance Act Register Books and Maps provided for the levy and
collection of a duty on the incremental value of all land in the United Kingdom. In
this way, private owners were required to surrender to the State part of the
increase in the site value of their land, which resulted from the expenditure of
public money on communal developments such as roads, common land or public

services.

8.43. The reason for the production of the Finance Act Maps and Registers was to
record land values and not for the purpose of recording the extent of the publicly

maintainable highways.

8.44. The 1910 Finance Act Map for this area, lodged in the Kew Record Office, shows
the route in question to be coloured a light green and the boundary marked in a
darker green. The section, B to C, of the route in question is shown to cross Plot
13.

Fig. 8.16: 1910 Finance Act Map Sheet 21.5 Kew Record Office (KRO)

8.45. The Finance Act map is first and foremost a record of the extent of landownership
which provided for the levy of various tax duties on lands. These Finance Act
records also help with the status of any routes that are in question.

38 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshia Coin%(‘ouncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc




8.46.

8.47.

8.48.

8.49.

8.50.

8.51.

The reason for this is that the Finance Act Registers and Field Books record a
monetary deduction in the calculation of tax for each property for “public rights of
way or user’. While, for the majority of cases, routes normally used by vehicular
traffic were left uncoloured or “white out” as they were considered not to have any

agricultural value.

In this location there is evidence for exceptions to this usual interpretation of the
Finance Act Map. In the area north of point C the routes left uncoloured are
registered as public footpaths on the Definitive Map and Statement and even with
this evidence these routes remain recorded as public footpaths. In other words,
the type of marking on the 1910 Finance Act Map does not always, as a single

piece of evidence, award the route in question as having public vehicular rights.

The Register Book that accompanies the Finance Act Map for this area records no
monetary value that would reduce the taxable value of the land. The strip of land
that is in question is not allocated a plot number for the very reason that it was

never included within any particular private land ownership.

The Finance Act Map Register book was investigated for any further details
pertaining to Plots 13, 29 & 39. The Register does not record any deduction of tax

for “public rights of way or user” for the plots listed.

The working copy of the Finance Act Map is shaded a different colour and the
boundary for Plot 13 is not as clearly defined as the official copy previously
studied. The route in question is coloured while at the point B southwards and
point C northwards the routes are shown uncoloured. This strongly suggests that

the route in question was not regarded as a public through road.

At point B the access is gained from both the south and east. It is possible that the
southern access point has higher rights. However, this has been discussed in
detail in Report 1 where it is shown to only have public footpath rights. The
eastern access to point B and the northern access at point C from the north or east
are all gained by the means of other routes that have been marked with the symbol
“FP” on the OS maps and registered as public footpaths on the Definitive Map and
Statement. Therefore this suggests that the route in question has no public rights
for horse-drawn carts or horse riders and should be registered as a public footpath

only.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!‘@ 16 39
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



Fig. 8.17: Appendix 21: Applicant’s Evidence 10
1910 Finance Act Map “working copy” Sheet 21:5 GRO

8.

52. The Finance Act mapping records along with all other historical evidence
discussed so far show that not all routes that are “white out”, as seen in Fig 8.17
south of point B and north of point C, should automatically be regarded as having
public vehicular, public restricted byway or public bridleway rights. This means
that for the route in question it may, on the balance of probabilities, be determined

that only public footpath rights should be recorded.

40

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshié Coin%(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



9. The Definitive Map and Statement

9.1. The public rights of way are registered on the Definitive Map and Statement for the
area of Monmouthshire. These maps have a “Relevant” date of 1 July 1952, and
were published on the 16 November 1967 and are now kept under continuous
review by Monmouthshire County Council Countryside Office.

9.2. The County Council was required under section 27 of the National Parks and
Access to the Countryside Act 1949, to carry out a survey and define all the
footpaths, bridleways and roads used as public paths which it considered were
public. The process of producing the Definitive Map & Statement went through
three stages:

9.2.1. The former County of Monmouthshire (Gwent) carried out this task by
sending a map to every Community Council.

9.2.2. The Community Councils were asked to walk every path and provide
details of them.

9.2.3. A public meeting had to be held and local people recommended alteration

at this stage.

9.3. The Draft Map was deposited in all District Offices as well as at County Hall.
Notice of its publication and where it could be inspected was given in local papers
and the London Gazette. A minimum of four months was allowed for objections
against the alterations made by the Council as a result of original objections, which
the Authority had to consider in the light of all evidence submitted and inform all
parties of its decision. Any user who was not satisfied with decisions could appeal
to the Secretary of State who appointed a representative to hear appeals and

come to a decision.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8‘:!‘@%36 41
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



9.4. ltis noted that on the Draft Definitive Map dated 16 December 1952 that the route

in question is marked up by the symbol for roads used as a public path (RUPP), as

a ‘Broken Green Line’, along with the terms cart road bridleway (CRB) and cart
road footpath (CRF).

B /4

'kl‘:; . N ; l>
ARURE |
Sy \ B
2 d

'
«l

B
| I5%

» 1 J
- - ’
I: . %
LR R AN e -
——— o
. - -

erh &
'I)|'-‘I!
%S -

1952 Draft Definitive Map Sheet 21: not to scale:

42

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MorlSouatrjai%CoT%ﬂuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



9.5. Office files hold copies of letters and notes that record the inspection of certain
footpaths in the Llandogo district. A letter dated 31°% July 1953 (Fig. 12.2) states
that Monmouth Rural District Council and the Tintern Parish Council refer to some
footpaths in the Llandogo district as being “lateral roads” transferred to the County
Council by the District Council on the 15t April 1930 although no records were
retained. The County Surveyor further explains (Fig. 9.2) that he did not know
what was meant by “lateral roads” and was of the opinion that these “lateral roads”
were simply approaches to private residences on the hillside overlooking the Wye
Valley and there was some doubt in his mind if the routes should be included in the

survey as public paths.

(=4

Slat July, 1953,

National Parks and Aooceos to the Countryside
Ablie Patha, B

]
The Clerk of
. the Counall,

At same time convenient to yourself, I shall be obliged if
{r.mqmmu-um’m-tm-mwhh&-

Fig. 9.2:
315t July 1953 Letter from County Surveyor to Clerk MCC

9.6.  After a site inspection of the routes in the Llandogo district on the 14™ August 1953
there is a note added in pencil to the letter dated 5" August 1953 (Fig. 9.3) which
states that the Clerk of Monmouthshire County, Mr V Lawrence, agreed with the
County Surveyor’s contentions that the ways were not roads and, ... “even if they
are public paths we ought not to do anything more than keep them open”.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory ComminPafg 8‘1@56 43
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



s Moumouthshire Gonnty Gowncil.

FROM
vduon LAWRENCE, O.B.E.,
» CLERK OF THE COUNCH,
; COUNTY HALL,

Your Ref o

T e fases qwate A.)EM

daticnal Muris mud fdocess to tho Countryside Act,19L0.
TUDLA0 TECRO.
it B vl I

z With reference to yowr memo. of tho 31st ultimo heroin,
the Lth instant at 10,30 n.m. would Yo n suitable time for the

tun "-3’1"-. .r o ‘_-,,L‘\.”. e ;L,. 1 T

i .
Friday

Toposed

-

orhope you would soufimm iff thie +ime nlre

Fig. 9.3:
5th August 1953 Letter from Clerk to County Surveyor MCC

9.7.

9.8.

All these records taken together show that the surveyors at the time were not able
to determine any maintenance liabilities or the status of the public right and
thereby gave the route in question the ambiguous title of cart road footpath. The
statutory term for such routes is a “road used as a public path” (RUPP) although
the observed status for the public right over the route at that time was footpath.

The 1949 National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act provided that the
Definitive Map and Statement (DM&S) should include, in addition to every public
footpath and bridleway, highways used by the public mainly for the purposes for
which footpaths or bridleways are so used, a category termed by the Act as “road
used as a public path” (RUPP). The definition in the 1949 Act did not use the
words “public” or “private” before the term “road used as a public path”. The term
did place the word “public” prior to the word “path”. The interpretation then is that
this type of route shown on the DM&S was visibly a road that is recorded on it as a
public path which is either a “public” footpath or “public” bridleway. The public
status of the road with this term “RUPP” for this route category is not determined
by the 1949 Act.

44

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Mobouthshi%Coin%(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc




9.9. The category of RUPP is thus shown to be unsatisfactory and, to add to the
difficulties of interpretation, a pamphlet, titled Surveys and Maps of Public Rights of
Way was issued with circular number 81, dated 17" February 1950, and sent to
the Community Councils in 1951 at the time of the initial surveys. This official
guidance was prepared by the Open Spaces and Footpaths Preservation Society,
in collaboration with the Ramblers Association, recommended by the County
Councils Association, and approved by the Ministry of Town and Country Planning.

9.10. In this official guidance circular, reference was made to the recording of routes on
the DM&S with the symbols for “Public Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as
bridleway to be CRB” and “Public Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as footpath
to be CRF”. As a result numerous highway authorities used these non-statutory
symbols to record routes.

9.11. This is what has happened in this Authority and is revealed within the DM&S title
(Fig. 9.4.). At the Provisional stage RUPPs were referenced by using the non-
statutory terms of “Public Carriage or Cart Road used mainly as a footpath shown
in a Broken Green line” and “Public Carriage or Cart Road used mainly as a
Bridleway shown in a Broken Green line” which were then amended at the final
Definitive Map stage and the words “Public” were crossed out and replaced by the

word “Private”.

Fig. 9.4
Definitive Map title MCC

9.12. An explanation of the use of these terms is explained by Lord Denning in the case
‘R v Environment Secretary, ex p. Hood 1975 1QB 891” in which the following is
stated:-

“When the local authorities came in 1949 to prepare their maps under the statute,
they divided the last category foad used as public path’into two sub-divisions
which have no statutory authority. They divided them into ‘CRF’and ‘CRB’,
which denoted ‘cartroad footpath’ and ‘cartroad bridleway’, meaning respectively
that there was a public footpath along a cartroad, or a public bridleway along a
cartroad. In that division the local authorities did not mean to say whether the
cartroad was public or private for carts, because they did not know which it was.

They only meant to say by CRF that there was public footpath along a road: and

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittP%g 8‘1@2216 45
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L SB July 2016.doc



9.13.

9.14.

by CRB a public bridleway along a road. That division was misleading because
each of those subdivisions CRF and CRB was shown in the map as a ‘road used

as a public path’.”

On the Definitive Map for Monmouthshire (formally Gwent) the public rights of way
are shown correctly in accordance with Statutory Instrument 1970 No. 675.
Bridleways are shown with a continuous green line and RUPPs with a broken
green line. It is the marking of a ‘Broken Green line’ on the Definitive Map and
within the Map title which establishes their legal status as “roads used as a public

path’”.

The category of RUPP along with the non-statutory sub-divisions of CRB & CRF
have proved to be unsatisfactory as none of the symbols make it clear whether the
routes were subject to public vehicular rights. This Report seeks to record the
actual status of the public rights that utilise the route in question.

46

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



9.15. The Modification Map (Additions and Deletions) (Fig. 9.5) records no markings
over the route in question. A bold blue line shows the alignment of a route that
was to be removed from this set of records as it was established by investigation
that those public rights already existed and were recorded on the “List of Streets”.

A A

X)) J
Vi - Il
' ‘5:'.‘"“,\1‘&3

(T
L5

:\‘ M \
@

{ I
‘..

-
NP

A
etV ‘\

a
)
LA
= B »
F . -
Fig. 9.5:
Addition and Deletion Map (Modification Map) sheet 21: not to scale: MCC

9.16. The designation for the route in question was not disputed at the time of the
compilation of the DM&S. Therefore the route remained recorded as a cart road

footpath, in the correct terminology a road used as a public path.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittPatg 8‘1@9& a7
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



9.17.

9.18.

The Definitive Map, in keeping with statutory provisions, shows bold broken green
markings for the route in question. The arrows also marked in green join the route
symbol of cart road bridleway or cart road footpath (along with a number) to the
relevant section of the route in question. Other public footpaths in the area are

marked by bold pink (purple) lines.

Fig. 9.6:
1967 Definitive Map sheet 21: not to scale: MCC

When all appeals and objections to the Draft Definitive Map and Statement had
been processed and any additions or deletions marked on an intermediate map
the Authority then compiled a Provisional Definitive Map and Statement 17
September 1965.

48

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Mobouthshi%CoinL?(‘Ouncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



9.19. The County Council published and advertised, as before, the Provisional Definitive
Map and Statement (17/9/1965). This is the Draft Definitive Map duly modified.
The public had no further right of objection but any owner/occupier of land crossed
by a right of way could apply to Quarter Sessions, within 28 days of publication, for
a declaration modifying the map or statement in respect of the Rights of Way.
When all applications had been determined the County Council finally published on
3 November 1967 the Definitive Map and Statement for the County of

Monmouthshire (formerly Gwent).

9.20. The Case of Trevelyan v Secretary of State 2001 raised a presumption that what is

marked on the Definitive Map and Statement is properly and correctly recorded.

9.21. It is my opinion that the combined force of the 2000 CROW and 2006 NERC Acts
have incorrectly designated section B to C as a restricted byway (RB) thereby
allowing public horse-drawn carts and equestrians to access the route in question.
| do not believe that evidence of some substance has to be put forward to displace
the presumption made by these recent changes. However, historical and
documental evidence has been interrogated and discussed, in both Reports 1 and
2, and is the required substantial evidence to refute the recent legislative changes

made to the route in question.

9.22. The Definitive Map & Statement is afforded considerable weight due, firstly to the
statutory provision already mentioned and secondly, to the process of continuous
review set out in Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, allowing for
the modification of the maps and statements on the discovery of evidence
suggesting that it contains errors or omissions. This allows for thorough
investigation of any perceived discrepancies and their correction. This Report

represents such a case.

9.23. The Definitive Map and Statement in its entirety is regarded as the legal register
for public rights of way and the information held within is, for completeness, better
understood when both the maps and statements are investigated together. The
descriptions made during the survey remain the statements for the Definitive Map.
These statements (Appendix 65 to 66) were compiled by Mr F. Williams of
Wyedene, Llandogo, nr. Chepstow, Mon. Regardless of the precise location of Mr
F. Williams’'s home he did live in Llandogo. Therefore, he had some local

knowledge of the route in question.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g sl'g_uy 16 49
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB 8tJuly 2016.doc



9.24.

9.25.

9.26.

9.27.

9.28.

9.29.

9.30.

Trellech number 24

e CRF: --: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts on County road W of The
Mount. Rough surfaced road passing through wood as far as Young’s Cottage.
Continuing as unsurfaced road for a quarter of a mile approx. with turning point
for lorries at the end. Road now continues as a CRF crossing Cleddon Shoots
into Cloisters Lane near Marigold Cottage.

It is noted that the first section, A to B, is described as a rough surfaced road.
Then from Young’s Cottage now known as Bargans Cottage the route in question,
A to B, is described as being unsurfaced. The next section, B to C of the route in
guestion is described as continuing as a cart road footpath (CRF). It is incorrect to
assume that this non-statutory symbol “CRF” allows for the public use of the route
to be made by a horse-drawn cart or horse riders as explained by Lord Denning
(point 9.13).

The DM&S uses the word “road” on a number of occasions. It is incorrect to
assume that the descriptive word “road” automatically stipulates that such a route

should have public vehicular rights and be maintained at public expense.

The other existing public footpaths, listed below, have Definitive Map Statements
that add further information to the route in question. The descriptions for the

routes are as follows:

PROW Trellech 18 to 19

e FP: Hollow Lane: walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts at Inglewood House
on the Llandogo Trellech Road mounts hill with stone wall left hand side;
Earthen bank on other. Approx. width 6ft. Exit on to Glen Road.

PROW Trellech 25 to 27

e FP: Cloisters Lane: Walked: F Williams, 1 June 1951: Starts at the beginning of
Freedom Road. Rough stony path bordered by stone walls, Path about 5 ft
wide. Stone walls end at Walnut Tree Cottage, where path becomes ill defined

until it exits on to the Freedom Road by a stone stile.

PROW Trellech 28
e FP: --: Walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starting from Cloisters Lane by
Walnut Tree Cottage. About 5 ft wide bordered by stone walls, green path

making an exit on the Freedom Road.

50

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oim?(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



9.31.

9.32.

9.33.

9.34.

PROW Trellech 49 to 50

e FP: -: Walked: F Williams: 1% June 1951: Starts 10 yds above the junction of FP
No. 48 branching right from the Great Hill FP No. 5[sic] rough track bordered by
low stone walls serving 3 cottages before crossing FP no 18 and 19 then runs
up to join CRB No. 23 and 24 at its terminus.

The Definitive Map Statement records the path to be described as Trellech 49 to
50. Then in the description there is a typing error and “0” after the number “5” is
missing. This is backed up by following the route describe on the Definitive Map

and also noting that FP5 is hot marked while FP50 is.

The route in question has evidently been linked at point C to other public footpaths
before reaching any public highways that are open to all traffic. This shows that
the route was never regarded as a thoroughfare for public vehicles, horse-drawn

carts and horse riders.

In keeping with all the Ordnance Survey Maps that record the physical features
such as boundaries, surface changes and widths for the route in question along
with these Statements suggest that there were no public vehicular, horse-drawn
carts or equestrian rights. This reason is verified by the fact that the surveyor
registered the route in question as essentially being a public footpath.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittPa;g 80%?36 51
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB 8N July 2016.doc



10. The Highway Records

10.1. Both the 1% April 1949 Highway Map and current “List of Streets” do not record the
route in question as a county unclassified highway. The OS base maps on which
the Highway information is recorded shows the route in question on a similar
alignment to all previous historical maps discussed.

Fig. 10.1:
1949 Highway Records: not to scale: MCC

52 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Morﬁouthshia Coinl?cduncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



10.2. The undated Highway records show the same roads shaded as the 1949 Highway

plan records.

10.3. The evidence that the county road 40-7 is the only section recorded on the
Highway documents shows that the route in question was not regarded as a
thoroughfare for the use of motorised vehicles by the public at large.

Sy

ol saileeel
W) A A

2y

2\ W e

AR g RN
Pagg N %R %R aWie

Fig. 10.2: Appendix 22: Applicant’s Evidence 11
Undated historical highway records not to scale: MCC

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory CommittP%g 8‘1uyl§le 53
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 L SB 8N July 2016.doc



11. Aerial photographs

11.1. The Aerial Photograph dated 13 April 1947 shows that north of Glen Cote there
is evidence of a small turning triangle depicted by wide light grey shading.
However there are no additional similar markings continuing northwest or
northeast from this location. Although, there is a mark that may suggest that the
route in question continues northwards as a footpath.

ot

. . Y
L veiindy o e -ﬁ‘x,eu"a - gk

1

Fig. 11.1:
Aerial photograph: Dated 13 April 1947: National Assembly of Wales
(MCC has a purchased copy. It is available at MCC office for viewing.)

11.2. This shows that the route in question was not regarded as the regular way for the
public at large to access other properties north of Cleddon Shoots in motor

vehicles, horse-drawn carts or on horses.

54 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Mon'ﬁouthshi%CoinL?(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



11.3. Although the tree canopy in April 1947 is not dense at this time it is still difficult to
see an impression of RB24 through to Cleddon Shoots. This suggests that if the
alignment of RB24 were more discernible between the trees, than that currently
shown, then it would support the fact that the entire route was more frequently
used by the public at large. This is not evident in this photograph, which indicates
that the route in question is not used as a through route by the public at large in

motorised vehicles, horse-drawn carts or on horses.

11.4. The Aerial Photograph dated 27 March 1970 does not clearly show the
alignment of the route in question through the canopy of trees. It is not clear
where point C should be located on this photograph.

» . ”

' :"?J‘ 1

R Ve 0019YIT My Z2eLisniny paliuny siaaung sug Wluicoy u.auiun«ﬁgpzp

k'

g

+
g

,/
<
. . "]
-
<

o\ W, W

Fig. 11.2:
Aerial photograph: Dated August 1972: National Assembly of Wales
(MCC has a purchased copy. It is available at MCC office for viewing.)

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory ComminPa(g 8‘1u§2216 55
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal SB 8th July 2016.doc



11.5.

11.6.

11.7.

When viewing the entrance of the turning triangle north of Glen Cote through a
stereograph, it is noted that a barrier of some description was located to prevent
some type of use. At the same time the aerial photograph shows another larger
turning area directly north of Cleddon Stile being more evident 19 years after the
1951 survey for the Definitive Map.

It is not clear from this aerial photograph what this area might have been used for.
However, it has been clarified by users and local inhabitants as being an area for
the private delivery of coal by a small ford delivery truck and not for the use of the
general public.

The aerial photographic evidence proves that the public at large did not frequently

use the route in question as a major vehicular thoroughfare.

56

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oim?(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



12. Site photographs (4ppendixes 51 to 58).

12.1. The discussion for all the site photographs is repeated here for completeness in

terms of the investigation for the whole route (A to C).

12.2. The first three photographs taken on the 16" March 1998 (Appendix 51) are
of a land slip below Bargans Cottage and the route in question shows a patched

sealed surface.

12.3. The photographs taken on the 29" February 2000 (Appendixes 52 & 53)
show most of the route in question to have a sealed surface that in some areas
is broken. The wear and tear of these sections of broken ground have the
evidence of tyre marks near them. This shows that the use of the route has
been with vehicles and it is evident that it is this type of use that has damaged
the surface of the route in question.

12.4. The photographs taken in 2004 (Appendix 54) (Photographs 1, 2 & 3) show a
recently sealed surface along with the evidence of tyre tracks damaging the
edges of the route in question. Photograph 4 shows the unchanged surface of
CRB23. The evidence in this photograph shows a central grass knoll with
parallel wearing made by wheeled vehicular traffic. However, it is evident from
other historical documentation that the usage is limited to reported coal delivery
and to the requirements of a single dwelling prior to the proposed development

of the property in 2004.

12.5. The evidence in photograph 1 (Appendix 56) of the stepping stones show that
this route was not considered as a vehicular through route. In support of this
reasoning is that the office file for restricted byway (RB) 24 (formerly cart road
footpath) does not contain any complaints regarding the surface of the route
and the need for the stones to be removed to allow motorised, horse-drawn
cart, equestrian or cyclist traffic.  Furthermore, all these photographs
(Appendixes 55 & 56) do not show a wide route with a central knoll of grass.
Instead, a single narrow route in keeping with that expected for footpaths is

illustrated.

12.6. The photographs taken in 2014 (Appendixes 57 & 58) show the route
relatively unchanged when compared with the photographs taken in 2004.

Photograph 4 (Appendix 57) shows the evidence of motor car usage that has

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g sl'm_uy?s 57
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB 8N July 2016.doc



12.7.

12.8.

12.9.

12.10.

worn wheeled tracks and a central grass knoll over the section CRB23. The
comparison of the 2004 photographs with the 2014 photographs shows the
evidence of motor car usage has not changed. The limited use supports the fact
that this route has not been enjoyed by the public at large. It is more difficult
from these photographs to prove only public bridleway or footpath use along the
section CRB20-22 because the sealed surface hides much of that type of use.

The photographs of RB24 (Appendix 58) show the route to be narrow in
comparison to the previous section CRB20-23 (Appendix 57) and this evidence
supports the fact that the route in question is not a public thoroughfare for public

motorised vehicles, non-motorised vehicles or horses.

The photographs of RB24 show that this section of the route is used mainly by
pedestrians. It is difficult from these photographs to prove horse riding or cycling

use.

The limitations imposed by the location of the route in question suggests that
there was once private equestrian usage in the past carried out by local
inhabitants and their associated needs. Then, much later, modern private
vehicular usage was and is still conducted by the local homeowners wishing to

gain access.

The site photographs when taken together with all the other evidence discussed
so far suggests that the public usage of the route in question is mainly

pedestrian.

58

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MorlSouthshi%CoTé(‘Ouncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



13. The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

13.1. Regulations associated with restricted byways (RB) and roads used as public
paths (RUPPs) came into force on the 11" May 2006 in Wales (through The
Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000 (Commencement No. 8 & Transitional
Provisions) (Wales) Order 2006).

13.2. The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 (NERC) section 66-

72 Part 6 came into force in Wales on the 16™ November 2006.

13.3. The coming into force of the relevant sections of both the 2000 CROW and
2006 NERC Acts are an event that has changed the designation of cart road
footpath 24(CRF) on the Definitive Map and Statement to a restricted byway
(RB).

13.4. That is, for section B to C, there is no need to determine public rights of way for
motorised vehicles as these have been extinguished by section 67(1)(b) of the
2006 NERC Act which states that an existing public right of way for
mechanically propelled vehicles (MPV) is extinguished if it is over a way which,
immediately before commencement was shown in a definitive map and

statement only as a footpath, bridleway or restricted byway.

13.5. To clarify this, on the 11" May 2006 the cart road footpath 24 (CRF) was
designated as a restricted byway (RB) prior to the 2006 NERC Act coming into
force on the 16™ November 2006 thereby ensuring that public MPV rights were

extinguished.

13.6. Although this change has officially removed public MPV rights it has also
increased the public rights from essentially being merely a public footpath (FP)
to a route that now allows the public to use the route on horseback or in non-

mechanically propelled vehicles such as horse-drawn carts and bicycles.

13.7. This legislative event, the submission for a Definitive Map Modification Order
(DMMO), detailed in Report 1, along with the Authority’s duty to continuously
review the Definitive Map and Statement has resulted in the discovery of
evidence that the route in question has been incorrectly recorded in the Map
and Statement as a restricted byway and ought to be there shown as a
footpath. (Refer to Appendixes 59 to 64.)

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!_@ 16 59
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



14. Section B to C - Review

14.1.

14.2.

14.3.

14.4.

14.5.

14.6.

14.7.

Prior to the commencement of the 2000 Countryside & Rights of Way (CROW) and
2006 Natural Environment & Rural Communities (NERC) Acts, the Wildlife &
Countryside Act (WCA) 1981 stipulated that, with regard to every definitive map
and statement, the Authority shall, as soon as reasonably practicable, carry out a
review of the particulars contained in the map and statement as related to roads
used as public paths (RUPPs) and by order make such modification to the map
and statement as it appears to the authority to show every RUPP by one of the
three following descriptions: a byway open to all traffic (BOAT); a bridleway (BR);
or a footpath (FP).

Now that the relevant sections of the 2000 CROW and 2006 NERC Acts have
come into force, public vehicular rights have been removed from section B to C
and public restricted byway rights remain.

In considering the alleged public vehicular usage of section A to B of the route in
question it is expedient to investigate all the historical documentation for the entire
route A to C. The historical documentation for the section B to C, restricted byway
24, may have supported the claimed public vehicle rights for the section A to B.
However, the investigation of the historical documentation for both sections shows
that the route in question was not regarded as a thoroughfare or a route for public

vehicles, horse-drawn carts and horse riders.

The Applicants’ report detailed and discussed in Report 1 does not address
section B to C. Also, correspondence as part of the pre-consultation shows that
the claimants, along with other local inhabitants, are not interested in supporting
public vehicular, horse-drawn carts or horse rider rights extending beyond point B

north of Llecan Beck, Llandogo.

The 1952 Conveyance of land in the area of Rock Cottage, in the place known as

the “Great Hill” has no bearing on section B to C of the route in question.

The planning permission A36666 has no bearing on section B to C of the route in

question.

One of the five witness statements reports the use of the route B to C with a horse-
drawn sledge. This type of use is not attributed to the public at large. This has

been further reported on by a local resident who states that people living in the

60

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
Monbouthshi%(:oi]é(‘éuncil Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



area made their own private plans to easily transport coal to their homes along the

route in question.

14.8. Two of the six evidence forms refer mainly to the whole route in question as being
enjoyed mainly as a footpath. However, within one of these user evidence forms,
bridleway status is recorded on the form although such use is not seen or

practiced.

14.9. Two pre-order consultations were carried out one in 2004 and another in 2015 the
results of which show that section B to C is not regarded as a public vehicular,
horse-drawn cart or equestrian thoroughfare. The consultations received 3
objections to the upgrade of RB 24 should the route in question be changed to a
byway open to all traffic; one from National Resources Wales and two from
landowners near or adjacent to the route. The lack of opinion resulting from the
consultations along with the historical map markings and other documents lend
support to the entire route being a public footpath only.

14.10. Correspondence from the landowner of Cleddon Shoots reports the use of the
section A to B to be by motorbikes gaining access to the Shoots and being “keen
to ensure that the RB24 remains pedestrian only access” has implications. The
allegations are, firstly, the reporting of the usage of section A to B by the public on
mechanically propelled vehicles and secondly, the desire to keep the Shoots as a

public footpath by erecting a barrier to prevent motorbike use.

14.11. The owner of the land at Cleddon Shoots reports some motorbike activity but it is
unknown how long this had occurred or whether it has occurred only on the route
in question. It is therefore difficult to ascertain if this supports public use with
vehicles, or was in fact only a single report of anti-social behaviour within her

woods.

14.12. This means that there is only one report for the section A to B that possibly
supports public vehicular rights. However, this reporting alone, along with other
user evidence, the historical evidence, and the results of the wide pre-order
consultations, suggests that public vehicular and all types of equestrian rights are

not proven to exist over the entire route investigated.

14.13. The pre-order consultation along with other historical evidence supports section B

to C being registered on the Definitive Map and Statement as a public footpath.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!_@%36 61
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



14.14.

14.15.

14.16.

14.17.

14.18.

14.19.

The four 2015 land registry documents that refer to land adjacent to, or abutting
section B to C of the route in question, do not record any public or private
vehicular, horse-drawn cart or equestrian rights. Furthermore, the historical
conveyances referred to within these modern title deeds are not available to
investigate.

The 1823 Price Map may show this section of the route while the Greenwood,
Cassini, David & Charles, and 1830 Ordnance Survey maps do not show this
section of the route in question. Furthermore, the 1830 Ordnance Survey map
was a survey compiled under strict administration and this does not depict this
section of the route in question.

The 1828 and 1834 plans within the Deed Papers of Cleddon Shoots have no
markings that indicate a route that continue through Cleddon Shoots. The
information gathered from these earlier historical maps does not support any public
right of way across Cleddon Shoots.

The 1846 Tithe and 1910 Finance Act maps do not depict, in their differing styles,
this section of the route in question. At point B on the Tithe map there is
suggested evidence of a barrier and, on the Finance Act map there is definitely the
marking of a solid line that represents a barrier. This shows that on both the 1846
and 1910 historical mapping and accompanying documentation there was no
recording of any type of public route through Cleddon Shoots. In this instance the
Tithe and Finance Act records do not support public rights and other historical

evidence needs to be considered.

The 1881, 1886, 1902 and the 1922 Ordnance Survey maps all show the section B
to C of the route in question marked by parallel broken lines. The conventional
signs on the 6 inch maps references these ways to be “minor unfenced roads”.
Furthermore, the 1902 Ordnance Survey map has the symbol “F.P.” at two points

near the northern section of the route in question.

This type of marking and symbol shows the physical nature of the route, B to C, for
the majority of its length to have the status level of a footpath and not a bridleway
or restricted byway. The Ordnance Survey map surveyors were not charged with
the authority to record public rights. Instead, their responsibility was to depict all

the physical features encountered.

62

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MOI]SOUthShi%COTé(ﬁunC" Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



14.20. The Definitive Map and Statement is afforded considerable weight due to the
statutory provision and the continuous review as set out under section 53 of the
Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981.

14.21. Therefore evidence of some substance is required to refute that which is already
recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement. However, the terminology used for
the route in question is ambiguous and requires further study which has been
carried out by asking various questions that have then been answered and

explained.

14.22. Is section B to C a ‘road used as a public path™?
Not at this time although the symbol of a ‘broken green line’ for RUPPs is shown
for the entire route and mentioned in the Definitive Map title. However, the
combined legislation that came into force in 2006 has changed section B to C from
a cart road footpath (CRF) to a restricted byway (RB) with the same ‘broken green
line’ remaining as the type of mark used to show the alignment of the route on the
Map.

14.23. Is section B to C a {Public] Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as a footpath...”?
No. The title to the Definitive Map was changed at Provisional stage and the word

‘public’ was substituted by the word ‘private’.

14.24. Is section B to C a ‘Private Carriage or Cart Road mainly used as a footpath...”?
No. Although, the non-statutory symbol cart road footpath (CRF) may have been
provided within official guidelines it remains non-statutory while the symbol of
‘broken green line’ remains the statutory symbol for ‘roads used as a public path’.
Moreover, this non-statutory symbol cart road footpath (CRF) is explained by Lord
Denning in the case “R v Environment Secretary, ex p. Hood 1975 1QB 891" (see
Chapter 9) as being misleading because local authorities did not know whether or
not a cart road was ‘public’ or ‘private’ and that this symbol along with the symbol
for cart road bridleway (CRB) were both marked using the same notation for ‘road

used as a public path’ on the Map.

14.25. Is the route B to C ‘mainly used as a footpath™?
Yes. It has had this designation since 1952, the relevant date for the Definitive
Map and Statement. Then the combined 2000 CROW and 2006 NERC Acts
changed the existing public footpath rights to include public horse-drawn cart and
equestrian rights for this section which have not been and are still not being

utilised by the public at large.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!:@8516 63
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



14.26.

14.27.

14.28.

14.29.

14.30.

14.31.

The Definitive Map shows many alignments of already registered public footpaths
that criss-cross the hillside and pass through Cleddon Shoots. These public
footpaths have a degree of influence which invites public pedestrian use of all the
routes in the area while other user types have been limited. The evidence
submitted and other historical documents examined supports private transportation
of goods on horseback to private local dwellings in the area and do not assist in
proving all types of public equestrian use over the route in question. Therefore, on
the balance, all the evidence and historical documents examined suggest that the
route in question has and still is utilised mainly by the public at large on foot only.

The historical highway maps have no supporting evidence for section B to C.

The aerial photographs for section B to C are not clear as this part passes through
the woods and the canopy of the tree obscures any possible observations. This
density of the wood to a certain degree supports the fact that the route in question
A to B was probably not regarded as a thoroughfare for public motorised vehicles.

The site photographs dated 1998, 2004 and 2014 show RB (CRF) 24 as non-
surfaced single track with stepping stones that cross the stream, Cleddon Shoots.
In addition, nearer point C, the route passes through a narrow section between
stone walls. Furthermore, there is no horse use damage along this section. If
there had been surface disturbance made by horses, then there would be more
complaints made to the Authority by adjoining landowners and/or the public at
large regarding surface repairs. The evidence from these photographs supports
public footpath rights.

The subsection 67(1) of the 2006 Natural Environment and Rural (NERC) Act has
extinguished public mechanically propelled vehicle rights over the route in question
between points B to C. This legislative event along with the Authority’s duty to
continuously review the Definitive Map and Statement has resulted in the
discovery of evidence that the route in question has been incorrectly recorded in
the Map and Statement as a restricted byway and ought to be there shown as a

footpath.

The examination of all the historical documentation and the results reported both
here and in Report 1 shows that, on balance, the entire route in question should be

registered on the Definitive Map and Statement as a public footpath.

64

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MOI]SOUthShi%COTé%unC" Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



15. Conclusion

15.1.

15.2.

15.3.

15.4.

15.5.

15.6.

15.7.

It is concluded that there are no public restricted byway rights for section B to C of
the route in question. That is to say, there are no public rights for horse-drawn

carts or equestrians.

The 1823 Price Map is the only pre-1830 map that depicts section B to C while all
the other pre-1830 Maps do not record this section and this suggests that higher

public rights do not exist.

There is a single report of anti-social motorbike use for the entire route. This
evidence alone is insufficient to register the route in question as a restricted byway

‘open to all types of public equestrian use’.

From the pre-order consultation it was reported that a “human and donkey” used
section B to C in a private capacity for transporting coal. As there is only a single
report of a beast of burden using section B to C this does not give support to the
recording of the entire route as a restricted byway or bridleway.

As far as it is possible with the historical documents available it has been
demonstrated in this Report that the proper procedures in production of the
Definitive Map and Statement were followed. Therefore, the standard of evidence
investigated and interrogated within this Report demonstrates actual positive
evidence of some substance, which shows a contrary position to the one included

on the Definitive Map and Statement.

All the historical, documental and user evidence for section B to C and also that
evidence which applies to section A to B detailed in Report 1 for the route in
question, shows that there is no evidence of use by the public either in motorised

vehicles, in horse-drawn carts or on horseback.

Therefore, this being the case and along with the knowledge that public footpath
rights crisscross the area, and with all this evidence taken together, it is shown
that, on the balance of probabilities, the route in question (RB24) does not have

higher public rights and should be registered as a public footpath.

REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committf)za;g 8";!_@2216 65
Monmouthshire County Council Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 LTal QB July 2016.doc



16. Recommendation

16.1. Members are invited to resolve that advice (autherisation) be given to the
Community Services Cabinet Portfolio Member to authorise the (proceed-with)
making of the Modification Order under section 53(3)(c)(ii) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 to classify restricted byway 24 as a footpath as detailed in
this report and to confirm or seek confirmation of the Order.

'
',l

J

8 = s Ao
Mahdy Mussell Ruth Rourke
Definitive Map Officer Principal Countryside Access Officer
June 2016 June 2016

Authors:  Mandy Mussell, Definitive Map Officer and R. Rourke, Principal Countryside

Access Officer

Contact Details:  Telephone: Ext 4813

Email: mandymussell@Monmouthshire.gov.uk

66 REPORT 2: SECTION B to C: Licencing and Regulatory Committee Report — 8% July 2016
MOI]SOUthShi%COTé%unCiI Reference: Countryside: Report 2.17 Llandogo B to C 8th July 2016.doc



Glossary

AONB ... Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
BOAT . Byway Open to All Traffic
2T U SP Bridleway
BT e e British Telecom
CRB Cart Road Bridleway
R e Cart Road Footpath
CROW 2000.......ccceeiiiiieeeeeeeeeeiiiena e Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000
DEFRA.....ccooe Department for Environment, Food & Rural Affairs
DMMO.. ..o, Definitive Map Modification Order
DMES ... Definitive Map and Statement
PSSR PPPPTTRR Footpath
GRO . Gwent Record Office
[0 1 TP PP PP PPPPPPPSPPPPN List of Streets
MCC .. e Monmouthshire County Council
MPYV L Mechancially Propelled Vehicles
NA OF KRO ..o National Archives or Kew Record Office
NRW e Natural Resources Wales
NERC 2006...........ccccee.... Natural Environment and Rural Commuinities Act 2006
NPACA 1949................... National Parks and Access to the Countryside Act 1949
L0 11 T Open Spaces Society
L U Public Rights of Way
R e e Restricted Byway
] Road Used as Public Path
SAC Special Area of Conservation
SOOI Site of Special Scientific Interest
WCA L1981L....iii e Wildlife and Countyside Act 1981

Page 189




This page is intentionally left blank



Appendixes for both Reports

I Tor= 1 1o ] TN Y F= T SR Appendix 1
DMMO Application Certificates ...........oouuuiiiiiiiiieiiiecccn e Appendixes 2 & 3
DMMO Application Plan ...........ccoiiiiiiiicies e Appendixes 4
Applicants’ sUbMISSION REPOIM........ciiiiiiiiieicci e Appendixes 5 - 39
Planning consultation letter: - 7" September 1988............cccvvveeiieeiciee e, Appendix 40
Planning consultation letter: - 3™ July 1989 ..........cocviiiiieeeiieeece e Appendix 41
Detail plan from planning permission A36666..................uuuuuiiiimiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiene, Appendix 42
Mr T. Wilkinson-John’s letter: - 10™ August 1988............cccevvvveiieeieeiie e Appendix 43
EVIOENCE FOIMIS ..ottt Appendix 44 - 49
Ms D. M. Robinson’s submission report: - April 2004......................... Appendixes 50.1 — 50.7
Site Photographs with direction plan: - 16" March 1998 .............cccccccvevieiiieecnnee, Appendix 51
Site Photographs with direction plan: - 29" February 2000........................ Appendixes 52 - 53
Site Photographs with direction plan: - 2004............ccccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiinnn, Appendixes 54 — 56
Site Photographs with diection plan:- July 2014............cccoooiiiiiiiiiiin. Appendixes 57 — 58
The Natural Environment and Rural Communites Act 2006....................... Appendixes 59 - 61
lllustration of NERC Act 2006 process for tests .........uuieiiveeeiiieiiiiiiiieeeen. Appendixes 62 — 64
Definitive Map Statement for public paths 6 t0 46............ccoooiiiiiiiiiii e Appendix 65
Definitive Map Statement for public paths 49 & 50 ..o Appendix 66

Page 191




* wlcled\'
Hall f

N 4.»}‘;;,- Llandog
' 'Cledon\ H

")—%&_ S g
5 S X

———

~
o -

Location Map

Pagapp&adix 1




"

monmouthshire
ftesuty Feueen
1 J,HH Y

WILDLIFE & COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981
APPLICATION FOR MODIFICATION ORDER

CERIFICATE (i)
Monmouthshire County Council Definitive Map and Statement
To: Monmouthshire County Council
of: County Hall, Cwmbran.

IWe ., 31ANA, HACCLS. m‘la;l?:ltfrhvl I s e
o ﬁ(’bfl_d Corp e fe '(‘A:v\,wm "
AR N DGR+ rrerrriansannsaaneaatsa e st e ,‘mw ...........
...... 5% 1S T35 el TOOUIRRY /o -+ 3 4 = . SN

hereby apply for an order under Section 53(2) of the Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981
modifying the definitive map and statement for the area by:-

[Upgrading] [dewngrading) to a [*footpath / “brdieway / *cartroad-bridieway / "east
maddeetpath / *byway open 1o all traffic] the [“leelpath / “bridieway / “cart road
bridleway / *cart-roadfootpath / “byway open-10-ai-H#affic] rveete ss sppropriate)

from .. 00 CEXCEXRAKE.... SAITGSE........ BACGANG, SOTTSE.....
o .EI0 RETUBLE... S A0 K OGR ... LA, STIE . STTITE

and as shown on the map annexed hereto,

I/We attach copies of the following documentary evidence (including statements of
witnesses) in support of this application (please list documents below):

..... Puase seq. adtddud port. & Schwdals.........o.

..................................................................................................................
..................................................................................................................
..................................................................................................................

..................................................................................................................

Dated: 13 /1 04 10904 Signed: /& !Iiuim

Please return to: Mr J. Martin
Director of Planmng & Economic Development

DMMO Application form - Certificate (i) Applicants’ submission

PRgentoa?




»

monmouthshire

cccccc RTITET

S ey

WILDLIFE & COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981
CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE OF NOTICE OF APPLICATION
FOR MODIFICATION ORDER

CERIFICATE (ii)
Monmouthshire County Council Definitive Map and Statement
To: Monmouthshire County Council

of: County Hall, Cwmbran.

. ’ o
IWe &lypﬁ’g{gﬂunm‘D‘”";ao?:awmm
DAS Ao VInUGToW)
Of QLQ__C&J&H‘:";.A‘) ................................................ .mmmcv ............
Lo wWPas eTfe GLos G L2 81X

..............................................................................................................................

hereby certify that the requirements of paragraph 2 of schedule 14 to the Wildiife &
Country side Act 1981 have been complied with.

Dated: 3 /042004 Signed: T bisia

Notices served on the following persons/bodies:-

1. AL S PN PP oo
2. .I?i‘-.wk.).\cms...l?-!qiﬂmh.tﬁd....hm&..bfm.u:Mtlfdd..as..cmmt/ﬂa*ur
3. A DA ARUIIA . .......cooooororeeeenneenes s
B. rereeriessensssssessttesssensttanaess st treseseseessesestessantesssane R sa R PRI RS T  SeS eSS0 LTS TSL s Ssseee
B serrencesnceesnrmesenssssesmssSsSRTE YRS YT R YR TF RSSO PPN me oy ST S oot BOSS PP OT e A Ads kahan 2 KA
B s aenererrer A S T by e S5 S PN Lal A A dan AR e e e eSS SO e

Please return to: Mr J. Martin
Director of Planning & Economic Development
Monmouthshire County Council
County Hall
Cwmbran
NP44 2WP

DMMO Application form - Certificate (ii) Applicants’ submission
Pagspp&slix 3




Sin
Cleddon Stile
c,\ee
e
The Lio
Bank
Cottage
Glen
Liecan Beck Cote W e
Cartref Yew Tree
Cottage
Laurel Bush
Castle Dean _ Woodbine
Great Hill Cottage
Issues
Alpine
N Hillside Cottage
e
Willowdene
wu Croft Croft
Cottage
2880 i
- High
Bodmin View
i The
2278 Rosehill Mok
M Sinks
A

DMMO Application form — Plan: Applicants’ submission

Ragentidor

MAPeFs SoS202NN

SCALE (11250




The Old Parish Road and CRB 23

List and summary of evidence submitted with this application

Date
,‘ - | - - oo
2| 1820
3 | 1828
4 [ 1830
5 | 1834
6 | 1843
7. | 1846
8 1881
o 1882
0. | 1910
1. | 19201051
12| 1951
13. | 1952
14 | 1994
15, | Vanous

Document

| Cary's New Map of és.w

Plan for deed papers - Cleddon Shoots

Istedition0S 1" = 1 mie

Plan for deed papers R i",ilcaﬂb}lﬁéhbols

| Tithe Award

| Tithe Ptan

| 3¢ edition OS 25 inch = 1 mile

| Finance Act wdriing a;n 3

1* edition Book of Refererce

' Af\}!;bym obunty roads

© Survey of RoW

. Codveyénce of property at ‘Great Hill

(with plan showing Great Hill)

Lefter from bé}_eéidr-oirﬂigfmays

Letlers & statements recording use and
knowledge abo_ulrlh_eAmed

| shown |
| Shown |

1
|

1

Not

X ’Thebasl of the ‘county maps’. Not showing

|
|
|
\
|

Comments

does not indicate CRB 23 did not exist. but
does indicate il was not particularly

| significant,

| CRB23shownasa southwérds extension

of a track in Cleddon Shoots

The cluster of lanes between CRE 23 and
Llandogo is shown. Quite a change from

! 1930 to now.

" CRB23shownasa southwards extaasion

of a track in Cleddon Shoots.

| The plot of land Is shov)n, but no reference
{ wCRB23

CRB 23 is charﬂyA shown coloured in the

| same way as putlic roads and the network
of tracks'

| Survey dates 1875-85. CRB 23 shown with

{
{
{

|

|
|

own plot number Network shown much as
today

CRB 23 given an acreage, but no
description (no descriptons at all in BoR
for s area).

CRB 23 s 'coloured out’ of the valuation
plots. s

The southarn and of the route Is listed as
CAO-7.

Describes CRB 23 as a 'rough surfaced

| road’ used by lorries.

Land conveyed shorlly after the first
definitive map survey. CRB 23 descrbed
&s a 'public road” — no referente 10 any

| private access.

Highway authority states belief that CRB

| 23 s a public vehicular highway

The status of the *Old Parish Road’, which is comprised of CRBs 21, 22, and 23.
When searching through documentary evidence to find information on the origin of
any highway, sometimes there is one piece of evidence that is so clear and cogent
that. on its own, it can indicate the status of the route in question. Sometimes there is
no single *decisive’ document, and it is necessary to assemble a sequence of
documentary references which, when taken together, show on the balance of
probabilities that the right being asserted exists. That is the task in this case (ref:
Commission for New Towns v. JJ Gallagher 12003| 2 P&CR 3: [2002] EWHC 2668).
There is no single “decisive’ piece of evidence, either to show public vehicular rights,

or that the road was only ever a private road. perhaps with a public bridleway along it.

But there is a considerable pattern of evidence which, if taken together and construed
in context, points, on the balance of probabilitics, to CRBs 21/22/23 being part of a
longer public vehicular road, albeit a minor one predominantly used by local people.

Report: Applicants’ submission

Pagépbeadix 5




The *private road’ question

If the network of roads/tracks including The Old Parish Road was only a network of
private roads for landowners' access, why are there so many branches? There is no
pattern of consistency between the roads and the plots alongside. The irregularity of
the roads suggests antiquity and, if set out by an inclosure process, it seems very
wasteful of land and of repair resources. Inclosure tended to rationalise roads and plot
shapes and sizes. This area appears to be an ancient. irregular landscape. There is no
express evidence that the road of which CRBs 21/22/23 form part was set oul as, or
later regarded as. a private road for the benefit of one or a number of landowners. The
name itself suggests it was not private. Furthermore, the landowner(s) adjacent to
CRB 21/22/23 do not have any easement of vehicular access in their deeds and title to
property (as per the conveyance of 1952). If The Old Parish Road was only a private
road, with there being so many individual adjoining properties, it is almost
inconceivable that the properties would be conveyed without an easement of access
where such existed before sale. There is available a specimen conveyance of a
property adjoining/served by this road — there is no expression or reservation of any
‘private road”.

How old is this road?

The oldest document showing any part of the road is a plan made in connection with
deeds for Cleddon Shoots in 1828. This shows a road coming in from the south — it is
hard to sce that this could be any other than The Old Parish Road / CRB 23. Further,
the whole of the road is shown in the tithe plan of 1846. In Roberts v, Webster | 1967 |
QB 298. it was held that where a road was shown as existing in 1859, it was almost
impossible for a highway authority successfully to argue that it did not exist in 1836,
when the Highway Act 1835 came into force. On the balance of probabilities The Old
Parish Road existed in 1835 substantially as it is now.

There is no inclosure award for this land

A thorough search has been made for any records of parliamentary inclosure, or
inclosure by agreement, of the land where this route, and the properties it serves, lie.
This land was in the Manor of Llandogo, which was held by the Church of Wales, and
there is no record that any inclosure process was carried out. The inclosure act and
award for the Parish of Llandogo expressly do not extend to the Manor of Llandogo.
This absence of deposited documents — or any reference to inclosure — is supported by
a report by the Inland Revenue’s District Valuer, in 1952, which report refers to the
Parish of Llandogo inclosure, and also to the absence of any other plans or maps of
the manor,

The tithe award and plan

The tithe award does not appear 1o list ‘public roads’, and so is not helpful in
determining the status of the road. The tithe plan shows the road coloured in a typical
‘sienna’ colour, like all the roads in the area. Roads were not productive and therefore
not liable to a tithe rent charge, whether public or private. However, where there is
other evidence of status (which in this case there is) then the tithe award might be
taken as a small picce of evidence consistent with that other evidence (Maltbridee
Island Management Co. v. SoS for Environment | 1998 | EWHC Admin 820 31 July
1998).

9

Report: Applicants’ submission

Aapend X6




First Edition Ordnance Survey map and Book or Reference

The Old Parish Road is shown on the 1% Edition OS 25" = | mile map as a road, with,
at least as regards the northern portion(s) individual plot numbers. The companion
Book of Reference is not helpful — it lists the plot number, and the acreage, but this
Bok of Reference does not have any descriptions of land use. All we can say here is
that the OS map shows the road in a similar way to other public roads, and as part of a
through-route,

The Finance Act 1910

This is the single strongest piece of evidence of public road status. The Old Parish
Road is shown ‘coloured out’ from the adjoining plots of land. This is consistent with
the requirements of the Act that all land must be valued ‘except land held by a rating
authority”. The parish council as highway authority, and its successor rural district
council as highway authority, were both rating authorities for the purposes of the Act.
The Inland Revenue valuers did not treat footpaths and bridleways in this way.
Footpaths and bridleways were not ‘coloured out” on the plans, but instead received a
deduction from the valuation in the ‘field books’. This is indicative that The Old
Parish Road was regarded in 1910 as a public road other than a footpath or bridleway.
This is very powerful evidence. It would require extremely cogent evidence of a
mistake being made by the IR valuer to diminish its weight (Robinson Webster v.
Agombar 9 April 2001, (Ch) HC 000095).

County road status

By the time of the definitive map survey in the early 1950s. the bottom end of the
route that is. 1o its north, recorded as CRBs 20-23, was already recorded as county
maintainable highway C40-7, as far north as to a point just west of the south side of
The Mount. There is no "place of public resort’ for this county road to go to, other
than its continuation as the CRBs. It is highly unlikely to be a publicly maintainable
highway as far as The Mount (a private dwelling), yet not similarly a publicly
maintainable highway continuing to the dwellings to the north. Further, there is
evidence that the highway authority has improved the next section, CRB 20, as a
vehicular road. in more-recent years. This course of actions is indicative that the
highway authority regarded the route as a public road primarily serving as property
access. and surfaced sections accordingly. There is no record of a formal ‘adoption’ of
these improved sections. Further, *adoption’ of a hitherto private road. which is then
improved at the public’s expense, when it serves only as access (o private property. is
both highly unlikely, and probably misapplication of public moneys.

The definitive map survey 1951

The record of the survey made for the original definitive map is itself evidential. The
description of the route as a ‘rough surfaced road’, that it was passable by lorries, and
the fact that the local surveyors did not regard it is merely a footpath or bridleway. It
would seem to be local knowledge at play here, rather than any express reference 1o
old records. Because this part of the full length of the road was not already recorded
by the highway authority as a publicly repairable highway. it was entirely proper and
consistent with Government advice for the road to be recorded as a ‘road used as
public path” (RUPP), sub-classified as a CRB due to its width.

Report: Applicants’ submission
Paggph8fidix 7




A conveyance of 1952

A conveyance dated 21 March 1952 passed to the Applicants (the owners of property
served by the alleged BOAT) on purchase of their property. This conveyance names
‘Great Hill”, and *Glyn all’ (now *Glyncote’) and plots 653 and 654 on the Ordnance
Survey map of 1921. The property conveyed is described as being ‘bounded ... by the
public road leading up to a place there called Great Hill ..." There is no grant or
reservation in this conveyance of any private means of access o the property. nor any
alternative means of access whatsoever. This is strong evidence of reputation that the
road now subject of this order was regarded in 1952. by vendor and purchaser (one
might reasonably assume good local knowledge — see the names, locations, and
occupations of the parties named in the conveyance) as a public road providing all,
and vehicular, access to the property.

“vidence of reputation

Evidence of reputation is manifested in the way people who might be expected to
know about the road have regarded it, and treated it, over a period of time. There are
two types of evidence of reputation here: that of the highway authority (which has
surfaced parts of the route for vehicles), and that of local residents who would be
expected to know (Trafford v. St Faith's RDC (1910) JP 297). The very fact that the
southern portion of the route was removed from the definitive map as a RUPP at the
first reclassification, and placed instead on the ‘list of streets™, is evidence of the
whole route being a public vehicular road. If the whole route was not a pre- 1836
public vehicular road. then for any portion of it to become publicly repairable would
require a formal act of adoption by the highway authority. None is recorded or
asserted. The fact that the highway authority felt able to treat the southern portion
(CRB 20) as a publicly maintainable vehicular road, and later to make up CRBs 20,
31 and 22. for the benefit of the public in light vehicles, is indicative that the authority
regarded the whole road as a public road for vehicles. No authority would make up a
‘private road” for the benefit of occupiers into a public road, thus making a cul-de-sac,
without an act of adoption. There is none recorded or asserted. In 1994 the Director of
Highways for the highway authority stated formally that he believed this route to be a
public vehicular highway: surely he should know?

The local people who have made statements about the use of this road are clear that it
has had a lot of varied use by vehicular traffic. Much of this use is also consistent
with a private road, but these witnesses are clear that they regarded it as a public road

no vehicular user has ever been turned back; no landowner asserts ‘ownership’ of
this road.

What's in a name?

The name “The Old Parish Road” is itself evidential. The parish was the highway
authority from at least 1555 through to 1894, when the rural district councils inherited
the role (passing to the counties in 1929). The parishes were responsible for the repair
of all types of highway, including footpaths and bridleways. but in practice only the
more important roads got ‘proactive’ maintenance. An ‘old parish road” could be only
a bridleway. but its physical character is an evidential issue — is it likely that a road
amply wide enough for vehicles, well made, and enclosed. would be merely a
bridleway? Why would a public body put such resources into such a limited facility?
In the case of Commission for New Towns v. 1] Gallagher, in considering the
meaning of *parochial road’, the judge agreed with leading expert Dr Y olande Hodson

4

Report: Applicants’ submission
I'%—.]@em




that a parochial road was more likely to be a public vehicular road than only a public
path. A *parochial road’ is a *parish road’. Taken with the evidence of the description
‘public road” in the conveyance of 1952, with no express private vehicular access, it is
unlikely that, in this instance, a/the *parish road” was only a bridleway.

Summary

We cannot state clearly how or when The Old Parish Road came into being, nor is
there any express indication of its status. There is a sequence of evidence that
indicates that the route existed as a ‘physical road’ from before 1835, and that this
route was part of the local road network, albeit used almost totally by local traffic (R
v. Inhabitants of Southampron | 1887 QB 590). The survey of 1910, made under strict
statutory discipline, recorded the route in a way consistent with its being a public
vehicular road. and the original definitive map survey in 1951 is also consistent with a
status higher than footpath or bridleway. Since then both the highway authority
(particularly in upgrading the status and condition of parts) and local people have
treated the route as a public vehicular road.

The test to be applied to this evidence is the simple balance of probabilities: when all
the evidence for and against public vehicular status is weighed, is it probable that The
Old Parish Road was. and therefore is, a public right of way for vehicles? There is a
considerable accumulation of evidence in favour; there is little evidence against. The
balance of probabilities test is satisfied, and an order should be made to modity the
RUPPs that comprise The Old Parish Road to the status of Byway Open to All
Traffic.

Report: Applicants’ submission

Pagappefdix 9




John Cary’s ‘Improved Map’ of England and Wales, series 1820- 1832.
From an original held in The Brotherton Library, Leeds University
Applicants’ submission

Regfmdig10




Plan to Deed papers dated 1828 — Cleddon Shoots
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D398 11-13
Applicants’ submission

Pagep2odix 11




Catalogue entry for Deeds dated 1828 — Cleddon Shoots
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D398 11-13
Applicants’ submission

e




y ) A\
- X : 4 _...,, AT
' AN g
) 3 ‘..A.v.f...
> , e
) L\ | -..:

ile date 1830

ission

icants’ subm
ag@padix 13

p

GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE
B

Ordnance Survey 1st Edition Map linch to the m




Plan to Deed Papers dated 1834 — Cleddon Shoots
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D398 11-16
Applicants’ submission

RppendiNa4




Catalogue Entry for Deeds dated 1834 — Cleddon Shoots

GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW REF: No. D398 11-16
Applicant’s submission

Lease for a year 27/28™ August 1834 with Plan

‘Piece of Woodland (12a) situate at Llandogo called the Shoots. Late in possession of Arthur
Wyatt and now of John Gough, bounded on the S.W., S and S.E. by lands belonging to or in
occupation of John Roberts esg, Ann Edwards, Mr Hopkins, John Hodges, Rev David Jones and
Isaac Madley, on the east by the road leading from Trelleck towards Monmouth and land of Isaac
Madley, on the north and N.W. by lands belonging to or in occupation of Isaac Madley, Joseph
(James) Madley, William Hopkins and the road (Not the road in question) leading from Cleddon
towards Llandogo, on west by lands belonging to John Roberts, Mary Moulton, Joseph Renolds
and the road (Not the road in question) leading from Cleddon to Llandogo, 2 small cottages
standing on part of the said piece of woodland, late in occupations of John Clement and James

Jones. but now of Mr Davies and Zachariah Reynolds’.

Transcript of Deed dated August 1834 — Cleddon Shoots
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D398 11-16
Applicants’ submission

Padeiddix 15




Tithe Award dated 1843

GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D1127
Applicants’ submission

Rapendid 16




North orientation

Tithe Map dated 1846
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE REF: No. D3731.1
AEpllcants submission
|x 17




3% £&§ }Sfa.gs 508

or .
by Py Pa.:, — Q N

'.:::“ 4 @ O = 3 2,
" Gl G B PO %- PU

7 a.a Sl oY

Ordnance Survey 1st Edition Map 25 inch to the mile date 1881
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE
Applicants’ submission

Regadiols




ORDNANCE SURVEY OF ENGLAND,

BOOK OF REFERENCE TO THE PLAN

OF THE

PARISH OF LLANDOGO

(HUNDRED OF RAGLAN),

IN THE

WALES, COUNTY OF MONMOUTH,

ig Cross— Lonpox, Conraxivg 1821'950 Acres.

D

COLONEL A. C. COOKE, CB, RE,

DIRECTOR-GENERAL OF THE ORDNANCE SURVEYS,

Puildings—Enmvnuran.

D,

nix Park—DusLix,

LONDON:

PRINTED BY GEORGE E, EYRE AND WILLIAM SPOTTISWOODE,
PHRINTHRS TO TUE QUAKR'S MOSY RXCKLLENT MAJEATY.
FOR HER MAJESTY'S STATIONERY OPVICH,

1882,
Price One Shilling.

1st Edition Book of Reference dated 1882
Applicants’ submission

Pader2adix 19




PARISH OF LLANDOGO.

5
No. of Shoot No. of
ety At Area in
Plan
Acres, and No. on Plan, Acres, “::-f:;hn, iy
8""’,,""“, o 81— Sheot XXT. &
g d 605 <204 oo -~
i 606 | 1-244 656 | .aor
74 ok a0 657 | 1-612
1:474 608 375 gor 612
'779 m .m “9 ’.2‘7
332 611 | 1.492 o 1-as
8-602 612| .13 sor | 9ass
1-330 61% .999 663 g
2156 6i¢| .209 Soa| 1w
2-836 6140 185 665 2850
16-718 615 ~313 666 1:006
4286 616) 284 :008
2-666 ) T 06 1
60540 6]8 1'063 paid -
6-805 619 ‘698 669 g
8% ' "272 669a 188
l '628 62] 'MG 870 .689
780 as *539 671 831
1697 624 153 il o
4-039 625 ‘119 ik ;304
.24 i -928 674n 497
-224 627 | 3.300 o7 49
9-332 628 +132 676 552
7474 629 1-549 677 .
6-785 630 175 678 175
*864 631 415 79 B
T a4 ~406 681 <288
8-318 635 575 o | 288
gt oy | ls0 684 | 703
443 638 874 685 out
. lw m .m 6& .816
.689 m -m m .l“
.m 6‘1 0487 w .“2
05 S 676 688 638
529 | X 689 | .330
529 614 <498 690 '
‘342 646 152 692 484
1009 647 «610 693 257
«153 648 - 966 oot B
*361 649 2.9;: 695 19-48
28'168 850 -4
8- 651 272 | Sheot XXI. 95
496 653 -445 ‘l 697 | “2.779

iti da
st Edition Book of Referen_ce_
' Applicants’ submission

Rpgandit 20

ted 1882

v




Working copy of the Finance Act Map 1910
GWENT RECORD OFFICE EBBW VALE
Applicants’ submission

Pagkpdiitlix 21




.....

\"\1 %‘q i A Lo "“\

X

A% ;
2o %q\' B - %g%‘

Map of County Roads undated
Applicants’ submission

ApgendikR22




Map of County Roads undated
Applicants’ submission
Appendix 23

Page 214




SURVEY OF RIGHTS OF WAY.

AVIERJUTN

LEXCAL AUTHORITY (oeough, District ur Parish Cosact) ... MOMNOSTA RIRAL, DTETHIRE. oo

PARISH OF,,,. fHALLECK UBITED

NB,—Ths Maugihiol reforences in this Foow s to the J , 1950 Bdition of (he M Jum prega Open Spaces
wnd Pootpath Pressrvation Society estitled * SURVEY {wnmmsorm\v.'
Contise of Path cing witl: Mo oy y
Kind of Path point. oo Path by cocrect order Briel S:-m dev lpt
(Ure Name of Path, ¥ any, and ks widthe where well defloed. 3t metalied, by whow for and address of pertom
Sen Par. 4). oc i destination repairnd. thut woy i oerryieg oo airmy
(Seo Parn, 5 un Pages 11, 12 and 13), pulshie, and deses.
——te.
Ovberd, fearte ub:blandogoadehcakyunetal dod 4 TIFIV- 100" yda.|  ~Wetind 1 8 L .
ropudred-by- Oovmutl mur-nrt:\mmr;" Lot TN, TG w4
‘ﬂ”ll!‘ mnﬂ“'ﬂﬂ o 6T MANEEIN S0N .
fV e vd Cou oy spposTE LR Ay ME 12 Joim Crim—y Regd
. cF AL L AS
Bt ftarts May Cottags on Mommooth-thepetow lowd-upposide alked ¥. wllinm
0411 4 B (Yo ud) ST xbuparte-arbarsyrd-fbv-ud dortortogin lat Jyme, 1951
wgd widons~ta 8Dty tar planes. ot nod by PiP e
Y - ~kafbehend Tork et b
a6 Uhe 1lagdogo-Bneldyk, road: b deural tush Cobtnpe
fenddng withc 14 -stipte: ~Right Mend Forkweidmy teitreon
tho-Llandoge Yrolleek road-wi-tim il on TH,
Lo Btarts st Past Office on the Mowwouth-Oheps bow Foad. ke Fo NS11%omss
WA weinly 4 ft.  Kodo ot kailwey Cottage {Dounded 1st Jme, 1961
by walla both sides). 7
r. Utarta sV Pamitegs on Mo Maweouth ~Chepntow Rond, w Fo Willtams
loommonoitg W %% 17 stepe Joining l'ootpath Wo.8 Ly lot Jume, 1951,
Whe 014 Siip Ten by the river,
Vol Great 2111 Starta st The Lanrnl Bush Gobtapge tn the Llandogo W Fe Nllism
rellsok Hoed, After Mrst 25 vards mount by atone lat Jums, 195L
staps exit on bo (len Rosd, 20 yde wouth of Ryovern
Dottapge.
L0 Gruat 111 Gonbinumtio of F.P. Wo.12. Starts at Fyevern Cobbags u . ailliom
i the 0len lioad, amtinustton of rough stome steps 1st Jasa, 176]
for 100 yaris; Whan teugh pattiwy through woods to '
1) peddon.
r.r, flellow lune turte b lnglewsed Yousy on Lhe Llandogo Trellaeok & - Fo Miliwm
" wpte MiLL with utone wall left hand side; sarthen lat June, 1951
bk o olher, Approx, width 6 ft, Exi& o to Olen
oud,
oty Abip k)lgf .
Sk on - RO perflgsmbouy' The - Pod, W1
»- Tigugh surface rond pasaing through wood e fur lat June, 1951
- Young'e tage. Omtinuing ns wwarfeced roed
- or w quarter of a wile wpprox, with a turning poins
L.y, ur Joreies % Vhe enl, flond now emSinves as o CRF
sroasing Oleddon Bhoots luto Olchuters Lans:
mear Wardpold Oottagse.
Fuby Clatstars Lonn Ntarts o1 e beginning of Pracdon Roud. Nough sbooey| Fod, W) linms
path bordered by o tane wmlla. Path abdout § TE. wide. lok Jwne, 1941,
tooo welle end at Mhllnuttres Cotinge, whers peth
[ssoomens 111 dofined ustil St axits oo Yo Ehe Presdas
Mood by n satonp stdle.

Extract copy of Definitive Map statement relevant date 1st July 1952

Applicants’ submission

Apféendik24




Digitised copy of Definitive Map statement relevant date 1st July 1952
Applicants’ submission

Pag@péhbix 25




¥ < ea 4N i "t =+ et .
Al X oT30RaL ueSyrsesSntatives of frne

1.0= Lr3. Sutad Seyiolas sad lbotiiex

.oy v 4r  mmeipoe -
AlUlae e 4ie Ddlilliii.e

nniwgamw

.
= v Ca
4 3 - -
o3 By G - >k »d - o S -, ol
LOTLOUT ..
t —— S p— S—
. s T L5 * _, A aa
-.L.LA.--,;.Q' i T L A TEly
. yd®
£.03 MNICiae
'
|
bk e 30 -0 o A A it T TN i S M S >

1952 Conveyance of property at ‘Great Hill’)
Applicants’ submission

Papendix 26




1952 Conveyance of property at ‘Great Hill")
Applicants’ submission

PagkpBaiglix 27




1952 Conveyance of property at ‘Great Hill’
Applicants’ submission

Peryadig 28




pl

A5

: 3o I D ICRHY URTAFILD tuut the tzaussctlon Loruby offected doea not

! forw part of a larger trausaobiva or 0f o series of transaotivue 4n
|
) denpaot Of whaoh tho wWnduiut ur vadue ot the Sldra nte amount o value of

Gle conslderabion uxesuds Uue Shougsad five hundred poundas,

ﬂ' M ._In‘u.'J.: Viereol thie sald partigs to tlese JEesente Lave Lereunto net

thedr londs and seads tao duy aud yeur £iret before Written, "|

s n "
ha na 3 _I0RALA yi
JALIA in the preseuce ofi= )

| ﬁ‘;“t’\'. A. \/‘M/‘Ll
AR

! (4/(,1;"{ ol .

Yio anld Guslid JAdid ol lﬂy)
the presence ofi- ‘

\ A e bt

? .
\ feaY c;/;,{(u
L AR A
At /‘.Z",'/-«u*f" 0

vt @

g“} & & i

b

/ oo 1}

1952 Conveyance of property at ‘Great Hill’
Applicants’ submission

Pagentnix 29




PLAY StowiUk  GCeaT Hil

This is only a copy of the 2004 digitised plan showing property names and not
the plan that is referred to in the 1952 conveyance documents
Applicants’ submission

PeRpndiz 30




Application No.A3L66G Jate Valid: 05 OCT 1993

Mr R K Ellis riB.5. Technical Services,
Braambles Unit 2,

Mitchel Troy Hadnock Road,

Monmouth MONMOUTH,

Gwent Cwent,

AMENDED SITING OF APPROVED Dwi. LLING,
SITE ADJACENT GLYNCOTE, THE ' ' PARISH hoAR, LLANMGCO.

Application Type: DETAILED
Community Council: THRELLECH (* /D

REPRESENTATIONS

Trellech Comounity Council ccommends apgrovnl  but point it site s
outside Llandogo Dovelopment # wa.

Two letters of objection have tven rec. «d from local resideats, one being
from the occupants of Glyncote the dwelling fmsediately in front of and
below the appliation site. 1% main points raised being.

- Inadequate nature of ace. . track uand retaining wall make it unsuitable
to ac:osmodate addfitionni - hiculae reafi'ie,

- Initial site clearance ot juisunnt 1. the catant permission on site
has resulted in debris t'ai..ing onto the gavder, of the adjacent dwelling

Glyncote. This hazard will be repeated despite the relocaticn of the
dwelling.

= The postion of the pr -od garage will pes '+ .., additior+! pressure
on the wall retaining 'le accoss teack. The garase shoulz o located

at the southern end of the plot snd sot back to allow suff: ient space
to turn.

= Site outside village du « . upwon: woindary .

Copy correspondance has L« .1 reccived from the County Planning Officer
which highlights concerns ver the suftability of the access and (ts
reaining wall to acommodat: Yhwmvy chicles during the constructica period.

iv ulso indacates that ther s w Jeetainly over who 1s responsible for the
maintenance cf the retain ¢ wall, the County Council or the owner of
Glyncote. There {8 re...rse to the County Council or the cwners of

Glyncote if the highway or retnining wall 1is dasaged by extraordinary
trarfic.

Lower Wye Valley Preservati i Society make the following coaments:

= Access is poor, bein, “ung 1 nharrow lane wnich {8 unsuited to
additional domestic an il service traffic including emergency
vehicles. The retuis. . wn N the access (= showine signs of
novewment .

= Development of the P o difficult and cause ‘amag: to
naightours frow leby:. coding LWl

- The dwelling - ..1 ., crsely sifiet the prive v of the tamedia‘e
neighbon ..

= The site should be ¢ tafned 40 it 18 a8  the leveloprent sould be
detrimental te o aren.

Planning Application A36666 dated 5 October 1993
Algplicants’ submission

agppeadix 31




Application No. A3BE6S continued. ..

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

29567 Dwelling and garage OUTLINE APPROVED 0%.01.198.
30965 Dwelling and garage RESERVED MATTERS APPRCVED v +.1989.

OFFICERS EXPLANATION/COMMENTS

The application site is located on a steepiy sloping . llside at ths
highest part of the village of Llandogo. As detnile, above planning
pernission has previously been granted for the developmen: :f the site ¥
single dwelling and garage.

Intial site works pursuant 'n the above appro.ais -voveali: a rock outcrop
in the position of the proposed Jwelling. The app.'cation seeks to
relocate the development within wne plot to avoid th.s rock outcrop.
Details of the dwelling are uncl.anged since the previous approval, In its
revised position the dwelling will sit dicve tly behind and above
"Glyncote', Due vo the existence of only ose First flo:r window in the
rear elevation of Glyncote and the respective levels betwe-n the dwellings,
this relationship will not give rise to unacceptable o' eorlooking between
the proparties. Irdeed the revised positioning 18 seen s an improvezent
in this respect as in its previous location where {t was «!fsat in relation

to Glyncote, it would have overlooked 31 large section of the garden
thereto.

To accomodate the dwelling in this reviscd position the associated double
garage has been movad 1lim (46ft) northwarés in the plot. This will require
use of an additional 18m (59ft) length of the adjacent track for day to day
access to the dwelling for residents vehicles. The access {s only single
track width along much of {ts longth. Furthermore, the section which
fronts the application site is supported by a retaining wall, the stability
of which has been questioned. As the treck is formally designated as a
public right of way, over which the pubtlic have right of access with
vehicles, the principle of use of the track is nct at i{ssue. As a public
highway the track and supporting wall shoild ce maintained to a standard
satisfactory for accommodating vehifcular traiiic, irrespective of whether
the existing site is developed. The traffic likely to be generated by a
single dwelling would be relatively light. , loaestic traffic {s likely to
be the lightest to use Lhe track.

Heavy traffic is likely to be requited to wuse the track during the
censtruction of the dweiling. if susose cccurs uue  LO extraucdinary

traffic, steps are available ro the persons responsible for the
maintainence of the wall to reclaim costs.

The applicant has been approached regerding the question of providing the
parking in the south-ecast corner of the plot. de feels that this option is
net. practical due tc the nature of the retaiuing wal that  would be
required to be provided,

Planning Application A36666 dated 5 October 1993
Applicants’ submission

Frpgadrp32




Applicatios No  AZ6666 continued. ..

RECOMMENDATION: GRANTED

Conditions:

1.

2,

3.

‘l.

The development hereby permitted oust be begun not later than the
expiration of five years beginning with the date on which the
pervission 18 grasted.

The dwelling hereby aproved shall be developed as an alteration to and
not in addition to that approval under application A29567 and A30965.
The giarage indicated on the subaitted plans shall be completed and
svailuble for use prior to the occupation of the dvelling and shall be
retain thereafter in perpetuity for the parking of private motor
vehicles.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3, Scidule 2, Part 1 of the
Town and Country Planning General Development Order 1988 (or any Order
revoking and re-enaciing that Order) no enlargements, improvements or
other alterations to the dwell nghouse shall be erected or constructed
without the prior approval of the Local Planning Authority.

Reasons:

L.

swn

To comply with the rejuirements of Section 91 of the To«n and Country
Planning Act 1990.

To ensure only one dwelling in developed on the site.

To ensure proper parking provision.

To ensure the proposed development Jae. ¢ i-2judice the nmenitivs of
the area.

NOTE.TO APPLICANT

The demolition of any walls, or part thereof, will requre Conservation
Area Consent from this Council if; in respect of a wall adjacent to a
highway it exceeds one metre in height; or two metres in any other

case. This includes retaining walls. You are advised to contact
the Councils Conservation Officer for assistance. -

--------------------------.-—--.----- S SN mm e cseTwnn® emw e mn e

Planning Application A36666 dated 5 October 1993
Applicants’ submission

Pagfiix 33




GWENT .:'. 5 g*‘"‘ c'(":llllﬂy Council \
—————————————————— . A‘: - R Uu.'ﬂy 3
CountyCouncil : Fb’t;{{ ‘ Cumbean
HIGHWAYS -

Deputy Uity Frowess
e ot Clomt Servn s
i [hedaadon

NSe Cling MICH

County Engincer
M S Uwen
BS¢ Tech MSe CEng FICE FIHT

Date: 29 October 1993

Your Rel: AOO66

Owt Reft  SO%PRIIGGO6/S!
ST/FP

If wlephoning, the person
dealing with this matter is:
Mt 1) Sandeman

Tel. 0633 832729

Fax Nu, 0613 832986

A

Dear Sir ;
PFROPOSED AMENDED SITING OF APPROVED D\\'I-'.l.l.lN(:
SITE ADJACENT GLYNCOTE, THE OLD PARISIE ROAD, LLANDOGO

With reference to your letter dated 13 October. 1993 and accompanying plans which are returned
herewith, 1 have 1o ohserve @ follows:-

I have no observations on the amendal siting of the

dwelling tollowing grant of permission under
AID6S.

Yours faithfully

c 4 /2/(4\-')--—0&-

for County Enginca

Diredor of Technical Services

Monmouth Borough Council

Mamdslad Hous K
Mamhilad Park Estate

Pontypool

Gwent NP4 OYL

Maghe oy Mamaper 64 o

et s Mo Ave
GA W e MY

Vit I e

AN e pomdota e Jevold B aditrensanl se v Camanty Fremit

Letter from County Engineer to Director of Technical Services in

Monmouth Borough regarding planning permission A30965
Applicants’ submission

Ragadie 34




WITNESS STATEMENT

Name and Address of Witness: "/A?'ﬂ'\/ (0 GER BFRFoONN.
WAYLAANNS '

LhAN G o,
ﬁ/ozﬂau-ﬂ/
STATEMENT N P25 47 L

Withios stlatonast o, o saliz ond use
o OA Pviok Kool , < Brmolono.

7l M-cog./ﬂﬂ'\ 6Mct.n~ Cellage 4 #o reat
C&'\C&Té__. ’ et

Trom o s identT of Ll omd  kephesen(”
Oy /((Z:o(o ot‘:/M0{ ;\/'r’ (’@.LPU«"(_:-( Gmmwn”*_\
CDW'\GPe -I Emﬁ éuﬂ omo( wm—‘.ﬂ( ~ /é«\d%&
7& @at-5. onel Liom o wmembec o
{ fem MMZ?"Z&( " /éz of .&-
m

v
jzﬂ’ WI“"“' 6‘”’%,&_& #;Fc e noadl é
€ by siye of

66%, o concdillon. o "0‘9
Nélié,‘:\:ﬁ o’;:(ﬁ&m coﬁ‘s/vum &5‘;—?&
o~ &
N ? 53 ﬁ mc«& ::-‘J ("° t\

Sigluluu
Date: 2 o2 /
- ool Lo~ & Sigaature 7 VNN

e (;e( RV tx Witnesse NE::-::‘“ AR o,

A 0/ ot W | /&« ¢ Occupation: \BTIULED Cowppuy DB
Lla@ o /// ro CReo s “’U”‘E'DA'N
&la (e okl oane  ErCL | AW Doge

D MONM oU T}
P ot S NS I .

Witness Statement — Martin Roger Brown 23 August 2002
Applicants’ submission

Pagapétlix 35




WITNESS STATEMENT

Name and Address of Witness:

NM&-\

6 Lok LUl Close, -

CHEPSTOW | Mosouhkslung , NP6 570
S [A'I'EMEN[

: . 69— J lied ot € ledde Skile, [landeso 1 s
ZS“'A'CJ the ﬂw—*jwc‘cq'y 999) - L/K“'a b |
it awnre G ov ey bictios o ot wst #f 0l Pavts 1y ok Lot
S ”va’“& Mf M:J Lent Cmabuatuae bd o O
M " - “
‘?pwko,fv’hvw'*cj Wm,u&e—a\‘-lwd.d’ttzo;‘l;‘;:: .
aj&m«é . M&vﬁe-@dm/‘c?mphhhqw MWM‘
milk. Swhsepuetl ’(8""""‘““(."“'{1""&'3”) sw i ()
i g e e
mgﬂ«ﬁu'\» e bmﬁj«wg‘w‘j I):H“W-ug wedteal)
. s for s 4o ewey SE s bl
}L“&w.::t(“:d 2‘;:!, vt ably f sevvice FEe durliangs o Halg LU sDe
)

. . -‘ ’ . l‘.’h
(rb.www Q'“‘('V(B-aﬁjﬂvt reswe-ts -c:l;tvv‘fx\—qc“'f“ s
Al B bentd Oeynd DUYWLKM’(;‘;WW&M g b Wyeley

t Clesdon Shasts, i ptho
vh-v, \ 6M/b W"‘L‘ %vﬂ“b‘LhM‘J }k:_‘w“wi;h*‘
e N\uw t)) “wav X s oo e
: ((M’ ,\.,M M“’ .- i "&‘ﬁ. Lo Povesh
o s By Pk E e st
ol Wd;,..m e Tt e
gﬂ M : ‘M
Date: “1- s'o‘
* ;‘. ok (A :“-'! Witnessed: Signature: /. Cayean—
i 1‘ " Name: SAES GRELGPANS
: : Occupation: RET\WRE> COmPASY PISECTOR
th w"‘)' oot Address:  Ty-DAN-CLEDAN,
oqtncg
3
27-vil-QL

Witness Statement — Thomas Wilkinson John 27 August 2002
Applicants’ submission

Ppgandiz 36




WITNESS STATEMENT

Name and Address of Witness: Al 1ol
b Lok Close,

O'_e“"%a&vw,- sl . NPle 5T,

STATEMENT
:\) hwwakbond o | lived o C/\p}'\m&%\"\% (M 18 al fhe

T of e OB fanih ) Llowmdogs %mbé:.“_*qu;‘: i
j?m' WaViwe m D0 e mqy'\uhm. e (:u.uUlc_
L b 3ol da sy of reble

Fav 20 vtars a.?frammaj' ol inta o ¢

(b2 ‘?:w-k) 44”5?% dubierd of oo sl GRREE
Sanito oo wmEVEASE.  Coal O, 10060 0.d pos codasmed 2L
olso delwered M-‘b redenlt, E’d&n‘dﬂ Loofkes ~ M’f—tﬂlﬂ
2cCo ruvese Sedscontincled ~to e Klecdnakl Boed o lop Tres & =0
wianYoc e ower 1o WMB\L\S f/\(\mam odeo 1voed KE ropd.
gn_P\gus qg Ke Wol- Buord oud Brihih Teleom asovkarth wsed e vomd
oo AD hudepen, dehvesymen 0md builders. Ardodances ot
.,{?‘.'4, Service heove oboo beesr v ofTuDdonce, Friouwd o redodiace,

250 anll moﬁoehfjuhrm C)ﬁnfmnm-%o.‘zﬂ'g te U Sed
v\hruo.?—to Vitas quarh'umb PR o‘?laubu‘&&.wc Sale .
Someimi> puqpl Witing Uondegn offon fovnid Mamsdves dnvi o
oW etk 2 n:f;t\’, thﬁ ‘okon e N%'Fo;:kksa T cou aw\l;g:i;:zuﬂ

HaY Kl mwao peuer o u,aﬁmﬁm. o Ke padobc sse 4 veducdio g TR read,
Whotwer sonmtd 4o nag )61590.

Signature: ‘A‘ . R
Date: i 260,
| elwde 1KoV 1
> .
%aa;f. |k essed:  Signature: V7 CaRan—

Fol | paps s ™ Shects GAESGMY
Sro¥ed 1w This Occupation: RaTWED coMpant DLECTOR
witress stelewenV Address:  TY-DAN-CLEDAN,
AL ({m LA 06D

[LOR *HOuTer

1.8 62, . B

Witness Statement — Amelia John 27 August 2002
Applicants’ submission

PageRa@ix 37




WITNESS STATEMENT

Name and Address of Witness: v\ an4,) ARWMLS WoadDoRDd
G Acake , Vnnbran Lale
WA Adelrd  Yodne Al P 9S w4%
STATEMENT

VRSOAGA X Egaet alipeed Y ote ol Gl (SN

\\\\)\lr)- S\.-\L( “\q \\'\% ( % w;% Q'\A é l"\hn\\S\ 5

’D*l\. \.S 5 Y
o ™S Xim Bes e e ot A neoy  CRaaaX

WU Wy o‘; Wt A\ tans Qoud Ny ovimlenrs .Q ALY Q

D A, | QJ\M‘\L—, Q IOedar WAL OV VWt WXatiie)

WA e~

(TS vy =
&::;‘\mu\ G(MQ\M)‘“ ‘Q "\\‘\\'\'3 e S0
. W4, QKA , X\ ghan)
AN i, DN DMnces
ACaNLemmt~ Qv e
Rtmesa Q\'r.\s Y sdndis
Rk decs NuXers .Q fnhes

LT N e
AN o anyang My W\a et Med @ e Xo ML YAt g0

Q—r Mgy~ LRS- P \uf&o)t& \\S Q(‘(\\\g &ou\\ Sa

Signature: WA Vo AQ. iz

Date: \\\\ Q \\Q‘\‘
Witnessed:  Signature: %&
' Name: RAYMOND L HELEERT
N\ Nodee WX N\ Y\ X Occupation: C‘"ég'“s‘r
% Address: Cohel HousE
4N TP > .
R S N T . . 7 SRV VN LLANDIGo
WX iy TR nrnn X e Nk MoNmoury NF2s &TF
\)\I ) \h'ﬁ \\J 'S 5,
"Wt fx 5. .

Witness Statement — Martin James Woodford 18 October 2001
Applicants’ submission

Aapendix 38




WITNESS STATEMENT

XY
f Witness: 'TNMES GHAEGGEH
Name and Address o v DA -CAE AN,
LLAND OGO
fMomseoTH NP2 UTa

STATEMENT g,?,, brosn ot Baa 5\4 &.‘w
o8 .

Signature s CAavlan—
Date |\t Dee 2001
Witnessed:  Signature: W
Ltrabasl "oaee Name: ALVN ASHTW
YAy da Gank Occupation: @ MPANY sewenry
3 “al "‘ '\'\A ~> \v} W Addm: MLTUF
. T, SR, LLANTD O &0
S o ) ‘ Mop MOVTHIHIRE
AN Nprs ¢TF
1) ) : ?)‘-D

Witness Statement — James Greggains August 2002
Applicants’ submission

Pag@paadix 39




Gwent County Council

M S Owen

BScTeeh MSc, CEng FICE.FIMT

,} \
' e . 2 : County Engineer and Surveyor
. \ v County Hall
\ ‘ ) pran, Gwet
\ . # 4 AN
o

: : : wﬂl Cwmbran BI8s38
Fme',%mgm FAANo B38225

‘C"VY"“ — a

. e

7th September 1988 Letter from the County Engineer for Highways

\ - sep 1988

Y Oan 7th September 1968
\ - . ~=ntIMED o\ pa/azese?
U b W BOQ/PRI/ 29567 /MIH/61/FP

Dear Sir

PROPOSED RESIDENTIAL DWELLING
GARDEN/ORCHARD TOP SIDE OF CRB 23,
THE OLD PARISH ROAD, DIRECTLY BEMIND GLYNCOTE, LLANDOGO

With reference to your letter of the 2nJd August, 1988 and accompanying
plans which are returned herewith, I have to observe as follows:-

This proposed development site abute a priivate road that is part of a network
of similar substandard roads in :he Llandogo area. These roads being narrow
and steeply graded with poor h.ucizontal alignmont are unsuitable for rfurther
residential development, Consequently I would pot recosmend this proposal
from a County Highways standpoint.

Yours faithfully

RO

for County Englineer and Surveyor

The Chief Technical Officer,

Monmouth Borough Council, W toln’ oning, the parson dealing
Mamhilad House, with this matier s

Mamhiled Park Estate, Mr M J Hewson
PONTYPOOL, GWEN™ Tol Bat: 550

Al Corraspondence shauld be sddressed
10 the County “rginesr snd Surveyor

Hagpend40




Gwent County Council

M.S. Owen,
County Engineer and Surveyor,

N Tel: Cwmbran 838838
l FAX No. 838225

B.8c.Tech, MSc. CEng FICE FIMT,

e ——g—

-5t 2 | Date: 3rd July, 1989
== v | Your Ref: PR/A3096S
ol Our Ref: S09/PRI/30965/18/87/¥%

PROPOSED NEW COTTAGE WITH ADJACENT DOUBLE GARAGE
ORCHMARD TOP SIDE OF ORS 23, THE OLD PARISH ROAD,
DIRECTLY BEMIND GLYNOOYR, LLANDOGO

With reference to your letter of 19th May, 1989 and sccompenying plans which are
returned herewith, I have to observe as followe:-

| bave previously been consulted on this proposal under outlise applicstiocn code
A29067.

My views resaln unchanged in this respect. The progposed developasst site sbets »
private cosd that is part of & setwork of simller sehetandard rosds u the Llandoge
ares.

These roads sre narrow with steep gradients snd poor horiscntal aligasest. It ls wy
opinion that thess roads are vasuitable to accosmadats further resideatial develogment.

Conseguently, despite the grant of owtline peralssion | would still sot recossesd this
proposal from a County Righways standpoist.

Yours faithfully

c Ak

for Commty Bagineer

DATE OF COMMITTEE

-8 SEP 1589

PLANNING COMMITTEE
‘ E* “uGanomn PAFZRS

h—

Chief Techolical Officer
Nounsouth Borough Council

Mashiled House Person Dealing with this
Masbilad Park Estate satter is:

Pontypool Nr 1 J Sandessn

Gwent NP4 OYL Tel. Bxt: 2729

Al Corrmspondence shouid be s0479esed e e Coumty Bnmgineer smd Bu-vyor.

3" July 1989 Letter from the County Engineer for Highways
Pageptddix 41

PRI TS NN —




10-055-g9 Bumesp aas
.ﬂ! asnoy sof
{

oN zS&:.:J
oL .

\ Q3443434 Ny«
Rl T ‘

9999¢
CLE

! ) i
| i
1]

Rppendid 32

Detailed plan from Planning Permission A36666




Cleddm Seile @ng Ml ggpff/\

(Q+VIll- gl(’r d:“\&
*1‘»’""1}; ‘ P l\ -
( y '\Cr-'-"‘ P e S
Deav Sw,

y,w PB/A2956; o 28 J
wo sbjechon % Agplcatis
Bw teatevms vegardi Pt matld o
w‘*h?bny"j“”‘,l“v“ﬁmfm‘
lowe Yiverkly behend [lyncite, otio bilatin
Glgnidlte + garden|nihad mTop S0t of
CKB 23, The 0 Povith Resd 4 itk
aiieptaiie makuing-grmd by A =P l0ye?3
f ey datspe ey Domegr Fermsl
i 4//9# of plak & maskeriols
At Miress v + Vg8 o Bargions
Likeye 5o B prinsF of Devtlipreets
I wwid wish by riaht & by 50E
Mankiningd it A fimed & ok aicets
%o wy Jmm?s shonid wit be ipeved.
Y wildl be awnne that' Pt pctess

viad (0 Pavith Rond) 4 nat Wi ib
avnl@msrcs 4 i 'ﬂﬁ“‘ﬂbbvl.g,fﬂq —~
e jasipnk Jandlnds. Y havt, ne Int,
betn i frch with all of Hom gy
Vot proped diplapment
ﬂM M’
T Withamam Jdhan.
et Dammarvy Offict”
Prbypt

10t August 1988 Letter from Mr T. Wilkinson-John:

Planning Permission A29567
Pa@g@peéddix 43




3

motmouthshine
R CoRee
3 [yrury

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAQ Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, together with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked

SECTION A: GENERAL

1. Name  Mw A HArWeO

Address: Hicd YIE - -
Mo MouTHS Ik, NP2A 4T
Tel No: (Qisa4) 6’%0‘ﬁ§ .

2. Date of Birth; 04lu16l Occupation/s:_HEMEMAKE S STUOENT
Place of Work (during period of claim) _Horlle BASETD .

SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

3. ROUTE OF WAY From BARG ANS Cormaite’ te “Saies?

¢
To_ SiNkS’
Believe status of route (* piease delete where appropriate)*Footpatii*Bridieway/ *‘Byway
Asshmmtnaﬂadwdphnbetweenmmmw( (€3 ="2'S s’

4 Have you used the above way? YES /H8®
If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? 2 lrmlﬂ{QToﬁ-_EL

m)meummbaM'm?ﬂA&M,C&_ﬂcbj_zﬂ%ﬂgq
(© Forwhatwpose?fufx,oikﬁ\ = Sou.o.g\; (no«.% :

(d) How many times a year? MCLVW\ 20+

et _Bic #LQ.
(e) By what means (e.g. on fool, on horseback?) t‘mf ) .
5 Has the way always run over the same route? YES / &

I not, give details and dates of any changes.

6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gates or stiles on the way? If so, stale
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.

NO

Evidence Forms:
Mrs Harwood

AppgadB36t.1




W

monmouthshire
R R T Y
\ i ey

7a If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used it, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and
dates. If not, write 'NO', No

7b IM'YES' give particulars and date:

instructh%n to the use of the way by the

7c. Did you ever receiv
public? If so, what were t

8. Have you ever been stopped or tumed back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or turned back? If S0, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars.

)

9. Were you ever told by any owner or tenant of the land crossed by the way, or by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give

particulars, ,\) o

10.  Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? If so, state when
and give particulars.
No

11. Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, ‘No Road’, 'No Thoroughfare’ or
‘Trespassers will be Prosecuted’ on or near the way? If so, what did the notices say?

INES)

12. Have you ever asked permission to use the way? If 'YES', from whom?

No

13. Have you ever been told by the landowner that the way was public? Do you have any
other information to show the way is public?

N o

14.  Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a separate sheet of

paper' \

SECTION C: DECLARATION

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the facts that | have stated are
true. | SE/am not willing to attend a hearing, public inquiry or court o give evidence on this
matter, if this should prove to be necessary.

4 4
Signed: £t 4 0 ool Date: ,) ] [ A
f [ /I [/)".'" /.{_' 1'..11"‘ ("' ",' /( ("
NB. As this form Is supporting evidence to an application to create or upgrade a public dgﬂ! of way, it
will become a public docurment when submitted to the Council. It will be available for inspection by

anyone, on application to the Council.

*Delote as appropriate

IC RIGHTE OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM (M)

Evidence Forms:
Mrs Harwood

Pagispehiiix 44.2




Evidence Forms:
Mrs Harwood

Appgreii3iA.3




3

monmouthshire
fHURTY T
M I,*m'.\'

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAO Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, together with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked.

SECTION A: GENERAL

1. Name: O« é . Harwoo O

Address: OV T CoTTAGE TEELECH RAD,
LLANOOCO . ModMOUTHSHIR . NERS 4Tk

Tel No: 159 L2045

2. Daad&nhﬁgj_d_@,_ Occupation/s: CensSusTANT Sart AR R kot

Place of Work (during period of claim) Hord £ @A%ED Uik - vk

SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

\ )
3. ROUTE OF WAY From KBACEANS CoTTAGE

S
TO_ (S'B}Ee
Believe status of route (* please delote where appropriate)*Footpathy/ *Bridieway/ *Byway
J
As shown on the attached plan between the Points marked BAKGANS Corrack » (Sidks’

4 Have you used the above way? YES /W
If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? 55/ meNJLTo_&;-_;L’,
(b)mmmmmwwmvimﬁmﬁﬂiyzm_m
(c) For what purpose? ﬁzmﬁeaf 108
(d) How many times a year? N\ON\N\(:ZQ +>
(e) By what means (e.g. on fool, on h;gsebad(?)

5 Has the way always run over the same route? YES
If not, give details and dates of any changes.

6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gates or stiles on the way? If so, state
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.

NO.

Evidence Forms:
Dr Harwood

Pagyp&ifix 45.1




3

"I"“"K“"'“"iﬂ'
CONMY Y e

ey

7a. If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used it, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and
dates. If not, write ‘'NO". l\\

7b If 'YES' give particulars and da

7c. o the use of the way by the
8 Have you ever been stopped or tumed back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or tumed back? If so, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars,
N O
9, Were you ever told by any owner or tenant of the land crossed by the way, or by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give
particulars.
NO
10. Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? If so, state when

and give particulars,

N ©

11, Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, ‘No Road’, ‘'No Thoroughfare' or
‘Trespassers will be Prosecuted’ on or near the way? If so, what did the notices say?

N

12. Have you ever asked permission to use the way? If 'YES', from whom?

No

18. Have you ever been told by the landowner that the way was public? Do you have any
other information to show the way is public?

N

14. Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a separate sheet of

paper. \

SECTION C: DECLARATION

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the facts that | have stated are
true. | Si/am not willing to attend a hearing, public inquiry or court to give evidence on this

matter, if this should pgove to be necessary.
Signed: Mg&_w}é ( zggf Date: 22,{ 04.104,

NB. As [his form is supporting evidence fo an application lo create or upgrade a public right of way, it
will become a public document when submitted to the Council, It will be available for inspection by
anyone, on application to the Council,

*Doloto as appropriate

Lt oan Y EVIDENCE FORM (M)

Evidence Forms:
Dr Harwood

Appgadik345.2




Evidence Forms:
Dr Harwood

P oty @tlix 45.3

i
H
i
I
§




3

moamouthshire
COUBTE. €t e o
1N [!’Olh'}

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAO Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, together with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked.

SECTION A: GENERAL

1. Name: —ANDRER/ TANSILL
Address: LLEGAN BECK | LLANDNOGO,

_MoNMOITH Nst 4TF
Tel No: QIS94) 530 10O

2. Date of Birth:_|&: 1: 55 Occupations: ARCHITEC]
Place of Work (during period of claim) &ikqél.,
SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

3. ROUTE OF WAY From_BARGANS, CORCE  CRIDREF: S23077GR
To CLENON STILE CATE Geib R 1 SZ040GR

Believe status of route (* please delele where appropriate)*Footpath/ *“Bridieway/ *Byway

Asshownonmeattad\edplanbetweenthepocmsmark W

4 Have you used the above way?  YES / N&- ()
If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? [Z_ / From [9PR To2004

(b) Where you were going to and from? TROM HOUSE TO “TRE1ECH RDX
(c) For what purpose?_ ACCESING SEXITING PRoPEITr

(d) How many times a year? DAILY

(e) By what means (e.g. on foot, on horseback?) [
5. Has the way always run over the same route? YES/NO

If not, give details and dates of any changes.

6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gates or stiles on the way? If so, state
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.

NONE

KK seb ATACHD PLAN .

Evidence Forms:
Mr Tansill

Appeed b, 1




M

mommouthshire
COENEY s e
i ’,P"'T

7a. If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used it, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and
dates. If not, write ‘NO", NO

7b If 'YES' give particulars and date.

7c. Didyoueverreceivemymwuctbmﬁomhknlwastotmuseofmewaybyme
public? If so, what were they?

B. Have you ever been stopped or tumed back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or turned back? If so, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars. NO

9. mewevertoldbymyowne:ortenantofﬂnlandcmssodbytheway.o:by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give
particulars. NO

10. Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? If so, state when
and give particulars.
No

11. Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, ‘No Road’, ‘No Thoroughfare’ or
Trespassers will be Prosecuted’ on or near the way? If so, what did the notices say?

No

12. Have you ever asked permission 1o use the way? If 'YES', from whom?

No

13. Haveyouevefbeenhoidbymelandownermatﬂnwaywaspwlc?ooyouhavemy

other information to show the is public? | HAVE BEEN MADE
PERSON CLNING THE LAND

14. Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a e sheet of
paper. THE GENERAL PORLIC OSE THE IN
ONIMEDED FOR. WALKING , BICTUE ¥ \EHI =

SECTION C: DECLARATION

| that to the best of my knowledge and belief the facts that | have stated are
true wilhgtoaumdaheaﬂng.pmbicmqiyorcommgiveevidenceonmis

matter’
Date: [7: Ot O‘f _

Signed:
NB. As this form is supporting evi lomamﬁoalbn!omateorupgadcap«ﬂcr@dofway,l
will become a public document when submitted to the Council. It will be available for inspection by
anyone, on application to the Council.

| "Detete as appropriate

NEW OIS OF ¥ EVDENCE § A
Evidence Forms:
Mr Tansill
P oAy éhtiix 46.2




Mr Tansill
AppgadBdds.3

Evidence Forms:




3

monmouthshire
CHURLY CovmNr
w fyviwy

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAO Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, logether with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked.

SECTION A: GENERAL

1. Name: PO ETRET L MONKG
Address: ' popnan’ LL AN I5E,
CLON Mg NY 95 W1t
Tel No: :

2 DateofBirth. | = 5 3 5 Occupation/s:

Place of Work (during period of claim) . ak

SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

3. ROUTE OF WAY From_The ¢ am

To__twe uiedS
Believe status of route (* please delete where appropriate)*Footpath/ * Bridiewayi*ByWay
As shown on the attached plan between the Points marked

4 Have you used the above way? YES / N®& ‘_}gv,‘,

If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? 1From 1187 102004
(b) Where you were going to and from?

(c) For what purpose? EACAC Sy NG Nl S
(d) How many times a year?
(e) By what means (e.g. on foot. onhorseback?)

5. Has the way always run over the same route? YES /| RO
If not, give details and dates of any changes.

6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gates or stiles on the way? If so, state
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.

'y

\

SOete

Evidence Forms:
Mrs Monks
Pasyeperitix 47.1




3

monmouthshire
PONMYY SN en
¥ h.,'“-].

7a.  If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used it, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and
dates, If not, write ‘NO". o

7b If 'YES' give particulars and date.

7c. Did you ever receive any instructions from him / her as to the use of the way by the
public? If so, what were they?

8. Have you ever been stopped or tumed back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or turmed back? If so, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars.

N[

9. Were you ever lold by any owner or tenant of the land crossed by the way, or by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give
pariculars.

\\'l t )

10. Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? If so, state when
and give particulars.

A

11, Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, 'No Road, 'No Thoroughfare' or
‘Trespassers will be Prosecuted’ on or near the way? If so, what did the notices say?

NE

12. Have you ever asked permission to use the way? If 'YES', from whom?
N T

13. Have you ever been told by the landowner that the way was public? Do you have any
other information to show the way is public?

™

14. Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a separate sheet of
paper.

SECTION C: DECLARATION

| hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the facts that | have stated are
true. | *gif/am not willing to attend a hearing, public inquiry or court to give evidence on this
matter, if this should prove to be necessary.

Signed: \\ \_\x.w“ﬂ ; Date: \ S ke Ol

NB. As this form is supporting evidence to an application to create or upgrade a public right of wa y, il
will becorne a public document when submitted to the Council. It will be available for inspection by
anyone, on application to the Council,

*Dolote as appropriate

THEW PUBLIC TUGHTE OF WAY EVIOENCE TOM (v
Evidence Forms:
Mrs Monks
Appgad By .2




Evidence Forms:
Mrs Monks

P afepavdix 47.3




monmouthshire (&é (/\/
COUNTY LouNen

s "'fll"'

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAO Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, together with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked.

SECTION A: GENERAL

1. Name: 6 . EDuéeos
Address: P CANS STTRGE L OLD PgisH EchD
LLANDDED MONMOBTHSHIZE NP29 ATR
Tel No: (015994 ) S3300i”s

2. Date of Birth:_ 25 /4 /44 Occupation/s.___(CCTIRED

Place of Work (during period of claim)

SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

3. ROUTE OF WAY From__GRID PEF S2B 02760 CAadS CTINEE

To o e 522094068 CLePdont INLE coTCE

Believe status of route (* piease delete where appropriate)*Eoetpath/ *Bridleway/ *Byway
As shown on the attached plan between the Points marked___ELACK / YElLL Hh NG

4 Have you used the above way?  YES/NO YES

If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? _ 73/ From 1496 To 2c04
(b) Where you were going to and from?__ A8eem VARIOUS UK LocATewS |, Haug

(c) For what purpose? SoCiAtL / YoM ESTIC JougZneyS

(d) How many times a year? (OO
(e) By what means (e.g. on foot, on horseback?)  CAR
5. Has the way always run over the same route? YES/NO
If not, give details and dates of any changes.
=
6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gates or stiles on the way? If so, state
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.
NO

Evidence Forms:
Mrs Edwards
AppeadidddB.1




W

monmouthshire
. u\lq' Y e
S Jyney

7a. If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used il, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and

dates. If not, write 'NO',
NO

7b If 'YES' give particulars and date,

7c. Did you ever receive any instructions from him / her as to the use of the way by the
public? If so, what were they?

8. Have you ever been stopped or turned back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or turned back? If so, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars. NO

9, Were you ever told by any owner or tenant of the land crossed by the way, or by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give
particulars. ‘

N O

10, Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? If so, state when
and give particulars.
No

1. Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, ‘No Road’, ‘No Thoroughfare’ or
‘Trespassers will be Prosecuted’ on or near the way? If so, what did the notices say?

N O

12 Have you ever asked permission to use the way? If 'YES', from whom?

NO

13. Have you ever been told by the landowner that the way was public? Do you have any
other information to show the way is public?
NO

14. Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a separate sheet of
paper.

SECTION C: DECLARATION

I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge and belief the facts that | have stated are

true. | "am/am-ret willing to attend a hearing, public inquiry or court to give evidence on this
matter, if this should prove to be necessary.
signed: > Evisar pate: % [l , 4

NB. As this form Is supporting evidence to an application to create or upgrade a public right of way, it
will become a public document when submitted to the Council. It will be available for Inspection by
anyone, on application to the Council,

*Doloto as appropriate

HEW PUILIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIENCT FOTM (MM

Evidence Forms:
Mrs Edwards

P atym@tix 48.2




Evidence Forms
Mrs Edwards
Appeedi2MB.3




W

momnouthshire
COUNTY Carme
o fyuny

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY EVIDENCE FORM

The following questions should be answered as fully as possible and the form retumed to the
Corporate Director — Environment, FAO Public Rights of Way Officer, Monmouthshire County
Council, County Hall, Cwmbran, NP44 2XH, logether with a plan showing the alleged public
path clearly marked.

SECTION A: GENERAL

- / ' .
1. Name: b Mﬁf\lﬂﬂf\ RopinionN
Address: CASCAPES  LLANPOGO,
Mow mow 7H NP2 S «TE

Tel No: (ng"m- S 3oy 2

2. Dateof Bith._1£ [ 2 [S4  Occupation/s: ARTIST

1}

Place of Work (during period of claim) 3 ABovE

SECTION B: DETAILS OF THE ROUTE

3.  ROUTE OF WAY From___ S TReam V& . BAcein v (o7 7hsC

To “‘-‘“‘;l_s o &t - Za"‘{ f ;""I

——

o~ ~~
Believe status of route (* please delete where appropriate)*Footpath//*Bridleway/ *Byway
—™™

As shown on the attached plan between the Points marked

/'
4 Have you used the above way? (YES /INO
N

If so: (a) State how many years and during which years? . /From[{/¢ To >o4

(b) Where you were going to and from? (A4 (cavi i 7o  Myiiue - o 77Ag

(c) For what purpose?__ vV ' Tiny  iliie s o, EXURCISE

(d) How many times a year? [RELpuner ™y, ETR o] ;v TLummER_

(e) By what means (e g/ on foot, bn horseback?)
S. Has the way always run same route? @NO___'

If not, give details and dates of any changes.

6. Have there, to your knowledge, ever been any gales or stiles on the way? If so, state
(with details of location on attached plan) where the stiles or gates stood.

e

Evidence Forms:
Ms Robinson

Paypasix 49.1




B

motmouthshire
. CHRERTY. cmmer
7] ],‘l“"'

7a If you were working for any owner or occupier of land crossed by the way at the time
when you used it, or were then a tenant of any such owner, give particulars and
dales. If not, write ‘NO". No

7b If 'YES' give particulars and date.

7c. Did you ever receive any instructions from him / her as to the use of the way by the
public? If so, what were they?
NO

8. Have you ever been stopped or turned back when using this way, or do you know or
have you heard of anyone else having been stopped or turned back? If so, state
when the interruption took place and give particulars.

NO

9. Were you ever told by any owner or tenant of the land crossed by the way, or by
anyone in their employment, that the way was not public? If so, state when and give

particulars,

NV

10 Have you ever known any locked gates or obstructions to the way? if so, state when
and give particulars.
No

11. Have you ever seen notices such as ‘Private’, ‘No Road’, ‘No Thoroughfare’ or
Tmspassefswﬂlbersemted'onammway?Nso.whatddmomﬁoessaﬂ

NoO
12 Have you ever asked permission 1o use the way? If 'YES', from whom?

NO

13. Have you ever been told by the landowner that the way was public? Do you have any
other information to show the way is public?

NO KuoWwilllVate Oof A (AvrPowuannEr

14, Please give any other information that you think is relevant on a separate sheel of

paper. _r. o e . Ty Jhoyuld
© BC PReANoEgp (ATER - remaw A BcifmTH
/—-
SECTION C: DECLARATION Mok Seka®le or Rbidiiar wre

Iw?y»mnymutommamyknmmmbewmefadsmatlhavesmedam
m.(l'MMbma\daMaﬁng.mmm«wmdwmmm
matter, i this should prove to be necessary.

7
Signed: _,.I';('L'{:"u N Date: 40 Iﬁ-".l oo
Na.AsmnmksmﬂnmmMWnMwmwwadeaMdeaxﬂ
wnemnapwnmmmnammmmuwmwmumpwmby
anyone, on application to the Council.

“Delete as appropriate
W IRRILIC FGHTS OF WAY EVIOENCE FORM )

Evidence Forms:
Ms Robinson

Aragudpea0.2




MY FINDINGS HAVING READ THE FILE OF EVIDENCE AND REPORT
SUPPLIED BY SYLVIA HARRIS - RE: The historical status of CRB 20 -
21/22/23 as Old Parish Road and its status as a road rather than a bridleway.

D. Mariana Robinson
April 2004

Having read the report and looked at the “evidence™, |1 am not convinced of the
arguments. | have to ask myself three basic questions:

1 Why would a young newcomer to a village in Wales be so pro-active in trying
to get a lane status changed, when she doesn’t even live here yet? When | posed this
question to Sylvia Harris (SH), she did not give me a definitive answer, merely that it
was something Jim Greggains had done before her and she thought it public-spirited
and in the interests of everyone to find out about the status of the lane and get MCC
to confirm this status. When | again said, “Why", she changed the subject.

2. Why doesn’t the report at the beginning tell us who wrote it and during what
dates?

3. My findings below, will suggest that it is at least mis-leading if not entirely
wrong in parts. To me, what is conveniently left out of the report is just as valid.

The Status of “Old Parish Road™

I don’t have access 10 all the old maps referred to in the report but from the ones
supplied in the file, (unless I'm mistaken), I didn’t see any reference to the name “Old
Parish Road™ anywhere. The evidence presented fails to mention the historical
importance of WATER. 1 asked SH and AD if they had had a geological survey
carried out on their plot - to which they said yes. That report should, at the very least,
have alerted them to the fact that in general this is a collapsed limestone valley. The
exception is bedrock in a thin strip running roughly N-S in the direction of the “lane”™
for a width spanning approximately half a mile. In my opinion, it is the fact that fresh
water springs are dotted around the hillside that has caused the tracks and lanes up
from the village to be established over the years. This would be the nearest clean,
fresh water supply. There are at least 5 springs shown on the OS maps of the area, all
emerging from the hillside at the point where the sub-strata changes. They run
downhill, but most sink again (into the limestone area) well before they reach the
river. The exception to this is Cleddon Shoots, which continues on the surface until it
reaches the river Wye.

Bargan's cottage, behind my house, is probably the oldest cottage in the village. It
was once called Young's Cottage and was a slaughterhouse/butchers. Wild boar, deer
etc. would be slaughtered and smoked. This activity took advantage of the stream
water to wash away blood etc. taking advantage of both a clean, cold water supply
and the fact that there was a natural “plug hole™ for it to disappear down, just a few
yards downhill (now just below the house called Wye View). Hazel was plentiful too
for making charcoal and fuel for smoking meat. Slaughter hooks were still visible on

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004
P ARPEEHX 50.1




the beams of Bargan's Cottage — certainly up to 8 years ago, and are probably still
there. The tall “slaughter” stone, where animals were tethered, is still next to the
stream.

In later years, Water was also the reason that CRB 40 became a public highway as
40-7, by the construction of a storage tank of water, again taken from the same spring,
and which supplied the village up until the early 1990s, In my dealings with Forest
Enterprise on establishing my own property boundary in 2001, I had access to their
map. This shows that a narrow strip (about | metre) down each side of the lane, as
well as the central lane itself, was adopted by the Council on behalf of the Water
Board vehicles who regularly serviced the tank. Similarly, council refuse wagons
stop at the turning area, They had no need to travel any further than Bargan's cottage,
It is true what SH says in her letter to me that “local residents™ used spoil ete. to
widen the turning area. They needed to: older houses were not built with garages or
parking spots — because it was not a road. :

20 Lt )
I dispute the report findings that CRB 40 was part of a continuous road that included
CRBs 21,22, and 23, Whilst I believe there has always been a right of way for public
access to the spring, either on foot or with a cart, [ don’t believe it was an historical
road that “went anywhere”,

The former use of the eastern side (Cascades side) of the turning circle was that of a
local refuse dump or tip. It doesn’t take long to dig down and find evidence of
Victorian pottery, glassware etc. There is no foundation under the widened turning
area and the council has now put tarmac on an unstable foundation upon which
people (including the general public) park their cars. The actual land to the east of
the turning circle is owned either by me at Cascades or Forest Enterprise. It is only on
the very latest OS maps (2002 onwards) that this “bowing out” or turning area is
shown. OS Maps record physical features of an area, they are NOT necessarily the
legal boundaries, although some lines are. Deeds are needed to provide evidence of
status, boundaries and easements for rights of way.

Private road question

The antiquity of pattern suggests paths and not roads. Many cottages would have been
tithe cottages to the bigger houses of the area. It is inconceivable that properties
would be conveyed without proper easements of vehicular access, The fact that they
haven’t any, is not strong evidence that this was a private or public road - it is
evidence that people along the lane CRB 21-23 should NOT be using motorised
vehicles along a path. By now, there are many residents, including Councillor
Thomas, who say they have obtained a “right” from 20 years’ unhindered use, but this
is not true of SH and AD’s plot - where no house has existed before. Illegal use
cannot be used to establish a legal right.

From Bargan’s Cottage to Misty Cottage — it is a bridleway. *At this point the path is
intersected E-W by what is probably the correct road, uphill to one of the springs.
The path then continues to Glyncote and on into the woods.

* see later note.

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004

prRRgadS30.2




How old is the road?

I am not convinced by their plans for Cleddon Shoots - it looks to me as if someone
has inserted a pencil line at a convenient point, to prove their documentation. There
are no other obvious roads or paths shown on the Cleddon shoots map so why include
just a tiny bit of the lane in question? On the balance of probabilities, | do not think
this part is a road.

The lane probably dates back to Roman times - Llandogo was part of the England -
Wales defences throughout history. Springs were precious commodities and would
have been protected and used by locals for fresh water. Indeed, part of many ancient
paths, such as Offa’s Dyke and the Wye Valley Way follow routes where spring water
is available for travellers.

There is no enclosure award for this land
The absence of plans or maps for the Manor of Llandogo does not, in my opinion,
mean that the lane is a road. It doesn't prove anything one way or another.

It might be best to check out what documentation is held by the Parish Archivist, Gale
Reynolds.

The tithe award plan
Do not agree with the author’s assumptions on this one. Again, it is not proof at all
one way or another,

First Edition OS Map and Book of Reference.
I have not had access to this book or map unless this is the 1881 first edition map he
1s referring to — the report is not clear.

If it is the 1881 1" Edition — then the plot numbers shown on later maps are different
from this one. E.g the 1952 conveyance shown as evidence in support refers to plots
653 and 654 of the 1921 Edition OS map. These numbers on the 1881 map refer to
land in a completely different area — down by the river (behind Pat Yallup's studio
and Roger Brown's horse field). The report is very confusing so | am not persuaded
by his argument without checking the precise reference to which he is referring

Finance Act 1910

What does he mean “coloured out™ Is this the opposite to “coloured in™? As far as |
can see from the documentation — and I may be wrong — the only coloured bits on the
map were the local authority roads and this only shows the road up to Bargan’s
Cottage — as we have already agreed is correct.

County Status road

The author is wrong here and mis-interpreting the maps.

I have proved to the OS, who came to survey my property when dealing with my
boundaries, that The Mount was an area of land on this hillside - roughly in the arca
we are discussing. The Mount - the dwelling — is just the name of a house. (See
Electricity board map of area). This mix up appeared in the 1951 revision of the 1921
OS map. Similarly, the property now known as Great Hill, is not the Great Hill
mentioned in the 1952 conveyance given as evidence. It is likely, historically, that

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004
Appendix 50.3
Page 254




Great Hill and The Mount were local names given to the rough area high above the
village, where spring water emerged. Confusing, yes, but fact, No.

[ have already established why the road is a public road up to Bargan’s cottage — the
water board tank and supply.

There is no record of formal adoption nor, | suspect, of any record of the council
“filling in” bits of the CRB 21-23. Why? Because, along the years, “bits” of tarmac
have more likely been obtained by back-handers to council workers to “do a bit of
their road”. Indeed much of the turning area and parking area now used, was by the
direct instigation and direction of a former local Ted Devey — who arranged with the
council when re-surfacing the A466, to have them tip the old scalpings onto this area.
(He needed somewhere to park his boat). A team of local residents from CRB 20-23
worked to rake it in and harden a previously muddy, leafy unstable surface. | saw this
happen although | can’t now recall the year.

The large stones that are placed around the edge of the turning area were put there by
the people who dug out the hillside to make Councillor Thomas’s two garages — this
was done prior to my living at Cascades but | was told this by both Councillor
Thomas himself and by Betty Edmunds who used to live at High View.

The latest tarmac covering, was authorised by a member of the council, I am told, one
George Ashworth, in an agreement with Jim Greggains, if he agreed to drop his legal
case against the Council. THIS IS AN OUTRAGEOUS misappropriation of rate-
payers’ funds — since, if the Council had done their homework, they would have had a
strong case. All they have done now, is take the easy route out by upgrading a
bridlepath to an unnecessary quality surface which itself is making more problems for
residents with speed, surface water drainage, unsuitable surface with no foundations,
ete.

Map survey 1951

In my searches at the Public Records Office when establishing my own enquires, |
was told by an officer of the OS, that the last definitive map of this area took place in
1921, Since then — maps have been “revised” only, Therefore the 1921 map should
be the one used for evidence in this case. Revised editions appeared in 1951, 1971
and probably 1991 - although I'm surmising this last revision. The OS inspector who
walked and measured my land in October 2002 stated that a full survey of Llandogo
was being carried out because of new building, such as Pathways, the Millennium
Hall etc.

The reference to “passable by lorries™ is quite easily cleared up. The local coal
merchant owned a house along the lane. At the time, he was probably the only person
who owned a motorised vehicle and used the small turning area near Glyncote to store
his coal and to turn his own vehicle. He probably established private vehicular rights
of way from the 1950’s. Because he used the lane for his own private access and
storage does not mean it is a public road open to all traffic. One of the statements at
the end of the file confirms this point.

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004
ADPEIRIR 0.4




Conveyance of 1952 *

Interestingly, no copy of the 1921 map is included in the file, but talked about at this
point. Instead, there is a copy of the 1952 conveyance - so we are told, since again,
there is no way of checking. | have a copy of the 1921 map - although not of the
whole area in question. However, plots 653 and 654 are shown. These two plots are
different to the two shown with these numbers on the 1881 edition map. In my view,
the description is not talking of a N-S route to these properties, but more likely an E-
W route since the description clearly states “up to a place there called Great Hill™,
The word “up” is significant, since CRB 21/22/23 is virtually flat along the hillside,
whereas the steps and path coming up from the Trellech Road, immediately to the
north of Misty Cottage (formerly Ivydene) and onwards and upwards to the Great Hill
is in fact, the road in question. This would bound plots 653 and 654. Similarly, the
reference to Glyn All, (Glyncote) in my opinion, is the path that also comes up from
the Trellech Road and curves southwards onto the lane at Misty cottage. This cross
roads shows the main right of way in an E-W direction and not a N-S direction and is
likely to be a public road rather than a path.

I would need to check an OS map of the whole area, because I'm interested to know
where 679 is in relation to these plots (also mentioned in the Conveyance) and also
whether there is any reference to The Great Hill and if so, where it is located. The
Council needs to be aware that historically many areas of land in the lower Wye
valley had the word “The” in front of them, e.g. The Freedom, The Mount, The
Fence, The Hudnalls — these were areas of land and not individual dwellings although
many dwellings have taken these names.

Evidence of Reputation

This paragraph states that the highways authority has surfaced parts of the route for
vehicles — this has only been done in the last 12 months and was not the case when
this file was first compiled by Jim Greggains. Not evidence at all.

In 1994 the Director .. ... Surely he should know? — Again, he may not have known
and my experience of most council workers is that they don’t bother to find out either,
The fact that areas of the lane were surfaced either officially or unofficially by the
council might depend more on "who lives along the lane™ rather than any right by
owners.

| do not agree with one aspect of the statements in particular. Several mention the
lane being used by fire engines. This is not the case in the twenty years that | have
lived here, Indeed, it is why one of the new houses has recently been built — on the
site of Mrs Andrew’s cottage that “burnt out™ in the late 1980's because the fire
engine COULD NOT GET to her property (CRB-22). The nearest fire hydrant is next
to Bargan’s Cottage — therefore 1 doubt that the fire engines would have gone up the
lane even if they were narrow enough to do so, which I don’t think they are. So how
can we rely on these witness statements, all of which are made by people who want to
establish their vehicular right of way along a path?

I dispute that the road is “well made™ — it is not. It is for this reason that [ object to
building vehicles and general public vehicles using this track. 1 live downhill from it,
and I am already experiencing rock fall from under the lane. There are no

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004
P agepixfix 50.5




foundations. It was built as a path in a time when there were no motorised vehicles of
any kind. The volume of traffic using the lane and the speed with which it now
travels is both alarming and dangerous. We invite tourists (many with children) to
explore our ancient footpaths, steps and lanes — and are putting them in danger of
being knocked down! The council’s decision to tarmac surface the lane has now
made it dangerous for pedestrians because there are no verges or passing places,

Summary

| do not feel there is compelling evidence that CRB21/22 and 23 are a public road
open to all traffic, even on the balance of probabilities. 1 do not agree with the author
that these tracks are simply a continuation of 40-7 - it would be nice if they were and
the council maintained both the surface and the subsoil for all concerned, but I don't
think the “evidence” proves anything other than the fact that there is as much
confusion now as there has always been,

My wishes

Since no-one seems to actually own the land on which the lane is built, and the fact
that the council have invited cars and other traffic to use the lane by their wayward
planning consents without proper vehicular access, and the fact that they have
resurfaced the lane at rate-payers’ expense, | think MCC should adopt the lane for
limited private vehicular use only and they must deal with the urgent problem of
underpinning it and providing drainage — at their expense. In order to police light use
only, I suggest that they insert bollards or posts at the Bargan's cottage end to provide
just width enough for a large family car and NOT allow any further planning consents
off this lane again,

In view of the arguments about the turning area and building materials being dumped
there, | further suggest that the MCC formerly purchase the land from Forest
Enterprise and put in safe foundations with sufficient parking along one side of the
lane for all of the properties it serves. They should mark out both spaces and turning
areas to be kept free, accordingly. This would solve the problem for all concerned. It
would cost a lot of MCC money - but over the years they have been unwittingly
spending large amounts on projects they seem to know nothing about!

. Mariana Robinson
Cascadex
Liandogo
Monmouth NP25 4TE

26" April 2004

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission — April 2004

Ragedib50.6




-~ WESTERN POWII- -
-‘ DISTRIBUTION |
Serving the Soath Wew ond Wade [~

S
e S LA e — |
p—— L =i <= Proec e
L : e OATEL M-f-YODE
omah ° @ - i\ {
i L ! ) o~ - -
. e “AnpNARY - S, gy s " ) SCALE 1:-2500
e PR eSS [ Se———
Pt e o
- ajealrE 3 y GITIZ8. Srden CORATIINE Haderyed. * B — W S -o B2 Tovvre . | REPLY BYs Grorla Anne |
Soufern Suew 0 T Averenre, Fawens Seaw Semin, 35 30 e e i —-| =
(oW SeALY W INED TG OV THE PRESTSE RENITEN B e P b= | l—J OUR REF: 8902/
O WOsRATLS ¥ R fa 1268 CEEITD N iTE WM vuot chmnr
» % W T T R o) 4 (s W | Fiaonp
¥ At ot oo Ieees 80 e e - B LTI i s T (B s— il e e | VA FEF 1SOSF045W

Ms D M. Robinson’s, submission: Electricity board map of area — 2004

Pager2heix 50.7




Site Photographs dated 16t March 1998
i1




Site Photographs dated 29t" February 2000
Pagpp2bdix 52




Site Photographs dated 29t February 2000

Rageddts3




Site Photographs taken in 2004
Paggpeidix 54




Site Photographs taken in 2004
[Rppendinds




Site Photographs taken in 2004
Pageptodix 56




Site Photographs taken July 2014
Rppendig’57




Site Photographs taken July 2014
Padwr=pdix 58




The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

Testing of the claim against the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act (NERC) 2006

1.

Section 67(1) extinguished, on commencement, public motor vehicular rights over every
highway that was not already shown on the definitive map and statement, or was shown only
as a footpath, bridleway, or restricted byway. In effect this means that public rights of way for
mechanically propelled vehicles have been extinguished over every highway not already shown

on the definitive map and statement as a byway open to all traffic.

If this section 67(1) were left with no further explanation then that means that not only do
public vehicular rights along the route in question extinguish but also virtually the whole of the
existing highway network including county unclassified road 40-7. However, subsection 67(2)
introduces a series of exceptions to protect certain highways from such extinguishment under
subsection 67(1). Any route that qualifies under any one or more of these exceptions would

not have its public rights of way for mechanically propelled vehicles extinguished.

Subsection 67(2)(a) — excepts ways that have been lawfully used more by motor vehicles than
by any other users types in the five years preceding commencement. The intention here is to

except highways that are part of the ‘ordinary roads network’ such as C40-7.

The Authority does not have extensive records of motor vehicle use of the county unclassified
road 40-7 but there is evidence from local residents who reporting using the route in question
in motorised vehicles to gain access to their properties. It is not incumbent on the local
highway authority to undertake a detailed investigation or survey of "main lawful use” on every

way.

Subsection 67(1) says that public mechanically propelled vehicle rights are extinguished if the
route in question is not shown on the Definitive Map and Statement in accordance with
subsections 67(1)(a) & (b) then the public MPV rights are extinguished only if the rights are not
subject to the exceptions listed in subsection 67(2) & (3).

Comment

6.

The route in question is registered on the Definitive Map and Statement. The only types of
highway registered on the Definitive Map and Statement are public byways open to all traffic,
restricted byways, bridleways and footpaths. This Act now prevents those previously
unregistered routes to be recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement as byways open to all
traffic.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

Appendix 59
Page 267




By using the flow chart that illustrates the process of determining whether a public right of way

for Mechanically Propelled Vehicles (MPVs) over any given way is extinquished by section 67
of the NERC 2006 (Appendixes 59 to 61)

7. Subsection 67(2)(a) states that public MPV rights are extinguished unless the way
is mainly used by MPVs.

Comment
8. The five witness statements submitted with the claim report that the route in question was

regularly used by motorised vehicles. However the use is reported to be mainly the residents
and those invited as visitors or service providers such as the postman and not by the public at

large therefore public MPV rights are extinguished.

9. Subsection 67(2)(b) states that public MPV rights are extinguished unless the way
is shown on the List of Streets.

Comment

10. The route in question is not shown on the List of Streets therefore public MPV rights are
extinguished. However the route in question is recorded on the Definitive Map and Statement
as Cart Road Bridleways 20, 21, 22, 23 and Cart Road Footpath 24

11. Sub-Section 67(2)(c) states that public MPV rights are extinguished unless the way
is created expressly for MPVs.

Comment

12, In the absence of the 1810 Enclosure Award map for this area the earliest and most reliable
map available is the 1830 Ordnance Survey map. On this document the route in question is not
shown. More importantly what is shown on the 1830s OS Map is one main route and one other
route that ascend up the “"Great Hill” from the east and not from the north east or the south
east during the approximate time period 1830 to1881.

13. The Ordnance Survey mapping available during this period shows that the route in question
was not created specifically for motorised vehicles.

14. It is acknowledge that in 1821 mechanical propelled vehicles (MPVs) were not the major form
of transportation. Although wheeled horse drawn carriages were probably more frequently
used along these routes to transport home building materials, equipment and contents up the
"Great Hill” to the private dwellings.

15. The 1881, 1886, 1902 and 1922 OS maps all show the route in question with the markings that
indicate the alignment of the route as a fenced minor road. The Ordnance Surveyors were only
required to accurately depict the physical features they encountered in the area and not to

determine whether or not a route where public or private.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

PageRe8ix 60




16.

17.

18.

The 1846 Tithe and the 1910 Finance Act Maps both record the route in question as a road that
is in most cases recorded on the "List of Street”. However, both the Tithe and Finance Act
Maps were conducted for the purpose of raising taxes against land and land produce and not
compiled specifically for the record of public or private rights. These historical documents
normally helpful when assessing whether or not, on balance, public rights may or may not
already exist are not always reliable when attempting to determine what the level or type of
rights the public are utilising.

The evidence suggests that the route in question was not created expressly for mechanically
propelled vehicles therefore public vehicle rights over the route in question are extinguished by
the 2006 NERC Act.

Sub-Section 67(2)(d) states that public MPV rights are extinguished unless the way
is built for use by MPVs.

Comment

19.

20.

Due to the 1846 Tithe map showing the route in question and as this map predates the
availability of any MPVs the way being investigated was not built for or by motorised vehicles.

This would mean that MPVs are extinguished.

Sub-Section 67(2)(e) states that public MPV rights are extinguished unless the way
was created by MPVs use pre-1930.

Comment

21.

Due to evidence of the 1846 Tithe and 1881 OS map that shows the route in question was
constructed pre-1930 and not created by MPVs usage prior to that date therefore MPV rights

are extinguished.

The Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006

Rppendig®1




Chart 1 of 3 - subsection 67(1)

(This chart illustrates the process for determining whether rights of way are extinguished and does not provide an
interpretation of the law; it must be read in conjunction with Defra’s guidance on Part 6 of the Act)

public MPV
rights
extinguished if

sub-section 67(1)

b 4

way h | mpv rights
sub-sections 67(1)(a)&(b) shown on yes » :Pogcvon 1??? no p overway not
DMS*? : s extingusihed

no
yes

vy
public MPV
rights
extinguished -
subject to
$8.67(2)&(3)

\ 4
A [gotochart2]

* before commencment on 2 May 2006
Guide to abbreviations [ ’ )
MPV - mechanically propelled vehicle

DMS - definitive map and statment

FP - footpath

BW - bridleway

RB - restricted byway

BOAT - byway open to all traffic

8. - section

ss. -sections

LOS - list of streets

DMMO - definitive map modification order
LHA - local highway authority

Flow chart illustrating the process of determining whether a public right
of way for mechanically propelled vehicles over any given way is
extinguished bEsection 67 of the NERC Act 2006

agpperdix 62




Chart 2 of 3 - subsection 67(2)

(This chart illustrates the process for determining whether rights of way are extinguished and does not provide an
interpretation of the law; it must be read in conjunction with Defra’s guidance on Part 6 of the Act)

sub-section 67(2)

sub-section 67(2)(a)

sub-section 67(2)(b)

sub-section 67(2)(c)

sub-section 67(2)(d)

sub-section 67(2)(e)

[* before commencment
on 2 May 2006)

A | [fromchart 1]

A 4
public MPV
rights
extinguished
unless:

vy

way
used mainly
by MPVs*
?

no
4

way
shown on the
LOS*?

no
<
) 4

created
expressly for
MPVs?

no

A4

built
for use by
MPVs?

no
b 4

Created
by MPV use

pre 1930
?

no
Y

yes
way
yes-— P shownonthe - no >
DMS?
yes
yes >
yes >
v
mpv rights
yes p over way not
extingusihed

B [gotochart3]

Flow chart illustrating the process of determining whether a public right
of way for mechanically propelled vehicles over any given way is
extinguished by section 67 of the NERC Act 2006

Papendix 63




Chart 3 of 3 - subsection 67(3)

thart illustrates the process for determining whether rights of way are extinguished and does not provide an interpretati
of the law; it must be read in conjunction with Defra's guidance on Part 6 of the Act)

B ifromchart 2)

v
public MPV

sub-section 67(3) em:g::::hed

unless
v

$.53(5)
DMMO applic
oustanding
at 2/5/067

no

yes
4

what footpath
is DMMO or B
for? bridleway

BOAT
Y v
applic public MPV
sub-section 67(6) (;;37';2) —— em::g::hed
? under s.67(1)

yes
A4

applic

sub-section 67(3)(a) mggz t/::;gre yes [1.97555 " wi:s)

no v
X public MPV
LHA nghts not
sub-section 67(3)(b) determine before ~ yesp ©Xinguished
2/51067 over highway
subject of

application
no A

A4
public MPV
rights
exingushed
under s 67(1)

applic. o
3 no-— access own land > yes sub-section 67(3)(c)
?

Flow chart illustrating the process of determining whether a public right
of way for mechanically propelled vehicles over any given way is
extinguished by section 67 of the NERC Act 2006

PadBrepgix 64




Page 273




COUNTY OF MONMOUTH.

NATIONAL PARKS AND ACCESS TO THE COUNTRYSIDE ACT, 1949.

¥/ abed

Fotit

SURVEY OF RIGHTS OF WAY,

g T
d | By
R B S T e
ok ARSI R AL
il p e T ; i-u,!r it Ghet i iz
1L e )l i il
i-e%"i;'i}irﬁ P} i B el gh G
|l g jrii i ' i ‘S ,i"j! !' 55;’ sd=3 843 avias {%;ii .
NI Al i o
g i, ;g;,!,g ig,j" ;g.{ i3 iaiz 3*31!3*1 it
£ ﬁ; =l s fsn : - "l ST T LT T
§ | } il ii: P m:} s:? 8 i i R s§u H
1
§ g% %’g = = | | 2 < § 4
Nl P4 S | : :
Wlss3s s s B 3 s s & g 33 %
i;%@"- - 33 3 : 3- 2 " i H . F 3

Extract of Definitive Map Statements for footpaths 6 to 46
Appendix 65




G/ ¢ obed

y

in this Form
Societ:

i
O P
:;! $ :.9
1 o
AL R o,
BRI FTRTE R T e
BN A L ;3? iy ’zﬁii i ifﬁigi iy
£ % DRI HEH S L
2 83 H§§ il st B ﬁ,% ;5%;%32!%‘*
(28 g i e ot S el it
:gg E,ﬁy 1k : &s.,!a" ":f-:i: L
tgs 11 s e e %j’g'ﬁ‘ i
Su i i ke |FEEIE 5-;*:%? 'fs 11 fia 4-‘:73
8 o : i ! .3}3,: 55z « ! ti- 22eds
;ag £ fiincliiy 13 2 iliig{l.i.lgilﬂ;ﬂtls
£
3 :
: &

references
a Preservation
Name of Path. if any,
ina

23
it ie
:?‘3 |
z EE:
%75 b .
ji; (308 & 3 4 $ 9 :
4 gg - .
g8Ez :
ﬁg%ég S s s ® ll’ ® @ ®

Extract of Definitive Map Statements for footpaths 49 & 50

Appendix 66




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	3 GORCHYMYN ADDASU MAP DIFFINIOL, Cleddon SAETHU, Llandogo, TRELLECH (41 Mod)
	02Appendix3Rpt1.18LdgoAtoB-8July2016
	03Appendix3Rpt2.17LdgoBtoC-8July2016
	04 Appendix 3 Glossary
	05 Appendix 3 Appdxs 1- 66


